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Preface

It would he comforting 1 believe that ihe Brancial Esiablishment of
the United States and the [eaders of American imdustry were united
in a common purpose {ollowing the Day of [nfamy, the Japanese
attack on Pearl Harbor on December 7, 1941. Cenainly. the Ameri-
can public was assured that Eig Business along with all of the offi-
clals of govesmment ceased from the moment the war began 10 have
any dealings whatsoever with the enemy. That assurance swslained
the moraile of millions of Americans who bore arms in World War I
and their kinfolk who stayed at home and suffered the anguish of
separadon.

Bui the hearbresking (euth 1 that 2 number of financial and indos-
tnal figures of Wodd War 1l and seversl members of ihe govermment
served the cause of money before (he cause of patriotism. While ajd-
ing the United States” war effort. they also aided Nazi Gemmany's.

I first came across this fact in 1978 when 1 was declassifying doc-
uments in the course of wnting a bingraphy that dealt with motion
picture star Etrol Fivnn's Nagi assoctations. In the National Archives
Diplomailc Records Room [ found numerous ¢ross-relerences o
prominent figures who. T had always asstmed, wers entinely comumit-
ted to the American cause, vet who had been matked down for sos-
pecied subversive activities.

I had hkeard over the years about a general agrecment of cenain
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major figures of American, British. and German commernse & con-
tinue their relations and associations after Pearl Harbor. T had also
heard that certain fivures of the warring govemsnents had arangad o
assist in this. But I had never scen any decumentary evidence of it.
Now ., pieces of information began o surface. T staned 1o Jocale doc-
uments and have them declassi fied unider 1the Freedom of Informztion
Act-—a painfully slow and exhausting provess that lasted owo and a
half vears. What { found out was very disturbing.

[ had been bom 10 a pamiocc British family. My father had raised
the first battalions of volunteers against Germany in Waorld War 1.
and had buill the Star and Garter Hospital at Richmond, Surrev, for
ex-servicemen. He had been knighted by King George V for his ser-
vices to the Crown and had been a member of Parliament and a Cab-
inet member. [ feel a swong sense of loyvalty to Britain, as well as to
my adopled country, (he United States of America. Moreover, T am
part Jewish, Auschwitz is 2 word stamped on my lieart forever,

It thus came as a severe shock to leam that several of the greatest
Ameriean corporate leaders were in league with Nazi corporations
befare and after Pear Marbor, including [.G. Farben, the colossal
Mazi industrial trust that crested Auschwitz. Those leaders mter-
locked through an association | have dubbed The Fratemnity. Each of
these business leaders was entangied with the others throngh inter-
locking directorates or financial sources. AlE were represented inter-
nationally by the National City Bank or by the Chase National Bank
and by the Nazi attorneys Gerhardt Westrick and Dr. Heinnch Al-
ber. All had conmections to that crucial Warl ecangnst, Emil Puhl,
of Hitler's Reichsbank and the Bank (or International Settiements.

The tveauns were linked by an ideclogy: the ideology of Business
as Usual. Bound by identical reaclionary ideas, the members sought
a common fuwre in {agscist domination, regandless of which world
leader miaht further that ambition.

Several members not only sought a conunuingr alliance of interests
for (he duration of World War I but supported the idea of a negati-
ated peace with Germany that would bar ary reorganization of Eu-
rape along liberal lines. Tt would leawe as its residue a police state
that would pizce The Fraternily in postwar possession of finaneial,
industrial, and political aulonomy. When it was clear that Germany
was losing the war the busigessmen became notably more loyal ™
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Then, when war was over, the survivors pushed imo Germany, pro-
tected their assets. restored Nazi triends to high office, helped pro-
voke the Coid War, and insered the permanemt future of The
Frateroity.

From the outset I realized that in researching the subject T would
have: 1o carve through an ice cream mountain of public relations. I
searched in vain through books abou the corporations and thejr his-
tories to find any reference to questionable activitics in World War
II. It was clear that the awthors of those volumes, granted the coop-
eration of the businesses concerned, predictably backed off from dis-
cloging anvihing that would be revealing. To this day the bulk of
Americans do not suspect The Fratemicy. The government smothered
everything, during and ever (inexcusably) afier the war. What Would
have happened if millions of American and British people, struzgling
with coupans snd lines at the gas stations, had leamed that in [942
Stapdard Qil of New JYersey managers shipped the epemy’s (uel
rhrough newiral Switzerland and thal the enemy was shipping Allied
fuel? Suppose the public had discovered that the Chase Bank in Nari-
occupied Paris after Pead Harbor was doing miilions of dollars® worth
of tuginess with the enemy wida the full knowledge of the head office
in Manhattan? Or that Ford toecks were being buiit for the Gerrnan
occupation troops in France with authordzaton from Dearborn, Mich-
igan? Or that Colonel Sosthenies Behn, the head of the international
Amencan telephone conglomerate ITT, fiew from Mew York to Ma-
drid to Berne during the war 1o help improve Mitler's communications
svstems and improve the robot bombs that devastated London? Or
that ITT built the Focke-Wuifs that dropped bomibs on British and
Amertean roops? Or that ervcial bali bearings were shipped to Nazi-
associaied customers in Eatin America with the collusion of the vice-
chairman of the U.S. War Production Beard in partnership with
Goring’'s causin in Philadeiphia wihen American lorces were desper-
ately short of them? Or that such amangements were known ahout in
Wushington and ekther sanctioned or deliberately ipnored?

For the government did sanction such dubious transachions—bots
before and after Pearl Harbor. A presidential edict, issued six days
after December 7, 1941, acmally ser up the iegislation whereby
licensing arrangements for rading with the enemy coeld officially be
granted. Often during the vears after Peard Harbor the sovemment
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permiited such trading. For example, ITT was aliowed to continue its
selations with the Axis and Japan untii 19435, cven though that con-
glomerite was regarded as an offictal nstrument of United States Tp-
nefligence. Mo aftempt was made to prevent Ford from wetamning its
imerests for the Germans i Ocoupied France. aor were the Chase
Bank or the Maorgan Bank cxpreashy forbidden to keep apen their
branches in Occupied Paris. Tt is indicated that the Reichsbank and
MNaz1 Minisay of Economics made promises to certain U.S, corporai:
leaders that their properties would not be injured after the Fithrer was
victorious. Thas, the bosses of the multinationals as we Inow them
today had a six-spot an every side of the dice cube, Whichever side
won the war, the powers that really ran nations would ngt be ad-
versely affecied.

And it is importaint to consider the size of American investments
in Mazi Germany al the time of Pearl Harbor. These amounted to an
gstitnated total of 5475 million. Standard Qil of New Jersey had $120
million invested there: General Motors had $35 million: ITT had 530
million: and Ford had $17.5 million. Though it would have been
mare pattiotic to have allowed Mazi Gemnany to confiscate these
companies (or the duration—o nationalize them or to absorh them
inte Hermaon Goring’s industial empire—it was clealy mmore prae-
tical 1o ipsure them prowction from scizure by allowing them w re-
main in special holding companies. the money accumulating uniil
war's end. Tt is interesting that whereas there is oo evidence of any
serious attemipt by Roosevelt to impeach the guilty in the United
States, there (s evidence thar Hiter strove 10 punish certain Geralan
Fratemity associates on the grounds of treason to the Nazi state. In-
deed, in the case of ITT. perhiaps the most flagrant of the corpora-
tons in its ewnght dealings with the enemy, Hitler and his postmaster
general, the venermble Withelm Olnesorge, strove to impound the
CGerman end of the business. But ¢ven they were powerless n such a
situation: ihe Gestapo leader of counterinelligence, Waher Schellen-
berg, was a prominen! directar and shareholder of i17T by amange-
meni with New Yoark—and even Hitler dared not ¢ross the Geslapa,

As tor Rooseveit, the Sphinx still keeps his secrets, That supreme
politician held all of the forces af collusion and betrayal in halance.
publicly praising those executives whom he knew to be questionahle.
Before Pearl Harbor, he allowed such egregious executives as Tames
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D. Mooney of General Motors and Wiiliam Rhodes Davis of the
Davis Oil Company 1o enjov pleasant téte-i-tétes with Hitler and
Giring, while maintaining a careful record of what they were doing.
During the war, J. Edgar Hoover, Adolf A. Berle. Henry ?Hcﬂmom-
thaw. and Hareld Ickes kept the President {fully advised of all Inkzrnal
m,qa external wransgressions. With grear skill, he never let the execu.
lrves cancerned know that he was oa to them. By using the coTporate
leaders for his own war parposes as dollar-a-year men. keeping an
eye on diem and allowing thern to indulge, under Heense or not. in
their international tradings. ke at once made winning the war a cer-
tainty and kept the public from knowing what it should not know:.

Becanse of the secrecy with which the matier has been blanketed,
Hmn.&namm it presented mie with a nightniare that preceded the areater
fightmare of discovery. T embarked upon a voyage that Emmr_:E_H_
nuthing so much as a descent inta poisoned waters in a diving bell.

Why did even the lova) figures of the American covernment al low
these transactions (o continue after Pear! Harbor? A logical deduction
would be that not 1 have done so would have involved publi¢ dizclo-
sure: the procedure of legally disconnecting these alliances under the
antitrsl laws would have resulted in a public scandzi that would have
drastically affected pubiic morale, caysed widespread surikes, and
perhaps provoked mutinies in the ammed services, Maoreover, as some
comonite exceutives were never tired of reminding the SOVEMINENL,
their trial and imprisonment would have made it mpaossible for the
corporate boards to heip the Atmerican war effort. Therefore, the zov-
emmenl was powerless o intervene. After 1945, the Cold War, which
the exeentives had done so much ta provoke, made it even more
necessary that Ihe truth of The Fratemily agreememis should not be
revealed.

[ began with the conveniently multinational Bank for Intematicaal
mﬁq_ﬁ_ﬂm:ﬁm n Basle, Swizzerand. The activities of this anomaious
institution IR wartine are contained in Treasury Secretary Henry
Morgenthau s official diarics at the Roosevelt Memorial Library at
Hyde Park, New York. Other details are contained in epiTs by ithe
estimable Lanchlin Currie, of Roasevelt's White House Econoniics
Staff. whom [ interviewed at length by telephone at his home in Bo-
gotd, Colombia, to which city he had been banished. his citizenship
stiipped from him in 1956 for exposing American-Nazi connections.
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o vr puree Ty DN RPOS oy the ke Orvis Schmidt of M,Hnmm:_..v
.h_._,_._s_.__#_ r..:; i, Conleol. German records were a useful source: mﬁ.i
_-H.._E_.fr,:. m ::r,u dent and real power of the Reichsbunk, & mas crucral
w:{. f._,_n..__:.,r.,m_.._w:p._.wm_.... « Jealings. had sent reports w his nominai
MH_._.,..,_”_M__._:__: ”u”r .;.",__:E_. Funk. from Switzerland to Berlin lute in the
wr, o 1o the nuter of the Rockefeller-cantrodied Chase Mational
_.w:_:m".”_.._._m_.._,._ Tl condacted its _.u.cmu.nnmm +.E.1 E_,u Nazi m..mm_...ﬁﬂwua.&ﬁ
in Faris uodl the sars end. _m.,.an nifs _.mEJN_:rm thal H_.:E,.r, historians
mitehl want o examine 1he lighly secret Chase Bunk Eruu ?_Ho_.m.,u:-
thau had lett subde cross-references at Hyde Pak that wE.E me
futuee imestigarors o Treasury itself. | asked _wa_u: V. Kom :
Treusurs far awcess io the sealed ﬁ:m.mm boxes, ﬂ.E,nr EU:“_, ,cmn:f::ar_
lock and key sinee 19435 Under Ew H._.@mn_.uE of Information Act, Mr.
Kuorp ahtiined permission from his superiors to ;:.mm& the _..,_cw.wm and
10 doclassify the large number of documents non@uma therein. ,

From the Cliase Bank it was a natuval progression to m..Em.aEa Qi
of New Jursey. the chief jewel in the crawn of the Wﬂnzﬂm_ﬁa emi-
pire. Records of Standard s dealings with the Axis were wﬂm_.mﬁnu in
_._E Records Rooms of the Diplomatic Branch of ihe National Ar-
chives and were specially declassified. There, too. | found records of
Sterling Products, Gencral Aniline and Film. and William Rhodes
[havis, wiaose FBL fifes werne also most revealing, Documents on ITT
and RECA were classified. After waiting out the better part of the
vear. | was able 40 obuain them from the Nationsl Archives. Classi-
lied SKF Industries files are held in the Suitland, Maryland. annex of
e Archives. General Motors matiers are covered in the Tames D
Mooney public access collection ol Georzeiown Gz?.waﬁ.... Wash-
inmum. D.C. The unpublished pas—Pear]l Hurbor dianes of Harald
lokes were imvalwgble: they are o e found in the manuseript room
o the Liboury of Congress.

The most clusive fles were those on Ford in Occupied Fraace, 1
couid find no reference w them in the Treasury documentary distings.
I Enew thtt a Treascey teagn had anvesiigated the company. [ won-
dennd i1 any member of the team could be alive.

Seamething jolted my memory. [ remmembered that 4 book entitled
e Devily Chomisrs had appeared afier World War U, written by
Josiah BuBoix, un asomey who hioad been part of the Treasury team
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at Nuremnberg. The bouk was a harowing account of the mial of the
exectitrves of 1.G. Farben, the Nazi industriail trust . that showed Far-
ben’s finks to Wil Streer.

I reread the bouk’s pages, leoking for a clue. In it DuBois men-
voned hat he came from Camden, New Terseyv, 1 decided 1o call
information in the Camden area becayse T had 3 theory 1hat. einbir-
tered by his experience in Germany and Washington, DuRoeis might
have returned to live there afier the war, It was anly a huench, bu it
paid off. In fact, it twmed out that DuBois had pone back to his
tamiy lasw fm in Camden. | wrote to him, asking if he had records
at the Ford matier. 1 figored that these might have been so important
that he would have been given personal custady of them: that Secre-
tary Borgenthay mighe not even have rsked leaving them at Trea-
SUrY.

DruBois replied that he helieved he still had the documents, incind.
ing the letters of Edsel Ford (o his managers in Nuazi-cccupied France
after Pear] Harbor, authorizing improvements in auwomobile and truck
supplies 10 the Germans, After several weeks, DuBois wrote to say
that he had searched his attic to no avail. The documents were miiss-
ing. However, he would keep Touking.

He was admitted 10 4 hospital where he underwent THHjOr surery,
Although enfeebled, he retumed to the atic and began seurching again.
Compelled by a desie to disclose the tmth, he pursued hiy tash
whenever he could find the strength, At last, when he was aboiat to
give up hope, he encovered the documents,

However. he explzined that the main file was sa encendiary that he
would not send it by mail or even hy messenver—T was at libenty to
examine it in his office. 1 was faced with 4 new dilemma. Sinee 1
was expecting delivery of un important sei of documents, 1 couldn’
risk an absence irom my fiouse for a prolonged joumney o the Easl.
Psatd I would call him back.

I knew that Rutgers University was close to DuBaiss offices. |
called the Law department and asked for 4 stadent researcher, Within
an howr | recetved a c2fl from a vouny man whoe needed wark. 1
contacted DuBais s seeretary and amanged {or the sindent 1o copy the
documents on the premises. He did so: | sent an nir courier o his
home to pick them up. As I read e documents, the last detuils of
the puzzle feil inwe place.
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[ have tried to wriie this bool as &mﬂmmm:,..:uﬁ_w. as ﬁsmmm_“_mmu _...,m_w.
out mtempting a moral commentary, and ;..HE.”.”.E, .n;. nﬁ.EMEW _”Mns_w
ing implication of present COrpoTanons and their .mwanEm _uw mmu
will be claimed that the people in this _u_uc.r” since they ate mr .
cannat enswer and therefore should not be criticized. To E& H would
reply: Millions died in World War II. They. too. cannot answer.

GENERAL LICENSE UNDER SECTION 3(a)
OF THE TRAMHNG WITH THE ENEMY ACT

By virtue of and pursuant io the authority vested in me by secdons 3
and 5 of The Trading with the Epemy Act as amended, and by virtue
of ail other authority vested in me. I, Franklin D. Roosevelr, Prosi-
dent of the United States of America, do prescribe the © ollowing:

A general license is hereby granted, licensing any transaction or act
praseribed by section 3(2) of The Trading widh the Enemy Act, as
amended. provided, however, that such transaction or act is authior-
ized by the Secretary of the Treasury by means of regulatons, rul-
ngs, instructions, licenses or otherwise, pumsuant to the Executve
Order No. 8389, as amended.

FRANKLIN 1. ROOSEVELY

THE WHITE [HOUSE,
December 13, 1941
H. MORGENTHAU, JR.
Secrelary of the Treasury
FRAMCTS BIDDLE
Arntorney General of the United States
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A Bank for All Reasons

On a bright May moming in 1944, while young Americans were
dying on the Talian beachheads. Thomas Harrington McKiurick,
Arterican president of the Nazicontrolled Bank for Intemational Set-
tiemnents in Basle, Switzertand, arrived st his offtce o [preside over a
fourth anqval meeting in time of war. This polished American gentle-
Man sat down with his German, Japanese, Ttalian, Botish, and Amer-
ican execwtive stafi to discuss such importanl matters as the 5378
million in gold that had been sent w the Bank by the Nazi goverm-
ment after Peard Harbor for pse by fts leaders afier the war. Gold that
had been looted from the national bagks of Austria, Holland, Bel-
gium, and Czechosiovakia, or melted down from the Reichsbank
_._c_.“.::mm of the teeth filings, spectacle frames, ciparete cases snd
lighiers, and wedding rings of the murdered Jews.

The Bank for Internationat Settlements was 2 juint creation in (930
of the world's central banks, meluding the Federul Reserve Bank of
New York. s existence was inspired by Hjalmar Horace Greeley
Schacht, Nazi Minister of Economics and president of the Reichs-
bank, part of whose early upbringing was in Brookiyn, and wha
had powerful Wall Sireet connections. He was seconded by the all-
important banker Emii Puhl, who continued under the regime of
Schacht s successor, Dr, Walther Fank,

Sensing Adolf Hitler's luse for war and conquest. Schacht, even
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before Hitier rose to power in the Reichstag, pushed for an tnstitution
that would rerzin channels of conmmoication and collusion between
the world’s financial leaders even in the event of an intemational
confifct. 1t was written imto the Bank's charter, concurred in by the
respective governments, that the BIS should be immune from seizure,
closure, or censure. whelher of nol 10s owners were at war., These
owners included the Morgun-affilisled First MNational Bank of New
Yok {among whose directors were Harold 5. Vanderbilt and Wen-
deill Willkie), the Bank of England. the Reichsbank, the Bank of
Italy. the Bank of France, and other cenimal banks. Established under
the Meorgan banker Owen D, Young's so-called Young Plan, the BIS s
ostensible purpose was 10 provide the Allies with reparations to he
paid by Germany for World War 1. The Bank soon tumed out to be
the instrument Of an opposite funetion. It was to be a money funnel
for Americen and Botish fends to fiow into Hitler’s coffers and 1o
help Hitler build up his war machine.

The BIS was compieiely under Hider's concol by the ouathreak of
World War I1. Among the direetors wnder Thomas H. MeKiknck
were Hermann Schmicz, head of the colossal Nazi industrial trust
[.G. Farben, Baron Kot von Schrfider, head of the I. H. Siein Bank
of Cologne and a leading officer and financier of the Gestapo: Dir.
Walther IFunk of the Reichsbank. and, of course, Emil Puhl. These
last two tigures were Hitler's personal appoineees to the boand.

The BiS™s ficl president was the smwooth old Rockefeller banker,
Gates W, Meliamah, formedy of the Chase National Pank and the
Federal Reserve Bank, who retired mm 1933, His successor was the
farty-three-year-old Leon Fraser, 2 colodul former newspaper re-
porter on the muckraking New York World, a streetcomer soaphox
orator. straw-hat company director, and pediormer in drag in stage
comedies, Fraser had litle or no background in finance or economics,
but he had numerous contacts in high business circles and a passion-
ate dedication (o the world of money that acknowledged no loyalties
or frontices. In the first two years of Hitler's assumption of power,
Fraser was jnfivential in financing the Nazis through the BTS. When
he took over the position of president of the First NMational Bank at
its Manhattan headquarters in 1935, he continued 10 exercise a subtie
influence over the BIS s activities that continued until the 1940s.

Other directors of the Bank added to the powerful financial graup.

A Bank for Al Reasons k)

Vincenze Arzolini was the accomplished governor of the Bank of
Italy. Yves Bréart de Boisanger was the ruihiessly amhitious gover-
nor of the Bank of France: Alexandre Galopin of the Belgiun banking
iraternity was to be murdered in 1944 by the Underground as a Nazi
coliaborator,

The BIS became a béte poire of U.S. Secretary of the Treasury
Henry Morgenthau, a deliberte. thorough, slow-speakimg Jewish
farmer who, despite his origins of wealth, mistrusted big money and
power. A moadel of integrity obsessed with work, Margenihau con-
sidered it his duly to expose corruption wherever he found it. Tail
and & trifle ungainly, with a balding kigh~domed head, a high-piched,
Inense voice, smali, probing eyes, pince-nez, and a nervous, hesicant
smile, Morgenthan was the son of Woodrow Wiison®s ambassador 1o
Turkey in World War 1. He leamed early in life that the land was his
answer w0 the quest for a decent life in a carrapt society. He became
obsessed with farming and, a1 the age of wenty-two, in 1913, bor-
rowed morey from his father w buy a thousand acres at East Fishkill,
Lhrtchess County, New York, in the Hudson Valley, whem: he be-
came Frankiin D. Roosevelt™s neighbor. During World War I ke and
Roosevelt formied an intimate friendship. Elinor Morgenthan became
very close to her near namesake, Eleaner Roasevelt. While Roosevelt
soared i the polifeal stratosphere, Morgenthau remained rooted in
his property. In the early 1920s he published a newspaper called The
American Agricudneriss that pushed for government credits for farm-
ers. When Roosevelt became povernor of New Yerk in 1928, he
appointed Morgenthau chairmman of the Agricultural Advisory Com-
missioan. Mozgenthau showed great flair and a passionate commitment
10 the cause of the sharecropper.

Legend has it that on a freezing winter day in 1933, FDR and
Morgenthaw met and talked on the bordefine of their two farms.
Morgenthay is supposed (o have said (o Reosevell, *‘Life is geling
slow around here.'” And FDR replied, “*Hency, how would vou like
to be Secretary of the Treasury?*”

What he lacked in knowledge of economics, Morgenthau rapidly
made up in his Jeffersonian principles and rale as keeper of the public
canscience. Clase to a thousand volumes of his official diades in the
Roosevelt Memorial Library at Hyde Park give a vivid portait of his
inspired condocting of his high office. He was aided by an able staff,




4 TRADING WITH THE ENEMY

which he ran with benign bot military precision. w.:m mosk trusted
aide was his Assistan Secretary, Hany Dexter .._EEE. LInlike Mor-
senthau, White came from humble origins. Jewish alsg, he was die
ME_E of peaniless Russian immigrant parents ﬁ_:m_ were consumed
with a hatred of the czanst regime. White's eatly __wqm.ﬁmm a m_dEmmHﬁ
this shont, energetic. keen-fuced man fought to help his wmﬁmm_m :sﬂ-
ware business succeed, finally forging a career as an ecoromist with
the aid of a Harvard scholarship and a professorship at Lawrence
Colleze, Wisconsin. He was opinionated and mn:.mczmnmmn to a u.m-
%nm.r}::.u:m__ he was frequently accused num @mﬁm a communist
sympathizer, he was in fact simply an old-fashioned Hberal drven by
_.mm ancestral memaories of Russian impenalism. Ny ,

[t is unfartunate that Morgenthau did not appoint .EEE as his rep-
resentative at BIS meetings, but While was tao valuable in Washing-
ton. Insicad, Morgenthau sent die more gquestionabke Mede Cochran
o investigate the BIS. Cochran was on loan o Hummmﬁw“ mBE,E.n
State Department; he represented the State Department’s sophisti-
cated neutralism before (and during) the war, Cochran became Sec-
retary of the American Embassy in Pans, working direcdy E-m.mn
Roosevelt s fiend the duplicitous, Tallevrand-tike Ambassador 5,5-
liam Bullin. Cochrmm spent most of his tme in Basle conveying
(o hoth Morgenthau and Cordell Hull details of what the BIS was up
to. Very much opposed 1o White—indeed, e_m.u_n.ﬁ_w. u..u|ﬁ.u_nwah wag
sympathelic with the BIS and to the Nazis, as his various Emaeﬂunm
made clear. Morgenthau took Cochran's political _samnn_m,np,m EH_.,_._ a
desree of skepticism, but continued to use him over While's oljjec-
tions because he knew the Germans would trust Cochmun and SH,_amm
much in him. Day after day, Cochiran Junched with Schmitz. mn:zw_n_.nﬁ
Funk, Emil Puhl, and the other Germans on the BIS board, obtaining
a ¢lear picture of the BIS's plans for the fumre. .

Tn March 1938, when the MNazis marched into Vienna, much of the
cold of Austria was looted and packed into vaulls controlled by the
Bank for International Settlements. The Nazi board members Eqwﬁm
anyv discussion of the transaction at the BIS summil meetings in mm-
sle. Cochean, in his memoranda © Morpentlizu, failed w score this
outrageous act of theft. The zold flowed into the Reichshank under
_L,nu.w.“ in the special charge of Reichshank vice-president and BIS
dircetor, Eroil Puh!, On March 14, 1939, Cochran wrote (0 Margen-
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thau. [ have known Pull for several vears, and he is 2 veteran and
etficient officer.™ He also praised Waither Funk.

His dming was not good. Cne day later. Hitler Tollowed his forces
into Prague. The storm troops amested the directors of the Crech
Nakional Bank and held them at gunpoint, demanding that they yield
up the $48 million gold reserve that represented the national beasure
of that beleaguered country. The Czech directors hervously  an-
nounced that they had already shified the gold to the BIS with in-
Stractions that it be forwarded w0 the Bank of England. This was an
act of great najveté. Montagu Norman, the eccenidc, Vandvke-
bearded govemor of the Bank of England, who liked to travel the
world disguised as Professor Skinner in a black opera cloak. was a
rabid supporrer of Hitler.

On orders from their German captors, the Crech directors asked
the Dutch BIS pzesident, J. W. Beyen. to retumn the mold 0 Basle.
Beven held an anxious discussion with BIS general manager Roger
Aubain of the Bank of France. The resull was that Beyen cailed Lon-
don and instructed Nomman o return the gold. Nomman instapily
obliged. The gold flowed imo Betlin for use in buwing essenti] stra-
tegic materiais toward a future war.

There the mater might have been buried had it not been for a
young, very bright. and jdealistic London journalist and economist
named Paul Einzig, who had been tipped off to the tmnsaction by a
contact # the Bank of England. He published (he story in the Finan-
ciaf News. The slory caused a sensation jn Londen. Einzig heid a
hasty meeting with maverick Labour Member of Pasdiament George
Strauss. Strauss through Einzig began invest igating the rmateer.

Henry Morgenthau teiephoned Sir John Simon. British Chanecllar
of the Excheguer, on a Sundav might in an effort to determine what
wias going on. Merle Cochran had telegraphed him with & character-
istic whitewash of the BIS and an outright dismissal of Einzigs
charges that the BIS was a Nazi outfit. Sir John said wcily an the
transatlantic wire, *'1'm in the country, Mr. Secretary. We are en jov-
ing our dinner. It is not our custom tor do business by telephone . ™"

“Well, Sir Jolin,” Morgenthay replied, “we’ve been doing busi-
ness by telephone aver here for almast forty years!™

Sir John Siman continued to dodge Morgenthau s questions, On
May 15, George Stmuss asked Pome Minister Neville Chamberain,
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Sy it true. sir- thal the national treasure of ﬁ_w.nm:_umrueuﬂm is Deing
piverl 10 Sermany? M is nol. T the —...:Em.u_.EEm.m_. mdn:_m_n. ﬁ_zm_:.
w.mlmm: was 4 major shincholder in hE_um:m.H Chemical Industries,
partnet of £.G. Farben whase Hermann Schmitz was ou the board of
the BIS. Chamberlain's reply threw E.n Commens intd an uproar.
Eirzio refused to ket go. He was conwvinced that Zoﬂﬂ,un :ma, lrans-
_.Eqa..mr the money tlegally in coliusion with Sir lohn Simon. Simon,
in answer (0 4 guestion from Stranss, denied any knowledge of the
:EH”.H“_H dav. Finzig tackled Sir Henrv mﬁwama?.u prominett politi-
cal figure. Strakosch refused to disclose the details of the conversa-
tion he had had with Simon. But Strakosch finafly cracked and
admétied that Simon had discussed the transfer of the Czech gold.

Einzig was jubilant. He called Strauss with the news. Strauss put
4 further question 10 Sir John Simen in a debaie on May 2. .Dn_n_o
argin, Simon hedged. Winston Churchill was the leader of & viokent
cmm_mnm:ﬁ on the waforiunate Chancellor of the Exchequer.

Maorgendiau demanded ta know more. Cochran’s Fnﬁ_, fromy Hasle
dated May 9 and recebved May [7 brushed over the issue ance more.
Cochmm wrole,

There Is an entirely cordial atmosphere at Basle: mos of 1he centml
backers bave known cach other for gsany vears, and these H:.amnnm are
ejovable as well a5 profitable to them. I have had E__mm. with EH.E
them. The wish was expressed by some of them that iheir respective
statesimen might quit harling invectives s each other, get together on 4
tishing top with President Roosevell or to the Wodd's FFair, avercome
their various prides and complexes, and coter inio & mood that would
ke campanatively sirmple the solution of many of the present palitical
problems.

This picture of good cheer scarcely convinced Eo_.mnm_rmc_.ﬁ_n
May 31, Associated Prese reponted from Switzerdand that transactions
were completed between the BLS and the Bank of England and the
Czech gold was now fitmly in Berdin.

During World War I, Einzig. who had never forzotten the n.mnn:
gold affar. run into J. W. Beyen in London and asked him if he
would now admit what had taken place. Beven said smoothly, ‘1t is

s
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all echnical. The gold never left Lardon, Einzig was amazed. He
wrute an apology to Beven in his book of memoirs, I the Center af
Things.

The Tuth was (hat the goid had not had to feave London in order to
be available in Berlin. The arrangement berween the BIS and its meniber
banks was diat (ransactions were not nomally made by shipping
money—dangerous and difficult when the shipments would show up
in customs manifests—bul simply by adjusting the gold deposit ac-
counts. Thus, all Montapy Nomman had (o do was o authorize Beyen
0 deduct $40 million fiom the Bank of England’s holdings in Basle
and replace the same amount from the Czech National Bank holdings
in London,

By 1939, the BIS had invested millions in Germany, while Kurt
von Schedder and Emil Pull deposited large sums in looted gold in
the Bank. The BIS was an Instrument of Hitler, but its continuing
existence was approved by Great Britain even afier that COUTUTY Went
o war with Germany. and the British divector Sir Otto Niemeyer,
and chairman Montagy Noman, remained in office throughout the
wWar.

In the middle of the Czech gold controversy. Thomas Harrington
McKiittrick was appointed president of the Bank, with Emil Meyer of
the Swiss National Bank as chairman. White-hatred, pink-cheeked,
smooth and soft-spoken. McKinrick was a perfect fromt man for The
Fraternity, an associate of the Morgans and an abie member of the
Wall Street estahlishrment. Bomn in St Louis. be went to Harvard.
whete he edited the Crimson, gradualing as bacheior of ars in 1911.
He worked his way up to hecome chairman of the British- American
Chamber of Commerce, which numbered among it members several
Nazi sympathizers. He was a direcior of Lee, Higginson and Co.,
and made subsiaptial Joans to Gemany. He was fuent in German,
French, and Italian, Though he spent all of his career inland. he wrote
learned papers on the life and habils of seahirds. His wife, Marjorie,
and his four metty davghers, one of whom was ar Vassar and a
liberal enemy of the BIS, were popular on both sides of the Atlantic.

Early in 1940, McKinrick traveied o Berlin and held a meeting at
the Reichshank with Kurt von Schrdider of the BIS and the Gestapo.
They discussed doing business with each other’s countdes il war be-
tween them shouid come.
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Morzenthan grew more aggravated by MeKittrick and the BIS a5
the war in Europe contitieed, bur did not insist he be withdrawn, He
was forced to rely wpon Treasury Secret Service reporis rather than
upon Cochran for informiation on the BIS's domgs. He leamed that
in June 1940, Belgian BIS director Alexandre Galopin had inter-
cepled 5228 million in gold sent by the Belgian government to the
Barnk of France and had shifted it to Dakar in North Africa and thence
the Reichsbank and Emil Puhl.

The Bank of Beigium's exiled representatves in New York sued
the Bauk of France, epresented by New York Slate Senator Fredede
Couder, to recover their gold. Ironically. they were represented hy
Iohn Foster Dulles, whose law firm, Suellivae and Cromrwell, had
represented LG, Farben. The Supreme Cowrt ruled in faver of the
Bank of Belgivm, ordering the Bank of France w pay out frowmt its
holdings in the Federzl Reserve Bank.

But when Hitler occupied all of France in November 1942, State
Senator Couden siepped in with the excose that since Germany had
absarbed the Bank of France, that bank no longer had any power of
appeal 2gainst the verdict. He pretended that contact with France was
no longer possible. while fully aware of the fact that he himsell was
stifl retained by the Bank of France. He claimed that only a Bank of
France representative could allow the release of funds from the TFed-
eral Reserve Banlke. As a result, the gold remained in MNagi hands.

On May 27, 1941, Secretary of State Cordell Hul], at Morgen-
than 's suggestion, telegraphed U.S. Aumbassador John G. Winant in
London, asking for a report on the continuing relationship between
the BIS and the Botish govemment. It infurnaied Morgenthau that
Britain remaieed a member of 3 Nazi-controlled financial institution:
Montagu Morman and Sir Q4o Niemeyer of (he Bank of England
were still fimmly on the bossd. Winant had [unch with Niemeyer. He
gave an approving report of the meeting on Yune 1.

Niemeyer had said that the BIS, **guaranteed immurily {rom con-
strafnt in time of war,”" was still "‘legal and intact. ”* He admitted that
Britain retained an interest in the Bank through MeKitrick twenty-
one mondis atter war had broken out. He szid that he was in touch
with the Bank thoough the Britsh Treasury and that Bridsh Censor-
ship examined all of the mail by his own wish. Asked about the isspe
of the Czechoslovakian zold, Niemeyer admitted, ““Yes, it had a bad
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public press. However. that was due o the mishandling of the ques-
tion it Parliament. " He frther 2dmited that the sovernment of Great
Britain was stii] a client of the Bank and had accepted a dividend
from it. The dividend. it scarcely needs adding, came largely from
Nazi soutces. Niemeyer said that fie believed the British should con-
tinue ihe association for the duration as well as lend the Bank dheir
tacit approval. “If anly for the reason that a useful role in post-war
settlements might laer have an effect.™

Niemeyer wenl on, Il would be of no use at this time to raise
difficalt legal questions with respect to the relationship of the varians
countries overtun by the Germans. - McKiitrick should stay in
Switzerland because he s guardian of the Bank against any
danger that might accur . . . McKinrick might want 1o gel in touch
with the Amenican Minister in Swizerland and explain his problem
ko him, "

On Iuly 13, 1941, Jvar Rooth. governor of the Bank of Sweden,
wrote to his (nend Merle Cochran—whe had rererned 10 Washing-
ton—about the latest general meeting of the Bank and the lunchezan
at the Basle restaurant Les Trois Rols aflerward. He said that it was
agreed at lunch that McKittrick should soon travel to the United States
to explain BIS's posidon to “‘vour Amicrican frends . . . [in the}
very correct and neutral way.”” Rooth continued, **I hope that our
friends abroad will anderstand the political necessity of commiting
the Germans 10 send a division to Finland by railway throwgh Swe-
den.™

On February 5, 1942, aimost two months afier Pead Hathor, the
Reichsbank and the German and Malian governments approved (he
orders that permitted Thomas H. McKittrick to remain in charge of
the B1S antil the end of the war. One document of authorization
included the significant statement, ‘“MeKitrick’s opinions are safely
known to us. " McKidrck gsraetully arranged 2 loan of several mil-
lion Swiss gold francs o the Nazl sovernment of Poland and the
collaborative government of Hungary. Mast of the board s members
traveled (reely across fromtiers throughout the war for meetings in
Paris, Berlin, Rome, or (though this was denied) Basle. Hjalmar
Schacht spent nmch of thie war in Geneva and Basle pulling strings
behind the scenes. However, Hitfer comrectly suspected him of intrigt-
g for the overthrow of the present resime in favor of The Erater-
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nity and imprisoned him late i the war. From Pearl Hatbor on, the
BIS remained listed in Rand McNally's directory as Cocmespondent
Bank for the Federal Reserve Bank in Washington.

in London. Labour Member of Padiament Georpe Srauss kept
hemmering away at the BIS. In May 1242 he challenged Sir John
Simon’s successor, Chancellar af the Exchequer Sip Kingsley Wood,
on the mater. Waood meplied, "This country hias various rights and
intevests in the BTS undec our intemational trust agreements between
the various govermments. [L would ot be in our best miemst W sever
connections wida the Rank.™

{iearge Strauss and other Labour members of Parliament insisted
upon knowinge why the Bank's dividend was still being divided equally
m wartime amaong the British, Geonan, Japanese, and American
banks. [t was not until [944 that they discovered Gemmany was re-
ceiving mos of the dividends.

On September 7. 1942, Thamas H. MeKiurick issued the Bank's
first annual report after Pead Hacbor, He went through the bizame
pravedure of addressing an empty room with the report to be able 1o
sav 0 Washington that aone of the Axis directors was present. In
fact, af! of the Axis dicectors received the meport soon afterward and
the mined executive stafl of warring nations discussed it through the
rest of (he day. The report was pourely Nazi o content. Tt assumed an
immediate peace in Germany s favor and 2 distribution of American
2ald 10 stabilize the curencies of the United States and Euvope. This
was a line peddled by every German je ader starting with Schacht. When
Strauss wld the House of Commons on October 12 that the report
had delighted Hitler and Girtog, Sic Kingsley asserted (hat he had
not seen il Strauss went o, 't is clear some form of collaborarion
between the Nazis and the Allies exists and that appeasement still
lives o time of war, ™

tn the summer of 1942, Pierre Pucheu, French Cabinet member
and direcior of the privately owned Worms Bank in Nazi-occupied
Pads, had a meeting st the BIS wity Yves Bréart de Boisanger. Puche
1old Boisanger that plans were afom for General Dwight D. Eisen-
hower @ jpvade Nosth Aftica. He had obtained (his information
thrawgh a frcnd of Robent Murphy. ULS. State Depanment represen-
wtive in Vichy. Boisanger contucted Kun von Schrader. Immedi-
ately, Schrdder and mber Gerrmnan bankers, along with their French
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vorrespondeats, wranstermed 9 hillion gold france via the BIS w Al
giers. Anticipating German defeat. they were secking a killing in dol-
lar exchamge. The collaboratonists hoosted their holdings from $350
to 5325 nullion wmost overnight. The deal was made with the colly-
sion of Thomas H. MeKitrick. Hermann Schimitz, Emil Puhl, and the
Japanese directars of the BIS. Apcther collaborator in the scheme
was one of the Vatcan s espionage group who leaked the secret 10
athers tn the Mitler High Command—according to a statement made
ender oath by Ghto Abetz to American officials on June 21, 1946,

It the spring of 1943, McKiurick, ignoring the normal restrictions
of war, undertoak a remarkable journey. Despite the fact he was nei-
ther Ttalian nar diploniat and that Italy was at war with the United
States, he was issued an lalian diplomatic visa to wavel by train and
auto to Rorne. At the border he was met by Himmler's special police,
who gave him safe conduct, MeKiurick proceeded ro Lisbon, whence
be traveled with tmmunity (fom U-boars by Swedish ship to the United
States. In Manbattan in April he had meetngs with Leon Fraser. his
old friend and BIS predecessor, and with the heads of rhe Federal
Reserve Bank. Then McKinidek traveled 10 Berlin on 4 U.S. passport
to provide Emil Puhl of the Reichsbank with secret intelligence on
finuncial problems and high-level amtitudes in the United States.

On March 26, 1943, liberal Congressman Jerry Voorhis of Cali-
fomia entered a resolution in the House of Representatives calling for
an investigation of the BLS. including *‘the reasons why an American
reiains the position as president of this Bank being wsed 10 further the
designs 2nd purposes of Axis powers.” Randolph Paul. Treasury
counsel, sent up the resclution to Henry Morgenthau on April 1. 1943,
saving, I think vou will be intcrested in reading the attached copy
of [ic}.”" Morgenthan was interested, but he made one of his few
mistakes and did nothing. The matier was not even considerad by
Congress.

Washington Stme Congressman John M. Coffee objected and in-
toduced a similar resolution in Fanuary 1944, e shouted, angrily.
“The Nazi governnent has 8% million Swiss zold francs an deposit
in the BIS. The majority of the board s made up of Nazi officials.
Yet American money i5 being deposited in the Bank.™

Coflee pointed ol that the American and British sharcholders were
receiving dividends from Nazi Germany and Japan and that the Ger-
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mans and Jzpanese were receiving dividends {rom Amerzca. The res-
olution was tabied.

There the matter might have lain had it not been for an energetic
Norwegian economist of part-German origin named Wilhelm Keil-
hau. He was infuriated by Washington's continuing refosal to break
wilh the Bank and its scceptance of a flagrant financial allance with
it couNUy’s eNeImies.

Keilhae introduced 5 resolution at the lntemstional Monetary Con-
ference al Bremon Woods, Mew Hampshime, on July [, 1944, He
calied for the BIS to be dissolved “‘at the exiesi possible moment.™
However, pressure was brought to bear on him 10 withdraw a second
resolution, and he was forced to vield. The secomd resoiution called
for an investigation into the books and records of the Bank during
the war. Had such an investigation taken place, the Nazi-Anerican
connection would undoubtedly have been exposed.

Bankers Winthrop Aldrich and Edward E. {Ned} Brown of the
Atnetican delegation and the Chase and First Nadonal banks tried
fechly to veto Keilthao s resolution. They were supporied by the Dutch
delegatiom and by J. W, Beven of Holland, the farmer president of BIS
and negotiator of the Czech gold transference. despile the fact Hiat
Holland's looted gold had gone to the BIS. Leon Fraser of the First
Nadonal Bank of New York stood with them. So, alas, did the Brit-
1sh delegation, sirongly suppornted by Anthony Eden and the Foreign
Qffice. After imidal support, the disunguished economist Lord Keynes
was swaved into contirming the Botish official oppositton calliog for
a2 posiponement of the Bank's dissolution vntil postwar—when the
establishoment of an international monery fond would be complated.
Keynes's wife, the former Lyvdia Lopokova, the greal star of the Di-
arhilev Ballet whe had made her debut opposite Niinsky, was a
member of a wealthy czarisi family whe influenced her husband to-
ward delaying de BIS's dissoluton and a tabling of all discussion of
looted pold—according to Hamy Dexter Whire.

Dean Acheson, representing the State Depadment in the American
delegation, was fimnly in Winthrop Aldrchi’s camp as a former Stan-
dard il lawyver, smoothly using delaying tactics as the master of
compromise he was. The manutes of the mecings between Morgen-
thau. Bdwurd E. Brown, Acheson, and other micmbers of 1he dele-
eation an July 1819, 1944, at the Mount Washington Hotel at Bretton
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Woods show Acheson arguing for retention of the BIS until after the
war. He used the spurious arpument that if McKinrck resigned and
the Bank was declared fllegal by the Unfted States sovernmnent, all
of the gold holdings in it owned by American shareholders #..u:E ££0
direet 10 Berlin, via a Nazi president. Acheson must surelv have
known that the gold was already deposited for the Axis via the BIS
pariner. the Swiss National Bank, which shared the same chairmag.
Acheson also argued that the Bank would fielp restore Germany post-
war. That at least was (rue. 1

Senator Charles W, Tobey of New Hampshire emerges with sreat
credit from the minutes of the meetings at the Mount ﬁﬁm_.n.:mﬁoﬁ. At
the July 18 meeting he said, savagely, to the company in general,
.,..__.__EE ¥ou e doing by vour sifence and inaction is aiding and abet-
ung the enemy. = Morgenthay agreed. Acheson, rattled, said that the
BIS must g¢o on as “‘a mater of farciem policy.’™ At least there was
a degree of Bonesty in that. Morgenthau felt that the BIS “*should be
disbanded because to disband it would be sood propagzada (or the
United Srates, ™

There were jocular moments during the discussion on Julv 19. Dr.
Mabel Newcomer of Vassar said that she “‘would not &m.me.n the
Bank.” Morgenthay asked her cheerfui Iy wheiher McKiorhck's
daughter was one of her students, She replied in the affinnative. Mar-
genthau said. “*She has inforined my davghter that she is agajnst the
Bank."” Dr. Newcomer replied, ““She didn’t inform me, mm.umﬁ._ that
she wanted her father to come home—so she ight favor the disso-
hition! ™

Everyone laughed. Morgenthau said, “She is very cute. She has
read this article in PAf about #t, and she said [referring o an attack
on the BLS in that liberal publication] T think PAf is right and fader
1= wrang. " Morgenthan threw back his head and laughed again.
“That is what Vassar does 10 those gids!”™ )

Under pressurcs fran Senator Tobey and from Harry Dexter White,
Margenthau stated that Leon Fraser, McKitirick, and Beyen all had
sympathies ““that run there.”" In other words, in the direction of Ger-
many. He sazid,

1 n_.._._mr in the eyes of the Germans, they would consider this as the kind
of thing which can go on, and it holds out 10 them a haps , perticular]y
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to propie like Dr. Schacht and Dr, Funk. thai the sume [associations]
will continue [between Ammerca snd Germany] after the war, It
sitengthens the positian of peaple like Mr. Leon Fraser and some very
H._.:ﬁ_uﬂman people Tike Mr. Winthrop Aldrick, wha have openly oppesed
thix dizsolution.

Dican Acheson, fighting hard with Edwand E. Brown at his ,...”EF
said he ““would have wo take ihe matter up ..”.,E,. Cordell w.__::. He
was sure Hull would want the BIS retained since Hull had approved
its existence up till now. Morgenthau ﬁ.,.o_zmm.ma ta call Hell, who had
heonme acwiely embarrassed by press criticism. Adler four years __g.m_q
tacitly approving the BIS. Hell told Echm":_rm.: fue nm:r& for s dis-
solution. Morgenthau telephoned hom and said. :.ﬁ.wmn ahout jn.....
Kittrick?™™ Huli repited icily, “*Let him read u_.i..:ﬁ it in the papers!
Later, he repeated angrily w Achesan, “Let him read about it in the

Rk

_,mﬂﬂmma: went 1o see the Brtish delegadon on July 20. Closely
connected 10 high-level politicians in England. he was well H.mm_,ama
in Whitechall. Lord Keynes {elt that the BIS might be Sc.nc_n.Ew.
aholished if Acheson were beaten by the WMorgenthau Fﬂ.ﬁu. Al
though Keynes was advanced i years m:ﬂ had 2 heart E:E:a? he
and his wife abruply left a British summit meeting and. mm&.ﬁm the
elevator jammed with confencncers, ran up (heee Mights of stars and
kpocked on the Morgenthaus” door. Elmor Morgenthau was aston-
ished to see the normally imperturbahle British economist trembling,
red-faced. and swoating with rage.

Kevnes repeated. as calmly as he couid, that Erm,.“ he was upset
shout was that be felt that the BIS should be kept going wnti] a new
world bank and an international mopetary fund were sel up. Lady
Kevnes alsa ureed Margenthau to let the Bank go on. Finallv, mmﬂmumm.,
mamxm:m that Margenthan was under pressurt o Emma_u,..m the Em, shified
his ground and ook the position that Biitain was in the forefrom of
those who wanted the BIS to go—Dbut only in good time. Enm.mmdm__mc
insistad the BIS muost oo “as soon s possible.”” At midnight an ex-
hausted Kevnes said he would go along with the decision.

Kevnes mmE:Ha to his mooims and comtacted his fellow delegates
from the Fareign Office. The result of this late-night meeling was
that he largely maE_uEEEE his original agreement and at 2 a.M. senl
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a lever by hand to the Morgenthars” sujie aga caliing for the BIS
i go on for the duration.

Next day, over the objections of Edward E. Brown and the preat
irritation of Dean Acheson, Maorgenthau’s delesraifon approved the
disposal of the BIS.

Immediately siier the liguidation of the BIS was vated, MeKitck
did everything possible 10 combat it. He sent leters ta Margenthag
and the Chancellor of 1he Exclhequer, Sir John Anderson. in London.
He stated that when the war ended, huge sums would hive to be paid
to Germany by the Alics and the BIS would have 1o siphon thege
through. There was no mention of the millians awed by Germany 1o
the Allies and the conquered nations. Harry Dexter White sent a
memoranduny o Morsenthan dated March 22, 1945, saving, “‘Mc-
Kitrick's lelters are part of an obvious effort to stake out a clajm for
the BIS in the postwar world. As such, they are, in effect, a chal-
lenge 10 Bretton Woods, . . . The other sigratories to the Brenon
Woods Act shouid be advised of the BIS action, should be reminded
of Bretton Woods® resolution Number Five, and should be advised
that we are not answering (e letiers

The same day. Treasucy's indispensable Orvis A. Schunide held a
meeting with MeKinrick in Basle. His comrment on McK ik s Te-
marks was sharp: *'l was suiprised that 4 voluttary recitul intended as
a defense of the BIS could be such an indictment of that institution.””
When Schmidt asked McKinrick wh ¥ the Germans had been willing
w allow the BIS to e run 25 it had and had continued 1o make
payments to the BIS, MeKittrick replied, In order 10 understand.,
one must first understand the strength of the confidence and trust that
the centml bankers had had in cach ather and the strength of cheir
determination to play tie pame squarely. Secondly. one must realize
that in the complicated German finageial selup. centgin men who have
therr céntral bankers” point of view are in vEry str2legic pasitions and
can influence the conduct of the German Government with respect @
these maiers, ™

McKittrick went on to say that 1here was a Hile gronp of financiers
wha had (elt fromn the beginning that Crermany would lose the war:
that after defeat they might enierge 10 shape Germany s destiny, That
ey would “maiwain their contacts and 1rust with other Imporiant
hanking elements so that they would be in a stronger pasition o the
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postwar period w negotiate loans for Hﬁc:mzﬁnmﬁs of ﬁnﬁﬂmzu._....

McKitrick declined to name all save one of the Lite group, taking
particular care to hide the name of Kwrt von Schrdder. Since he had
o name someone, he selected Emil Publ. Neveriheless, _..n_ _.,.E_mumumm
that Puld “*docs not share the Nazi point of view ™ _GH..,H_E Schmidt
was nol deceived by this. MHe knew perfecily well thar it was Puhl
who had audionzed the looting of Allied gold and its transferal 1o
Switzerlapd and who had been talking to McKiugick the day before
in Basle aboul thar very subject.

Schmidt closed in. He asked McKinrick whether be Knew what
tiad happened to the Belgian gold deposiied E. the Bank of Tﬁﬁnm.
Me Kitmick replied: T know where it 1s. 1 will nn.:.u,ﬁz. But it s
extremely important that word does not leak out. It is in the vaults of
the Reichshank, Evidently le realized he had said too =._.gn_.._”n E,E
he had Iet slip his own role in the mansaction. He added wmmﬁ.__w“ . ‘I'm
sure it will be in Berlin when you get there. Puhif is :i_ﬁ:nm it for
rerum o0 the Belgians after the war.”” This Eﬁ_.mn& lie scarcely
impressed Schmidt. The gold was alveady in Swizerand.

MeKinrick did not end these. He azdmited that the anﬁ._mnm __m._u
sent gold to the BIS and said. ‘“When the war is afn_‘.uéz.: find it
all carefully segregated and documented. Anything that’s _umm.n looted
can be identified. When gold was offered ro us, I thought it would
be better to take it and hold it rather than ta refuse it and let the
Germens keep it for other uses.™

MhcKinrick contineed ., “'I'm 50 sorry [ can't ask vou to take a look
at the books and reeords of the Bank. When you do see them at 1he
end of the war, you will appreciate and approve of ihe role that 1 and
the BIS have plaved during the war."” They were, of course, never
eleased. , .

Orvis Schmidt went on to see the axecutives of the Swiss Natonal
Bank, which maintzined its partnership in the BIS and shared the
same chairman, Emst Weber. Schmide rajsed the queston of the looed
vold: the 3378 million in gold of Belgium, Crechoslovakia, Holland,
and other geeupied countries, including the weasure of the Jews. He
Imew that by a technicality the BIS no longer siphoned the gold
theaugh directly but sent it to 115 associated eammarked account at the

Swiss Narional Bank.

A Bank for ATl Reasons 17

The Swiss National Bank officjals told Schmjdt that in order 10 be
sure they were not obtaining looted goid, they had requested a mem-
ber of the Reichsbank, whom they “regarded to be tustwordyy,’ o
ceriify that each parcel of gold diat they purchased had not heen
looted, Schmidi asked who that person might be. He was noi sur-
prised when the dircetors of the Swiss National Bank informed him
that (hat personage was none other than Emil Fuhl, who had Just left
ahead of his amival. At the Nuremberg Trials in May 1946, Waither
Funk, stil listed as a BIS director, testified that Pab! had American
connectians and had been offered 2 major post at Chase jn New York
shonly before Pearl Harbor. Funk admitted that Puhl was in charge
of gold shipments. He admitted receiving the goid reserve of the Czach
National Bank and the Belgian gold, and he added, *'It was very
difficult w0 pay {in foreign exchange] in gold. . . . Only in Switzer-
bared conld we still do busingss through changing gold into foreign
currency. ” Fook said that Puhl had informed him in 1942 that the
CGestapo had deposited sold coins, and other gold, from the concen-
tration camps, in the Reichshank. Puhl had been in charge of this.
Jewels, monocles, speciacle frames, watches, cigaretie cases, and gold
dentures had flowed into the Reichsbanic_ supplied by Pohl trom
Heinrich Himvmler's resources. They were melled down inta gold bars;
he did not add how many bars were marked for shipment to Switzer-
land. Each g0ld bar weished 20 kilo grams. An affidavit was read 1o
Funik, signed by Puhl. confirming the facts. Publ stated that Funk
had made arrapgements with Himmler 1o receive the gold.

Funk unsuccessfully sought to disclaim responsibility (or the
scheme. He dismissed Puhl's charges that the gold was plowed into
a revolving {und. Faced with 3 fim shewing asx many as seventy-
seven shipments of gold teeth. wedding rin 25, and other Ioot at one
tume, he steck to his story. At one stage he szid that the loot was
bromght ta the Reichsbank by mistake! His les became 5o absusd thar
they were laughable. When prosecutor Thomas E. Dodd said (o him,
“There was blood on this gold. was there not, and you knew 1his
since 19427 Funk replied weakly, **I did not undemstand .

On May 13, 1946, Puh! took the wimess stand. Pohi claimed ‘that
fie had ohiected to the shipments as “‘inconvenient™ and ““uncom-
fortable " —a curous description. He admitted 1har his Hobjections’’

WRwH W
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were “subordinaled to the broader consideration of assisting the 55,
all the more—and this must be emphasized—bacause these things
were far the account of the Reich.™

The prosecuting counisel read items from a report that included the
statement. ‘“One of the firsi hints of the sources of |the poid]} oc-
curred when it was noticed that a packet of bills was stamped with a
rabber stamp. ‘Lublin.” This occurred some tme early io 1943, An-
gther hint came when sume iems bare the stamp. “Auschwiz. ™ We
all koew thal these places were the siies of conceniration camps. It
was i the tenth delivery, in November 1942, (hat dental gold ap-
peared. The guantity of the dental gold became unusvally grear. ™

In Octobar 1945 the Sepule Commiliee on Mililry Affairs pro-
duced further evidence of Puhl’s activities. His letiers to Funk {rom
Switzerand in March 1943 were read ont. They showed his desperate
and successful cffors to overcame the effecis of the misston that
month headed by Lauchlin Curde and Oovis Schmidl, Pull bad con-
stanlly hammered away at McKitrick and the Swiss Maiional Bank
in onder 1@ secure the Row of the looted gold of Europe. McKiaTick,
bristally exposed by the Breton Woods Confernes s Norwesian del-
eoation. had—ihe letters showed—panicked. seeking to aveid dirct
receipt of the gold. Instead, the Swiss National Bank, as BIS share-
holder, would take &t ioto its vaulls. Bul in order 10 camouftare the
receipi of iL, since the Swiss National Bank lhiad promised the Amer-
icans they would not receive it, the Swiss National Bank had dis-
guised it as paymenls w the Amercan Red Cross and e German
legations in Switzedand. Them was a starkly ironical humeor in this,
Gencral Robert €. Davis. head of the New Yok chapter of the
Amernican Red Cross. was also chaioman of the part-Nazi network
Tremsradio. As late as 1943, the German Lepation in Berne was buy-
ing Standard ()] for its heating and automaohiles, which were sup-
plied and repaiied by U.S. subsidiaries. Tong of gold, thues laundered,
poured iinto the Swiss Mational Bank in thase last months of the war.

In 1948, under great pressure from Treasuey, 1he Bank for Inter-
nadenal Settlements was compelled o hand aver a mere 34 million
in looted rold 3 the Allies.

Despite the fact that the evidence of the Puhl-McKiurck conspir-
oy was ovenwhelining, McKiorck was ziven an imporant post by
the Rocketellers and Winthrop Aldrich: vice-president of the Chase

A Bank for All Beasans 1w

National Bank. a position he occupied suceessfully for severmi vears
alter the war. In 1950 he invited Emil Puhf to the Unied States as
his honered guest. And the Bank for Tnternational Sewlements, de-
spite the Bretton Woods Resolution, was not dissolved.




The Chase Nazi Account

It was only appropridte that Thomas Hamrington McKitnick shoold
have been s¢ amply rewarded by Winthrop Aldoch, John D. Racke-
feller's brother-in-law. because Joseph J. Larkin, one of Aldheh's
mast frusted vice-presidents. in charge of European affairs, figured
promiinently in The Fratemity.

The Rockefellers’ Chase National Bank (later the Chase Manhat-
tan) was e richest and most powerful Anancial instimtion in the
United Stater at the time of Pearl Harbor. The Rockefellers owned
Standad il of MNew fersey. (he German accounts of which were
siphoned through their own bank. the Chase. as well as through the
independent National City Bank of New York, which also handled
Standard, Sterding Products, General Aniline and Film, SKF, and ITT,
whose chiel. Sosthenes Belin, was a director of the N.C.B. Two
execytives of Standard Gii's German sobsidiary were Karl Linde-
tnann and Emil Heifferich, prominent fgores in Himmier's Cixle of
Friends of the Gestapo—irs clief financiers—and close [riends and
calieagues of the BI3"s Baron von Schrdder.

Larkin kept the Chase Bank oper not only in the neutral countrics
of Eurgpe and South Amcrica but in Nazi-occupied Paris throughout
World War II. After Pear] Harbor, Chase’s Parls branch provided
tinancial arrangements for the German embassy and Genman busi-
nesses in Pavis. under the ““guidance ™ of Emil Puhl’s right-hand man

The Cliose MNart Acoount af

at the Reichsbank. Hans-Joachim Caesar, and with the fuli aciep-
tance af New York.

tn comumon with mast nembers of The Fruerity. Winthrop Al
dnch was polincally schizophreaie, capable of plaving both ends
against the middle i the interests of Big Money, On the one hand he
Wik 4 most generous supporter of Great Britain in her beleaguered
siite, raising milltons far British war relief in a campaign that in
1941 eamed him audiences ar 10 Downing Streer and Buckinghan
Palace. Yet with great duplicity be tumed 2 blind eve (o Larkin's
contiivances of the Chase interests and banking headquarers in Oc-
copicd Maris.

Joseph I. Larkin resembled Aldrich in his immaculate tailoring.
perfect manners, austere deportment, and in his dedication to The
Fraternity . A distmguished member of a Roman Cathalic familw, he
had received the Order of the Grand Cross of the Knights of Malla
lrorn Pope Pius X1 in 1928, He was an ardent supporter of General
France and, by natural extension, Hitler, Morzenthan first sugpected
hirm as a fascast sympathizer in October 1936, when Femando de las
Rivs. the ambassador of’ Lovalist Spain, dedicuted to Franco’s dafear,
went 10 see Larkin to open an account of $4 million. The account
was w be wsed 10 mise local assistance for e Spanish ZOVCITUTEE,
meleding the Lincoln Brigade. T arkin said finaly that the $4 miliion
account would nuot be allowed,

Larkin went & slep fuvher in the service of fascism. When the
Layalist government Jeposited a similar amount in the Chase Pank
i Pars. Larkin was {urivus with the subordinate who accepred the
aceount, He immediately contaceed the Loyalist emissary in Paris and
had him withdraw the depoesit. Simullaneous!y, with the ERCOUTage-
ment of Schacht, Larkin ook on the Franco accoum and the Reichs-
bank account, though the Reichsbank was under the personal conml
of Hitler. Tn 1942, introducing & book cntitled Parems for Hirler by
Cunther Reimann, the lawver Creckmore Fath wroge:

Since 1he raiddle thirties, whenever 8 Genman business groap wanted
to qake an agreemient with any besiness camcern bevond the borders of
Germamy. it was mguired frst @ osubmit a foll ext of die pop osed
dgreemiem 1o the Reichsbank, The Reicistank rcjecred or newrate gar!
the agreement met its approval. The Reichshank approved no zgTee-
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ment which did nat fit 1w the plans of the Magi State and camy that
staee another step roward ity soal of world domination. lo wiher words,
any Anwtcan firm which resched an agreement or dezlt wirh s German
firm . . . owas dealing . . . oweth Hider himself.®

As war approached, the links between the Rockefelfors and the
Wazi government became mare and more firm. In 1936 the [ Henry
Schréider Bank of New York had entered into a partnership with the
Rockefellers. Schrdder, Rockefeller and Company. Investment Bank-
ers. was formed as paet of an overall company (hat Tine magazine
disclosed as being “the economic booster of the Rome-Berlin Axis.*’
The partners in Schrider. Rockefeller and Company included Avery
Rockefeller, vephew of Jobn .. Baron Brune von Schrdder in
London, und Kurt von Schrider of the BIS and the Gestapo in Co-
logne . Avers Rockefeller owned 42 percent of Schréder, Rocketeller,
and Baron Bruno and his Nazi cousin 47 percent. Their lawyers were
Jotin Foster Dulles and Allen Dulles of Sullivan and Cromwell, Allen
Dalles (bxier of the Qffice of Srategic Services) was on the board of
Schrdder, Funher comnections linked the Paris branch of Chase to
Schrdder as well as the pro-Nazi Worns Bank and Standard Gil of
Iew Jersey in France. Standard (Hl's Paris representatives wee di-
rectors of the Bangque de Pans o1 des Pays-Bas, which had intricate
capnections [0 the Nazis and to Chase.

Six monihs before the war broke our in Europe, Taseph 1. Larkin
trought off his most audacious scheme in the Nazi interest, acting in
collusion with the Schrdder Bonk. Aldrich and the Sehrdders se-
cured na less than $23 tullion Amencan for the use of Germany s
expanding war ecanomy and accompapicd it with a demiled record
(supplied direct o the Chase Bank in Berlin for forwarding o the
Mazi govemment) of the assers and background of ten thousand Nazi
svmpathizers in the United Sunes, The negotiations were engineerad
with the help oi’ Dr. Walther Funk and Emii Publ,

In essence. the Nazi government through the Chase National Bank
offered Nazis in Amerca the oppartunity to Buy marks with dollars
2t g Jiscovnt. The arrangement was open undy 10 (hose who wished
o relurn o Geemany and would use the macks in the interest of the
Mazis. Before any transaction could be made, such persons had to

s Thrazeh, ol vourse, e indispepsehic Emil Pubd.

aa
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vonvinee the Nazi embwssy in Washington that they were bona fide
supporters: of Gennan policy. They were old in pamphics sent om
by ihe Chase Nationali Bank in Marhattan that Garmany cowld affer
ghOMIOUS opportunities 40 thet and that marks would provide 2 hedge
m..mE_an inflation and would have much increased value afier victory
i The expected war,

As 4 pesult, there was a rush an marks . On Febrary (5, 1939,
there was a sunamit meeting at the Chase in New York of Popresen-
tatives of both Chase and Schréder banks on what was Eaown as the
Rickwanderer {Reimmigrant; scheme. Alfred W. Barth was the peT-
sanal representagive of Winthrop Aldrich and Joseph 1. Larkin, while
E. H. Meili of J. Henrv Schrider represented that side af the asso-
ciation. At the meeting the members discussed a propusal that the
Reichsbank should sead a special representative ta the Nuzi consulate
i New York, which seeved as the headyuarters of the Gesapo and
had its accounts at the Chase. The Atercun group decided that they
should not ake such a risk because their importing such & person
might reveal to the American public that they were suppoeling Mazis,
The atinutes shaw that it was decided o “let wel enqugh alone™
and to ¢conduci future business on behalf of Berlin through

the ermployment of numerous agents and sub-agents who operate through
the country. These agents and sub-agents n cooperation with their Mr
spective principals. oursebves, van go 3 long way towards educating
Germmans in exile and those sympathetic to the Nazi canse throush ex-
tensive newspaper adverising campaigns. radio broadcasts, as ..m_m__ as
through literture, erg, |, .

lt iv unanitnously felt that it woeuld be 1o the areatest advanizes of
evervone congerned if ., . Berlin would instroet fhe vanous consu-
lates. i he United Statcs that all inguicies about . . . transactions should
be reizmed o ourselves. whose name shautd ke supplied not ooly to
the various cansular offices in the LS. but alsn o those who inquire
at the consufates in respect to the procedure.

The bankers agreed that special anention shoald be focused on
shopkeepers, factory workers, and others with Jittle muney but great
pewential tor Germany. They should be able-bodied voung men and
wormen of pure Arvan stack. Above ull. the present meeting must
never vome w ithe attention of the Amedean goverdment. The min-
ures of the meeling state: )
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Tle cosuing publicity and the ﬁ%_.,m:cp, E.E has heen ?nw_nm.nm in r_w.“.
wain quarters of this counuy lagainst similar mn_.ﬁﬂ.mm_ mighr H.,cm,,._.H .u
compel our Depariment of State E.n:w@ﬁm a Clearing sYStem m_ﬂ.smr.n
Germany and Americd. under which moefes due w1 Amerjesn ﬂ_n_-
FENY cuch as inheritances. eic.. would :u...ﬁ o be cleared. The resu m.
are op obvious firstly, no bencfis are :wm._,.,._ o accTue to ,.m_ud,,u:u_.
secondly, he final outcome might prove disadvantageous from Ger.
Eny 5 slandpaint.

Thus, the Chase direclors and the barens von Schrdder wese aftaid
thut o Morgenthae discovered the true facts, the U.5. sovernmernt
might dake neasures detdmental 10 the German government . [T was
an act of total collaburation wits the MNazis, .

In May 194) g prominent diamond merchant in New Mn.:ﬁ City,
Leonard Smit. began smuggling commersial and indusirial m_mﬂ.un&
to Nazi Germany through Panama. Smit’s company was Emuannm_._u,
Dwrch, which ﬁ._mnm& it under the provenance of the Nazis, HEH.E.V
stock was in fact owned by the Intematiopal Trading Company, which
was located In Guernsey in the Channel Islands . President Rooseveli
had issued a freezing order precluding the shipment of Eca_w,m 1o
Lurope. especially if these might seem to be 10 the advantage of .:ﬁ
Axis. A few days afer the Smit account was frozen, Chase officials
usblocked the funds at Smit’s request. The funds Rowed out 1o H_..mu-
ama, alawing diamonds o be sent through the Canal Zone (o mmn_m..

On June 17, 194), when France was collapsing. Morgenthau HEN
Roasevell again blocked the French account to prvent money going
1w the enemy. Within howrs of the blocking. somebody at ﬁwmma au-
thonzed the South American branches of the Bangue Francaise o
Nalicome pour FAméngue du Sud to transfer mwore tihan $1 million
from New Yark (o special accoums in the Argentine and Uruguay,
The Bangque was 50 percent owned by the Banque de Paris et des
Pays-Bas (a Chase and Standard affiliate), and 50 percent owned by
the Mussolini-controlled Banea Commerciale Maliana. In South
Anerica, these banks were working partlv for the Axis. Larkin con-
tinizd (0 penmt free withdmwals from the special accounts even
though he knew perfectiy well that such sccounts were cloaks for
Bangue Frangaise et Ialicnne fands. .

On June 23, 1941, J. Edgar Hoover wiote to Morzenthau: Dotz
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the monitoring of foreign funds at the Chase Bank, FBI discovered
vanous payiments 0 0il companics in the Unjted States. There are
indicatons that the Stundard Gil Company of New Jersewv has heen
recelving money from German oil sales by arder of the Reichsbank, ™

Throughout 1941, Fhe German-American Comnterce A sseciarion
Bidletin, 4 pro-Nazi publication, repeatedly disclosed connections be-
tween the Chase Bank and Emil Puil gt the Reichisbank: it revealed
that the Reichsbanic mainrained its account at the Chase. It also main-
tained an account ar the Nafianal City Bank when the Reichshunk
wis persenally under the directorship of Hitler. AnY transactions be-
tween Winthrop Aldrich and Dr. Walther Funk had to be approved
by Hitler in person.

Mesnwhiie, the Germans were permitted to retain accounts at Chase
banks throughout negral Europe. Reponts on these sccounts WELE 5)-
phoned through Madrid and Lisbon by special couriers. The 11§,
ambassador to Spain held up many of the transshipments of BOCOUILLS,
reporting lo the Department of State o trading with Germany.

With the advent of Pearl Harbor., most Ametican fimms in Pagis
closed down for the pot Surprising reason that their mation was now
at war with Nazi Germany . Unfortunatel ¥. doseph J. Larkin and Emil
Puhl’s right-hand man. Hans-Toachim Caesar, both authorized the re-
tention of the Chase Bank in the Nag -occupied city for the doration,

Oita Abetr. the smooth ambassador to Paris and compiroller of
Uerman imterests in that city, specifically requested that the Chase
manager in Pans, Cardos Niedermann, not close his doors o Ger-
man business. Such & request was puindess since Emil Puhl and the
Chage had alrezdy entered jnio ap arrangement that the bank would
not close.

The: Chase Bank in Pars was the focus of substantial financing of
the Nuzi embassy’s activities thm bghatt World War [T with (e fuli
knowledge of New York. In arder to assure the Germaas of its loyalty
to the Nazi cause, Caros Niedermann in Pars and Alben Berrand
and his colleagues in the Vichy branch of Chase at Chateavneuf-sur-
Cher were strentigus in enforcing restrictions against Tewish prop-
LILY, VR g0ing $0 far ag (o refuse 1o release funds belonging o Jews
because they anticipated 4 Nazi decree with retroaciive pravisions
prohibiting such release. When this matter was drawn to the atiention
of the New York office by an angry Hamy Dexter White in May
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1942, Larkin refused &0 act, sinee to do so :E_mmw__u..n_wnﬂ .m.mw:ﬂ_ncmﬁ
nterests 45 we are dealing, mof with a ___EGJ_‘ _E.H w ;. a M ﬁ__“n Q:.wmn
The Germian administrator Emzm-go.&“_:ﬁd m.w.%ﬁ“”u MHHMJ Jihe Lhase
i L Spe esult o
owm_.”_iw..”&_%:;ﬁwmm M_mmwwwwnhwwﬁ_mmE.mua wrole Larkin that Nie-
MMM““M:. ...Em collaborating sull further e..:“:. the Maris; ,M_._ﬁ_m :Mumﬂwwu
Bertrand revealed that Zwm_ﬂ_ﬂjsmﬂs, Was :.Emim arrangem s to cen
tralize in the Pads office all deposits, securities, and m_mﬁ._ ! ..,_,nﬂm
of the branches in France. In September 1942 more depo
; v lad virtually doutled . Gennan—controlled
placsd. > a H.wnm;_ﬁrrw. i in 30 that Chase could muect
funds of some 15 million francs flowed in s0 tha Chase could fueet
its operating expenses, Chase acted as an .EHE,JE. jary Jor banks in
Brazil and Chile in (ransmitting ro .mmn:u _=_m_Er:_,_u=m..mm :m ...,;& -
ders, staements, and account details .u_ a E:a when : Taz s
war with Germany. Brazilian nmnmo@u._ﬁ _“_E:__u_ﬁn such com
thons, and the branches were on Allied Emn_ﬂ_mm.ﬁ- o
mmic:m:mczm;. Berrand transferred mnn;::mm. and Hmnmn m:ﬂama
money {rom Vichy w0 Germany and German-occupied M.u_E.:mu a
«ia Emil Puhf with Larkin's approval Uiroughout qur, e
The Chese also handied .E:.mmnﬂ.wc:m for the ?mE.. mnmnuw. n_._. an
Transatlantico, which was, according w”., a C,Em.nmw.ﬁﬁ. I _wm;_w e
port dated August 13, [943, "'No mer ﬂ_..uan_uH Em._ﬂﬂnﬁﬂ.} sina
aclpality treasurer or noEa:..u:ma_ of the ng_.ﬁEd_ in m..uw "/ nmd_h_._ &.1
It received local party contributions, supetvised and M.Muzpn : :wnmnq
rected party expenditures, received party funds from ﬂn nu et
various suises and jusgled the deposits - . . all under t wm_E ”
of the German Legations.”” It was in fact a branch of the Dewse
Uberseeische Bank of Berlin. o
F_ﬂ.ﬂwwﬁﬂmww businesses i South Americs wm_&_.@u their affairs ;ﬂcw
the Banco Aleman. Thus. the mmwa.,:._ legations ..:Emmﬁwﬁ? mn_m
Aumerica possessed channels for distnbution and :u_nmEH GW .p_m.w E_ﬂnmw
The Paris Chase received large amounts of money from Nazi ¢
eh the medivm of the Bank.
M_.:.M_HHM_” m”.ﬁn_nmﬂ of all, the Chase. with the fuil Wﬁoi_ﬂmmmm MW”M
kin, handled the accounts af Clo Abetz, German ambassadar R
» embassy isel, .
mhm__ _,wmr wnmnﬁmm.zm to consider what, among other things, }_um__w.mﬂm
the German Embassy dealt with during the war. They powred millie
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of francs frwe varfous French companies that wene collzborating with
ihe Wayis, On August 13, 1942, 5.5 millian loincs wee passed
through in one day o help finance the military govemment and the
Gestapo High Command. This money helped to pay for radio propi-
ganda and a campaign of teror agamst the French people, including
beatings, wrure, ard brueal mtrder. Abelz paid 250.000 frapes o
monih) 10 fascist editors and publishers in order to run their vicious
anti-Semitic newspapers. He financed the termorist army known as the
Mouverment Synarchique Revolutionnaire, which flushed oot andi-Nazj
cefls in Paris and saw (o it they were liquidated. In addition. Aber
used embassy funds to trade in Fewish ar {reasures, including tapes-
ies, paintings, and ommarients, for the bepefic of Girning, who wanted
ta get his hands on every French artifact possible,

The Chase board in New York could nat claim that it was unfa-
miliar with these activities on the grotmd that communication with
Uccupicd France was impassible. The purpose of retaining dipiao-
matic reations with Vichy was that the [J.5, Fovemnment could deter-
mine what was going on in Occupied France. A constant fow of
lenters, telegrams, and phane calls betwean Paris and the Vichy branch
of Chase in Chiteaunenf-sur-Cher kept Albert Benzand Informed,
and In rewmn he kepl New York informed: Washington was advised
by Larkin_ Despile some criticism by Nazi comptroller Hans-Jaachim
Caesar, Vichy had under French law the power to close the Pags
branch at any minute if New York so inseructed. No such instructions
WETE Vel racejved,

When the local branch of the New York Guaranty Trust Bank re-
fused to deal with the Nazis, NMiedermann unsuecessfully urged ics
MAnagers 0 agree to the dermands, In g repoit marked 1942 (no month
or date), Alberi Bertrand wrote o Larkin from Vichy, *The presamnt
basis of our relationship with the anthoriiies of Germany is as satis-
factory as the modus vivendi worked out with German authorities by
Morgan’s.* We anxiousty sought and actuaily obtained substantia]
deposits of German funds . . . wihich funds were invested by Chase
i Freneli treasury banks to produce additional income. ™ Reporis to
New York during the war gave repeated statementss by Nazi bank
camptroller H-T Caesar of the figh esteem jn which the Gernan

" The Margan Bank sisg weyved vpen in Pars throoghout the war, with Mew York s knawledge.
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authorities beld Chase and even had minetes af meetings between the
Chase people and Caesar. In one respanse from New York, date and
signalor not given in the secret Treasery seport recenily deciassitied.
an American officer of the bank in Maohaton described Chase as
“Caesar’s beloved child. ™" All of dus was known 1o the LiLS, Em-
bassy in Vichy. and to Washingion. But nothing was done_

A Treasury repost in Morgenthau's files dared December 20, 1944,
seveals that Carlos Niedermann was an ourright colluboramr with the
Nazi government: that Larkin knew this but tonk no steps to emaove
himi: that Larkin viewed Niedermann's good relations with the Ger-
mans 45 an excellent means of preserving, unimpaired, the position
of the bank in France; that the Nazis took exceptions] measures to
provide sources of revenue for the bank; that they desired o be friends
with 1he American banks “‘beczuose thev expecied dhat these banks
would be useful after the war as an instrument of German policy in
the United States'’; and that the Chase zealously maintained, with
authorizadon from New York, the account of the German Embassy
under Gito Abetz in Paris, “as every limde thing helps to maintain
excellent relations bewween Chase and the German authorfties. ™

Meanwhile . on Decetnber 24, 1943, Winthrop Aldrich, the Chase,
Leonard I. Smit, and hig company were indicted for violadans of the
freezing order on shipments to foreign nationals in che matier of the
diamond accounes and Stit and his company paid fines of ower
3100.000; Smit went w0 prison for five years. In the midst of the
indictrnents, Abdrich was often closeted with the President, discuss-
ing his activities on behalf of Allied war reliet,

Attommey General [rancis Biddie was misecably slow in dealing
with Lthe indictment and bringing the Chase to irial. [1 was only through
Margenthan and his wam of Treasury agents that the matier was
brought up at 2l

In a nole from Harry Dexeer Whiie to Morgenthau dated January
24, 1945, White wamed rhat if the Department of Justice *‘continued
i jis delaving tactics,”” the case ““would have no meaning.” He
bamed Biddle tor being swaved by “‘pressures from Chase,** Simal-
taneously. now that Fans had fallen to the Allies, Morgenthau sent a
leam inéo Paris 1o mvestigate the Chase records. The team discovered
# new und shocking face. [t found thia at the time of the (ali of Paris
in fune 1940, 5. P. Bailey, 1.5, citizen and manager of the Paris

The Chase Nazi Accoumn 20

oftice. had announced (o Larkin thar he would “‘immediately [iguj-
date the Iwanch in the interests of patnotisrn. ™ Larkin had Em_d:wcn
revoked Bailey's powers and conferred anthority on rhe known Nazi
collaborators who continned in office.

It also turned owt that Larkin's staif were sending instructions to
_m,__n bank direct until six months after Pead Harbor and that they ge.
tused o exercise their right (o veto on any transactions H.E_:J_E_
mament and reniained in possession of momhly repors. They even
ook 4 step further by having American accounts ar Chase in Paris
blacked while the Nazi aceounts rematned apen. There are records cm,
Carlos Niedermann and his col leagues being in direct (ouch with Emdl
?E.w aitfice at the Reichsbank, offering to be *'at your disposal to
continue 10 uadertake the execution of banking affairs in France lor
your friends as well as for yaurselves. ™

Hs. 1845, as soon as he got wind of Treasury's full-scale inquiry
Aldrich rushed Yoseph 1. Larkin there to fire Niedermang ,Ewmm-
ately and clean the nest. He {ssued statements 0 the U.5. government
___._m.ﬂ lhere was *“no connection™ berween Paris and Chase after the
Unied States entered the war, Lakin’s so-called job “to get 10 the
botarn of the sitarion and make (he necessary w&:m.ﬂnmﬂm in per-
sannel " was clearly just & way ol covering the facr. !

In 2 telegram marked “*Secret™ and dated fanuary 12, 1945, the
U.s. mE:.mmmw. in Paris advised Cordell Hull and Henry ?.Haamn:..%.mc
of 8 meeting with Larkin. Larkin had done his best (mmf.ﬁ hEJn:
Greatly agitated, be had tald the ambassador, .

Em:_.n_., .,E.a the board are very much concemed a2bowt the sjoation
._,_E.E..._nmm_mm:,u:. - - D must emphissize thar the managing _unacmnn_.
[cfi in Paris were not officers of the Chase Bank. . , . *

Chase New York wants e Chace Bagk her: open for the use of the
Amiy. My mission js semi-official. | hove been wmpoemnily hilleed by
the Army, | pronise my Al cooperiton with vau. The Bank's ::E”..

ests aTee] _._.H BOVETIIICRY'S are identiczl, Both desfre 10 mainrain Amer-
1C8n prestige i France.

And thea he added a revealing piece of information: **The British
2overnment E& d guod attitude toward British banks abrogd. British
banks in Paris did hig business during the Occupation. ™
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The fact that Briwin had also collaborated with Nazi Germany on
an official level was scarcely encouraging o the embatiled Secratany
of the Treasury. However. there is no evidence (hat he did anything
whatsaever about Larkin.

A curtous event followed. Aldrich dispatched Allred W. Barth, the
prime megotiztor in the mansactions of Eeonard Smit and the Rick-
wanderer scheme, o Eotope to clean up any further * ‘misundenstand-
ings " ahout the role of the Chase m dealing with the enemy. A Hurry
of memoranda went to and from evers department of State and Trea-
sury in 1945 as to whether Barth should be allowed to travel 0 netnral
conlries. Apparently one of his purposes was 10 " uncover secreted
German assels””! Margenthau and White tried without success 10 stop
the mission. Barth proceeded to Spain.

On April 17, 1945, the Chase National Bank of New York—Al-
drich being cxcused {and Latkin not namedp-—-was placed on tnal io
federal cour on charges of having viodated the Trading with the En-
emy Act im conpection with its handling of the Smit dismeond ac-
counes. In his opening statement, ULS. Atomey John F. X, McGohey
charged the bank with having failed to freeze the accounts. Defense
anarney Tohn T. Cahill placed before die jurors a substantial voi-
urne cramined with documents purporiing to deal with the alleged
violadons of the regulations. Cahil! said, **Operations under froczing
orders are complicated. Much more s0 ¢ven than opemlions under
your family rationing baoks. They are, unformnately, as involved as
operations under the Federal lncome Tax Law, and it would be as
impracticable for all members of the bank staff to become expert in
them as it would for such a group to master 2l the inttjcacies of
income tax legistation. ™

In other words, he was saving that 1the unfreezing of the accounis
was due (0 natral incompetence.

Be that ag it may, Cahill overfooked the fact that Smit had already
pleaded guilty to trading with the encmy and had paid $110,000 in
fines and was serving a jail sentence. Also, that such commimments
at the tme could scarcely have bzen unknown to cenain officials in
the bank.

The trial was complicated and technical. JTames E. Healey, Jr..
vice-president of Uwe Chese Nutionsl in charge of s Panama brane hes,
testified he had believed 1hat the freeze order was not applicable 0
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the trunsfer of fuuds from abroad t 1he Chase Bank brageh in Pan-
ama. Fred C. Winy. another vice-president, testitied thai nothing of-
ficial had comie to his attention to indicate there was any‘thing wrong
widh the ynblocking of the accoumt, Other officers restified that they
had never received orders from the Federal Reserve Bank to hlock
Ay JACCounts,

Meanwhile, as the trial went oy, Winthrop Aldrich, who was not
actually prosecuted in the tral, prawsied wherever he could be heard
that the trial was “‘absurd’” and “‘based an a tech fiicality " On May
3. 1945, at 3:55 pow., the jury, after iwelve hours of deliberation on
three weeks of complicated testimony . acquitted the bank, Aldrich
expressed his extreme satisfaction in un interview witk The New York
Times. The mater of the proven dealings of Chase that conclusively
eslablished wartime conuections with the ememy. incivding the con-
tinuing activites of the Chase Bank in Paris, were neither made pub-
.:n nar were even made the subjects of Senate or {ongressional
investigation. Onee more, the ranks of governmient closed around The
Fratemity. And in 1946, Joseph 1. Larkin appointed Albert Bertrand,
collaborationist head of the Chase in ¥ tchy, to the board of the ﬁ:mmm.
in Paris.

=
1
i
i
i
]
i
¥
H
&




The Secrets of Standard Oil

In 1841, Standard Oil af New Jersey was the largest petrofeum cor-
poration in the warld. fs bank was Chase. its owners the Rockefel-
lers. U5 chaimnan, Walker O, Teagle, and its president, William 5.
Farish, matched Jaseph J. Latrkin’s extensive connections with the
Wari governmen .

Six foat three inches tall, and weighing over two hundred and [ty
pounds. Walier C. Teagle was so large 2 man that it was said that
when lie stood ep from his seat on the subway, it was 0 make room
for two women. He smoked Havana cigacs theough a famous amber
holder. He spoke with mcasured deliberation, fixing his fellow con-
versationalists with a foghlening, wnblinking, and powerful stame.

Teagle came from & prominent Cleveland family jost below the
milionaire ¢lass. He early showed a dominant will, expressed in a
thunderous volce, a humorless intensity, and » egged dismespect for
those who guestioned his judgment. He was known as a dominant
presence at Comnell. Kepi out of tootball by an injury, he worked off
his colossal energry in school debales, which he invadably won hands
down. Entering the Standard Oii empire under die wing of John D.
Rockefeller I, he rose rapidly through his Homtio Alger concern for
work and his strong intemational sense: he drew many foreign coun-
tries and their leaders into the Standavd Ol web. He weathered scan-
dal afier scandual in which Standard s1ood charged with monopolistic
and other fllegal practices.
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T.G.E the 1920s on Teagle showed a marked admigation for Ger-

ANy s enterphse in overcoming the destructive tetrms of the Ver-
mh,w__umm Treaty. Mis [umbering stride, booming tones, and ciouds of
cigar smake became widely and affectionate]y known in lhe circles
E,E helped support the rising Nazi party. He eady estabiished a
frirndship with the dour and stubby Hermann Schmitz of .G, Far-
ben, enteraining him frequendy for lunch at the Cloud Rooni in the
Chrysler Building, Teagle's favorite Manhattan havat of the late 1970s
and the 1930s. Teagle also was frtendly with the pro-Nazi Sir Henri
D_Euw.mim of Royal Dutch-Shell, who agreed with his views aboux
n.m?__&_mn domination of Europe and the uitimate need o destroy Rus-
sia.
. Teagle, Schmitz, and Deterding shared a passion far grouse shoot-
ing and game bunting: they vied with each other 4% wing shois.
Teagle’s love of hunting deer and wild birds was 1o earn him the
admiration of Reichsmarschal] Hermann Csiring.

Teagle was ciose to Henry Ford. He first met him in the cardy
I900s when he wanted to make a deal for oil with a new Demoit anto
mmmm_:Ew shop. He wulked into the shiop, saw how miserably run-
u.n_ﬁﬁ 1t was, and decided (hat he would have difficulty in collecting
far Em gasoline contract, But he took a chance on the thin. eaunt
propoeior and went aliead. Many years laer the two mien En__.. Mﬁmmz
and formed a frendship. Ford looked at him sharply and said, ““We 've
met before.™ Teagle remembered at once. " Sure, " ._;nmim, said, 1
mn..E you your {irst gasoline conmiraci. Yop wene mEEgmpm m_ui,n a
Winton chassis.”” Ford replied, ' was. And I was s0 hard up, |
didn’t even own the goddam thing!™* u

mnmmcmn ot his commercial and personal association with Hermann
,mnwE:N_ and his awareness that he must protect Sondand’s interest
m Nazi Germany, Teagle made many visits to Berdin and (he Stan-
dard Emrm and rank cars in Germany throughout the 1930s. He be-
carne director of American 1.6G. Chemicai Corp., the giant chemieals
firm __&E was a subsidiary of [.G. Farben. He invested heavily in
American LG. and American 1.G. invested heavily in Standard, He
sat on the 1.G, board with Fratemity brothers Edsei Ford and Wiiliam
E. Weiss, chairman of Sterling Producls,

. Following the rise of Hitler to power, Tezgle and Hermann Sclunitz
jointly gave a special assignment 1o Ivy Lee. the potorious New York
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publicity man, who hiad lor some years worked for the Rocketellers.
They cngaged Lee for the speeific purpose of econnmic espionage.
He was to supply [.G. Farben. and through it the Nazi government,
with intellizence on the Amercan reaction to such matters as the
Cerman srmament program, Germany's treamment of he Church,
and the organization of the Gesiapo. He was aiso w keep the Amer-
ican public bamboazled by papering over the more evil aspects of
Hitler's regime. Tor this, Lee was paid first 53,000 then 54,000 an-
nually, the money paid ta him through the Bank for International
Settlements in the name of 1.G. Chemie. The contract was for ob-
vious reasons kept oral and rhe money was transferred in cash. No
entries were made in the books of (ke employing companies or in
those of vy Lee himself. After a shori period Lee’s salary was in-
creased ta $23.000 per year and he began distmbuting inflammatory
Nazi propaganda in the United Stares on behalf of 1.G. Farben, in-
cluding virulent mtacks on the Jews and the Versailles Treaty,

I February 1938 the Securities and Exchange Commission held a
meeting to nvesligate Nazl ownership of American 1.G. through a
Swass subsidiary . The commissioners grilled Teagle on the ownership
of the Swiss company. He pretended 1hat he did not know 1he owners
were 1.G. Farben and the Nazi gavernment. The commissioners uied
to make him admit that at least American [.G. was ““controlied by
‘European” imerssts.” Teagle replied dodgily, —"Well, [ think that
would be a safe assumption. ™" Asked who voted for him as & proxy
at Swiss meetings, again he asserted that he didn't know. He also
neglected to mention that Schimitz and the Nazi government owned
thousands of shares in Amerncan 1.G.

Teurle was sufficient]y embarrassed by the hearing o resign from
the Amerdean [L.G. board, but hie retained his connections with the
company. He remained in partnership with Farben in the matter of 1et-
raethy] lead. an sdditve used in aviation gasoline. Gdring’s air force
couldn 5 fly withow it. Oniy Standard, Do Pont, and General Motors
had the mghts w it. Teagle helped 10 organize a sule of dhe preious
substance to Sclimitz. who in 1938 wraveled w London and - *hor-
riowed " 300 teny from Ethyl, the Briiish Standard subsidiary, Next
visar, Schmitz and his panmers retbmed o London and obtained 515
mithon waonh. The resuit was thai Hider's air force was repdered
capable of bombing Londan, the city that had provided the supplies.
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Also. by supplying Japan with tetracthyl, Teagle helped make it pos-
sible for the Jupanese (0 wage World War 11,

There was a further irony_ The British Royal Air Force had 10 pay
royaities to Nuzi Germany through Ethyl-Standard for the gasoline
used 0 fiy Goring's bombers thal were atlacking London. The pay-
mente were held in Gemany by Farben's private banks for Standand
unti] the end of the war.

Following the embarassment of the Securities and Exchange Com-
mission hearing. Teagle took more and mose of & backseat and handed
aver his front office w his patiner aod close friend, William Stamps
Farish. Farsh was samcewhat different in character from Teaple. Tall,
hald from youth, bespectacled, given to publishing homilics and pious
patniotic articles in the pages of American Muagazine, he had a re-
served, almost scholarly manner that barely concealed a flaring tem-
per and & flerce seil-protectiveness that made him seem auifty in
controversies over Standard when he was not necessanly so. He was
50 emotionally locked into the company that he was indivisibie from
it. He never understond a mule of power: to keep calm and polite
when the opposition {s angry and ihreatening. Me could mat resist
striking back at anvone who criticized him. sometimes with a rather
feeble attempt ar physicat violence. He sharad with Teagle a mania
for salmon fishing. dog training, bird-dogging. quail shooting, and
fox hants, Like Teagle, he devoted as much as eighteen hows a day
ta otfice affairs, immense josmmeys by ship and tr2in, and board meet-
tngs thal somelimes went on into the smail hours of the moming.
Both had the capacity of senjor executives 1o exhaust everyone but
themselves with their certaintics. They altowed litdle area for discns-
sion and brooked nothing save approval.

Farish. like Teagle, was mesmerized by Germany and spent tuch
time with Hermann Schmitz, With Teagle's approval he staffed (he
Standard Ol tankers with Nazi crews. When war broke oul in Fu-
rope. he ran inro trouble with British intellience. which boarded
some of his vessels ourside termitorial waters on the Atiantic and Pa-
cific seaboands and seized Nazi agents who were nassengers, When
the British begun interrogating Nazi crews on the Hitler-Standard
connection, Farsh fired the Germans en masse and changed (he reg-
istration of the entire fieet to Panamanian o avoid British seizue or
search. His vessels carded oii to Tenerifk in the Canary [slands. where
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thev refusled and siphoned cil to German tankers for .mEﬂEmE to
Hambure. They also fueled U-bouts even afler the bEmﬂnmu. gavern-
ment amm_mﬂnmlmnn: shipments morally En_hwmmm#.._m and while Ruoo-
sevell was fighting an undeclared war E the Atlanhc. mnmhnmﬁa Ez_.ﬁm
supplied the self-same submarines which EE. sank American m__ﬁm,
By a humorous (wist of faie, one of the shups the U-boats sank was
the $.8. Walter Teaple. N .

It was ijmportant for the Nazis to converl the 611 in the Canaries to
aviation gasoline for the Lufrwaffe. Once again, Farizh _u_.n_ﬂua. hielp-
{ul. As carly as 1936 his associate Hamy D. Cellier of Califomia
Srandard had buill units for conversion in the Canaries. Simultane-
ously, Teagle had built a refinery in Hamburg that produced 15,000
tons of aviaton gasoline far Goring every week.

With war in Europe, General Aniline and Film, successor o Amer-
icum 1.G., stood in damger of being taken over by the U.S. govern-
ment. Teasrle and Farish’s friend. the Rockefeller assoctatz mummrﬁaﬁm
Behn of H..WH_ was narrowly siopped from buying tie corporator,
ihus rendering it " Amerjcan and not subject to wmmwmnm, Henry Mor-
gembau prevenied the deal. For once, The Fratermity was freserated.
Teagle and Farish could not buy GAF themselves, as it would have
toa mFu__:_w betrayed their association with the Nazis.

By 1939, Americans were dangerously short of rubber. The armed
services were hard put to complete wheels for planes. tanks, and
armored cars. At this time Standard Gil had made a deal with Hitler
whiereby he would obiain cenain kinds of Swuandard mE.mnE tubber
and America would get nothing. This deal cominued until after Pearl
Harbor. .

When war broke oul, Frank A. Howard, one of the more dynamic
vico-presidents of Standard (also an the board of Chase), fiew to Eo-
rope with Farish's avthorization. Jw London he held an urgent mest-
ing with U.S. Ambassador Joseph P. Kennedy, who aliegedly wanted
H.runmc:mﬁ a separate peace (hat would bring the European wat E
an immediate end. Kennedy enthusiastically approved Howard's

meeting with Farben's representative Fritz Ringer, The meetng was
set up in Holland. Howard flew to The Hague on Sepiember 22,
1939, supplied with z special Royal Air Force bomber Tor the acca-

sfon. .
A1 the Hague meering, held in the Stzndard Qil offices, Howard

L
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and Ringer talked for many hours abowt their plans for the future.
Ringer handed over a thick bundle of German patents 1hat were locked
int¢ Standand agreements so that they would not be seized in war
time. The {wo men drew up an agreement that specified they would
rematy in business together, “*whether or not the United States came
into the war."" Ancther clause in the agreement known as the Hague
Memarandum guaranteed that the moment war was over, 1.G. Farben
would get back its patents. Howard returned to London and Kennedy
arranged for the patents 10 be flown by American diplomatic hag o
Ambassador William Bullitt in Paris, who forwarded them on by spe-
cial couner (o Farish in New York.

As the war contimied in Europe before America’s entry, Germany
grew more and more desperate for oil. Her domestic suppijes were
minimal. But for many years Teagle and Farish had expioited the re-
sotrces of Rumania, setling up extensive oil exploration in the Plojesti
ficlds and nerang millions from Germany in the process. 1.G. Farben
fenanced the notarious Rumanian Iron Guard, a fascistic military or-
ganizaon led by General Ion Antonescy. Hermzann Schmiiz, through
Antonescr and in league with Standard. held an exercising control
over the oil fields. On March 5, 1941, Géring amanged a special
private performance of Madame Butterfly by the Austrian State Opera
at the Belvedere Palace in Vienna in Antonescu’s hopnor. After the
performance, Goring sat down for an urgent discussion wid) Anto-
nesct on securing the vse of the Standard Oi fields if Germany and
Amerira shauld go o war. Anwonescu confered with Schmitz and
Siandard executives in Bucharest. The resuit of the meeting was that
(rdring paid $11 million in bonds for the use of the oil. whether or
neot America came into the war.

Farish now proceeded 10 make another deal with Géring. Hun-
gary was second only to Rumania as an oil source for the Nazf war
machine. Teagle had staried dailing there in 1934,

In July 194F, Farish and Frank Howard filed an applicatian with
Treasury for a license o sell its Hungarian subsidiary to [.G. Farben.
Farben would, the application said, pay $5.5 milliop in Swedish,
Swiss, and Laon American cummencies, $13.5 million in gold w be
delivered at Lisbon, Partugal, and Iater shipped to the United Sates:
and it would supply & pronissory nowe for $5 million by 1.G. "o be
paid three monihs after die war ended. ™ This note was o be secured
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by the blocked sssets of General Aniline and Film in America. ‘Trea-
sury refused the applicaton. whersupon Farish asked if the tull amoust
could be paid in gold au Lishon. That suggestion alsa was repected,
Farish protested baery.

The British Blaockade ran the length of e Amernicas upon dhe
Atlantic seaboand, stopping shipments o Magm Germnany wherever
possible. Given the problem, how could Fardsh go on supplying Gor-
ing and Hermane Sclumirz with il in time of war? He spon found
the soluton. He sent large amounts of petrolewn o Russiz and dience
by Trans-Siberzn Ralroad to Bedin long after Roasevelt’s moral
embarga. He shipped to Vichy North Africa. in May 1940, British
authorifies captured & Trench ranker in .5, territorial waters that wis
sailing to Casablanca with [6.000 tons of Standard oil, allegedty lor
reshiprment o Hider. Cordell Hull demanded the British government
vield up the wanker. Restncted by maritime law, the British zgreed.
The tanker satled on to Africa, foilowed by six more.

Farish fueled the Nazi-controlled L AT, airdine from Rome o
Rio via Madrd. Lisbon. and Dakar. The aidine flew spies, patents,
and dlamonds for foreign currency. Only Standard could make this
shipmem possible. Only Standard had the high-octane gasoline that
enabled the lumberng clippers to make the 1.6804mnile hop wcross the
Atlantic.

A hard-working voung man, William La Varre of the Depurtment
of Cormmerce. ¢t about uncovering Standard™s deals with this Nazi
girline. He knew LA T.I. was ihe means by which the Naris evaded
the Britsh Blockade. The airline was not subject 10 boarding and
search. Spies traveled by L.A.T.I. between the United States, Ger-
many, and Iaaly by way ol Brazil.

In addition 10 spies, 1he planes few. in 1947, 2,363 kilos of books
comtaining Nazi propaganda, legal and illegal drugs addressed to
Sterling Products, Beichsbank money for the National City Bank In
New York, waitime borror pictures prepared by Dr. Joseph Goebbels
1 Trighten Latin Americans out of a world conflict. There were elec-
trical materzls and gold and stiver jewelry for sale to Brazil. Amer-
ican companies i South America shipped the Nazis thousands of
kilos of mica and platinum. which existed in quantity only in Brazil,
and which were strategic war materals for Germany. Semiprecious
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stones were bourgin cheaply, shipped to Ge ! i Belai _

slave camps, and ME_EM% back .M_umqmwm EH.HM#_ o in Belgiom in
. In order to supply the airtine, Farish changed more of his vessels
_EE. Germian to Panamanian registry. Now they were gramed im-
mumity under the Panzmanisn Aag by James V, Hj.m.:.mﬂu_,rﬂzamu. Sec-
FELATY __m.w lhe Navy, vice-president of Generu! Aniline and Film and
Fratemity member, Bu U5, intelligence constantly checked n.“_ the
merm ww.a of the Gestapo, the Abwehr, and the Farben sy network
NW.T. ,,_.ﬂ__a._ used the airline. Early in 1941, Adaif Berle cm..:ﬁ State
Gmﬁmﬂﬂma insisted thet Cordell Hull stop these shiprents, Hull taljed
HM \ m ”___HMEM“_.“M_J He 1dd him he was £0Ing o apply cxport conira)

Farish was forced 10 reach g compromise. He would supply
.W.} _H,H.. and the other Nazi airline, Condor, through Standard s urwaww:u.
ian subsidiary with permission fiom the Amerean ambassadar in w_..c
The ambassador gave pemmission and the airlines continved to fly m
was ot uruil jusi before Pear Harbor that La Varre and Berle uw.m_-
tzed what Farish was doing: By making the deal throtol the Brazilian
ncﬂ.ﬁm:u_.. he was not subject to lacklistine . ﬂ:.m.n the mEﬁnwm:E
conunued umil after Pead Hartbor when the Brazilian government
ﬂnﬁ._“_na m and closed down (he aifines. Fagsh ey mmnawnu his gov.
CTmMent s request to be loyal. Germany and money came first.

On .q_.m.._m_,nw 31, 1941, Summner Welles of the Stmie Deparment
..w.,.nwﬁ,_ma 16t the picdure with a detailed vepent on efucling stations in
EE.”H._U and Central and South America that were suspecied of fur-
nishing ofl o Halian or Genman miercham vessels now in part. Amone
.H__E._H suspected of Tueling cnemy ships were Standzrd Off of Zo_.w
cwqwﬂww ﬂ“MQMME.cEE. There is no record of any action being taken

On May 5, the U.S. Legation at Managua, Nicaragua, reported
that mﬂﬁa.ﬁa O] subsidiuries were &m:,_._u::_ﬁ.mzcnﬁ, 2 _“_.H_T___nm:a:
filled with pro-Nazi propaganda. John J. Muecia, of the U.S. Con-
_mim.,.m.. made an investigation and found thar Standard was &.N._E...E-
ing E_m.mnmmnﬁﬁﬁﬁ publication ail over the warld. By a ' culiar
:_ca__.; Nelson Rockefeiler was at char moment in his post ow,uﬁcoﬂ.
n_E,E_u__ ol Inter-American Affairs seeking to insure the lovaliv to
Uniied States interests of all of the governments of Latin America
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Omn Julv 17, 1941, Nelson Rockefeller had joined with Dean Ache-
san, Morgenthau, Francis Biddle, and Secretary of Commerce Jezuze
Tones to fulfil & presidentizl order to prepare what was known as the
Proclaimed List of enemy-associited corporaifons with which it was
illezal 10 tmde in time of Buropean war. Acheson was appointed
chaimman of the inerdepanimental committes in charge of the graup
of Cabinet members, Six months later, in 2 lengthy memorandum to
Mile B. Perkins, executive dircciar of the BEconomic Defense Board,
an Jasvary 3. 1942, Acheson luid down the conditons of the Pro-
claimed List. RockefeHer's claimn that he was unfamiliae with the de-
{ails of Standard Oil prastices on behall of the Axis before and alier
Pear] Harbar 15 difficult o believe given the fact that he himself sat
on die Proclaimed List commitee.

In his official capacitv, Nelson Rockefeller was in the pecoliar
position of having to ask the manarers of his South Aimerican com-
panies how many Germons they employed, despite the fact that his
company and official records bath contained the information. He was
one thing as coordinator and quite something else as Standard Oil
execative. In July 1941. Sandard, with his knowledge. awdwnzed
the continuance af the lease of il headquarters in Caracas, Vene-
7uela, from a Proclaimied List national, Gustav Zingg, because it
would be legally very difficult w weminate the lease. The Coordina-
tor of [nter-Aumerican Adfairs, with billivas al his disposal, leased
fropa o Nazi collaborator for the durion because of a technical issue
of a lessing arrangement. More surprising still, a doctor who was in
constunt tooch with Nazis in Camacas. and was on a suspect list. was
pemiitied to remain & member of the roedical deparonent of Standard
Oil ol Veaeznela.

On Tutv 15 1941, Major Charles A, Burmows of Military Lruelli-
zence reported to the War Depanment that Standard Oil was shipping
uil {Tom Aruba im the Dautch West Indies 10 Tenerfe mn the Canary
[slamds. The report continued:

[Stendard] is . divenipg abauwr 20 percent of this fuel oil o the
Present German Government. About six of the ships operting on this
rre are repueed w be menned maioly by Mazi offeers. Seamen have
reported de the informant thar they have seen submannes o the mme-
diate vicinity ol the Canary Islands and have leanted thar the subma.
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FINES are refieling thene. The informant aiso stzeed thar the Srandard
il .H,.H_E_w:uw. has aar lox any ships o date by tarpedoing as have ather
American companics whose ships aperate 1o oiher posts,

On Jaly 22, 1941, there was a meeting of several Treasury officials
with Acheson on the subject of vl shipments to Tangicr. .mnn_:&:s
those of Siandard Oil. Tangier was an open pot that was _mm_unm
_,Eﬁnmam to the Nagis, The meeting was inconclusive. Amone the sth-
Jecrs Giscossed was the possiile sale by Standard Oil of ﬂu Berlin
propeny. There was no regl pressure on the COTporaton 0 dispose of
that office,

Cu,u ﬁicwﬁ 28, 1941, Conieli Huli sent a peculiar letter o Trea-
SUTY > BEdwand H, Foley, Ir., who was acting in Maorgenthan ‘s absence
on vacation. Hull asked Foley whether **Standard Qi Company (New
u.nmm_._..__ may . through its subsidianes in the other }Emm.nuu.ﬂ_ﬁ_u:_“_-
"F,P_ sell or deliver petroleum o1 peiroleum producis. to have other
aw._:__:mm with” persons whose mumes #ppeard on the blacklist of
.?....mx_ collaborators! Incredibly. he even asked whether Semdand Ol
might. through its subsidiary. Standard Ot of Brazd, sell petroleumn
E.Emmm Condor, lareely (rum Aruba. The reply was almost us snp-
prising. Foley szid thae such transactions fel] under Executive Order
m.mmm and "such rrensactions. irrespective of whether they are pro-
vided for by contract. should nor be engaged in except as ,_.Tmﬁ..q,ﬂ.wn.__?
antherized by the Secreranm of " Treasury under Execurive Grder
S35 % What Foley was patting our was that it would be qJUELE
passible 10 trade with Nazi associates with Treasury's specific ap-
proval, )

H_dmm amangement did nat change with Pead Harbor. Acting in col-
fusion. Yreasury and State contioved ta fssue licemses permitting
.mEH”_...EH_ Oil and other compaations to trade with ¢pemv nc:mrcEBnM
mlime of war. )

Over three weeks afier Pearl Harbor, on December 3 [.194] War.
__.mn.m. Hoagland of" Standard wrote 1o Green M. Hackworth. legai
advisor te the Depanment of State. askin 2 which foreien nc.._:_"m..,nm
and their residents and corporations should be considered as allies of
the enemy. In repiv. Hackworh infummed hin that the Depariment

AN " lalics




N, TRALH G WITH THE EXEMY

had “‘not izsved a list of enemy or allied ¢nemy counltries. ™ Hack-
warth s note. dated January &, 1942 conlaing a touch of unconscious
humor: ““The Congress of the Ulmired States has. yvou doubtless are
aware, declared that a stawe of war exists between the sowvemments
of Japan, Germany and DNaly and the Government and people of the
United Stutes.”” The letier goes an to refer Heagland o the presiden-
tiaf license duted Decembwer 13, 194} permitiing transactions prohih-
ited by the Trading with the Enemy Act, provided such trading was
authorized by the Treasury.

Immediately after Pearf Harbor. Harold Ickes, Secrary of the In-
terior and Petroleum Adminisirator and Coondinator for Mational De-
fense and War, began to close in on Farish hecause of his dealings
wilh Nazi Germany. Farish, who already had cavage enemies in Mor-
senthau and Harry Dexter White, had an even more formidable toe
in lekes.

Ickes was populady known as the Old Curmudgean: an inspired if
irritating gadfly who was slmost certainly the most unpopular ceich-
rity of his day jn America. A tense. dark, sharp-cved, impatient imzn.
he deliberately put his worst foot forward on ¢very possible occasion
in the hope of provoking widespread fury and the maximum amount
of publicity. He began [ife with o hawed of the privilegad: he was
the zacond of saven children of an impoverished Pennsylvania share-
cropping family and spent his childhood sweeping and dusiing,
wastnng dishes, kncading dough. basting beef, and flipping flapjucks.
He was pineh-hit oursemaid. woodchopper, fice builder, aod chicken
crecutioner, o 1890, wodking as & cledk in bhis uncle's Chivago
drugstore, he was so sickened v the fch with their coachmen. foot-
men, and high-stepping horses that he mixed seidliiz powders so they
would explode 10 the faces of hated wealthy customers. He became
a journalist, worning muckraker aticles v Chicago that helped mn
political gemgs cut of gwn. He shamply aitacked what he called the
“urbulem. srasping. selfish men”™ persanified by Farish and Teagle.
His greawst momest was when Roosevelt offered him the post of
Secretary of the Tntedor with Ui words 3. febes, you and [ hawve
been speaking the sane language for the past wenty vears, 1 have
come 1o the conclusijon that the mgn [ want 18 vou, ™

Fiereely committed 0 Rousevele. Tokes spent much «of the war vears
with lis legs knutted together under a battlewscarred desk from his
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reporting days. banging away ar his ancient typewriter and producing
reams of yude letiers. newspaper column sguibs, interoffice memo-
randa, and diary entries savaging the trusis led by the Rockefellers.
He would frequent]y break oft from wakting or cross-pollinating iiis
prized dahlia collection to pick up a phone and shower e hated
Secretary of Commeree Jesse H. Jones or Walter . Tearie with a
blistering rafn of invective. He became known as Roosevelt’s con-
science. He maddesied Roosevelt by his retusal to compromise; his
“cumbrous honesty ' —as Heywood Brouwn called it—which ied him
te distupt the delicate welationship Rooseveh had esiablished with (he
Standurd Ol leaders to tarn them to his own uses.

lckes constantly compluined 10 Roosevelt that Teagle and Farish
WETE PIUTNINCIE on various government Doards including the War Pe-
troleurn Board and that American car owners were forming gas lines
while the Gemans and Japanese had all the gas they needed. Roo-
sevelt was furious.

Cn June 22, 1941, Ronseveit sent Tekes a rude and perempiory
tetter on the matter of his restuicting oif. He pinned his ears hack
cnce and for all by instructing him to release the shipments by ar-
rangement with Cordell Hull. That same day lckes wrote in his diany
{a stncment that was eensored oat of the published version) that for
iwo years now the President had broken promise afier promise o him
and that hie had even begun to lie 1o him unashamedly. He added that
he had often wondered if ke could nat be of greater assistance (o
the people on the owside by telling the truth, rather than staying
inside, helpimg to deccive. He was referming 1o the fact that Roosevelt
and Hull were lying to the public about the extent of exports w bel-
ligerent powers.

More and more in 1941, Tckes was cur down by pressure from
Standard Oil on the Stie Depanment, [n fune. Sate set vp u Carib-
beun division without even conselting him. This allowed shipments
to Axis-influcnced neutrst conntries from Standard and other wells in
Venezuela for transshipment via the refinedes in Archa,

Three and @ hulf weeks after Pear] Harbor, Ickes really had his
fingers chopped off. Without relling him. Roosevelt set up 2 commit-
tee undet the Economic Wanare Council (larer ihe Board of Eco-
nomic Warlare), which was o handle afl duties and respons thilities
m the marner of exponing pewoleum products. To Ickes's horrar.
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Wiiliam &. Farishs right-hand man, Max Thomburg. was appointed
Foreign Peirvieem Coordimator. with Farish and Hany B. Collier on
liie board. Thomburg. a smart executive, received 38,000 2 yvear from
U State Department tor his job—and $13 000 a vear from Standard.

ickes was 50 maddencd by this sign of alleged comuption and
collusion that he called Vice-President Henry Wailace al home on
Jzguary 4, 1942, demanding to know why Wallace, as Economic
Warfare Council chairman, copld tierate such am arrangement. lokes
charged Thomburg with being ambitions, not overscrupulous, capa-
bie of being disloval; he insisted to Wallace that Thomburg had
schemed for the gppotmment and even presented Roosevelt with the
letter authorizing his appointment, standing over the President while
it was signed. He said this indicated the degree of influence Standard
had at the White Honse. Waliace did not reply.

Throughout the earls moaths of 1942, Iekes kept hammenng away
at Wallace ta have Thomburg dismissed. Frustrated in his eftarts, he
charged Wallace with “trampling on his encmies and bemaying bis
iriends.” His hatred for Wallace marched his baced for Thomburg.
With his stubbom sense of integrity he simply did not enderstand that
i order to win the war, Roosevelt and Wallace had to ¢l Intg bed
wilii the oi] companies.

As a result of bis neediing, Ickes was forhidden by Roosevelt and
Wallace 1o atend meerings held by Thomburg and Teagie to which
agencies of the government involved in oil were invited. Ickes was
voder constant threat from Roosevelt not o interfere with anything
that happened. He was tempted to resign and indecd dratied his res-
ignation on several occasions but finally decided to dig in and fight
U Establishment. Through his spies he unraveled the fact thar Sec-
retary of Commerce Jesse Jones and Bill Farish were interdociced in
business interests in Texas. And at last he found an ally who had the
catrage to confront the President and the pra-Standard chief in Wash-
irgron head on: Thurman Amald.

Amold was a man after Tekes's awn heant. He was a grass-roous
all-American publicity hound who had worked his way up to become
head of the Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice. A heavy-
weight like Walter Teagle and Farisk. he could face these men eve-
tall-toeyehall, Shock-haired, ruddy-cheeked, with immense shoul-
ders, he would argue ar Jaugh over a dinmy joke with equal vehe-
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mence, spewing out a stream of winy, fithy .,_._E_nm“ through a heav-
itv chewed cigar. He was described as looking fke a small-own
storekeeper and 1alking like a sworm mooper. He was 2 tough home-
steader. former mavor of Laramie, Wyoming, and & catile-coumry
lawver af the oid school. Like lckes and Morgenthau, he baizd the
mu_m‘ﬁ_:wm. He was 5 bitier cnemy of comuption. .ﬁ.ﬁﬂ-a_._._,m a Wnﬁ_
months in office he clezned up the building .Eu:mﬁ.ﬂazﬂm_mm in 74
indiciments against 985 defendants, He was accompanied everywhere
by his beloved dog. Duffy Amold. He was so boastful that at one
Wihite House bunguet, he said to fellow trusthuster Z_".uﬂ:wm.. Hw.nuF.
“You kmow. I'm the most famous Arnold that ever fived.” “"How
sbout Benedicr?"” Linell’s wife quipped. S

During the first weeks afier Pearl Harbor, Amold drave hus 19
Lz Saile automeobile with is shaky rear end theough .&m streets .n__,
Washington to a series of meetings with Tekes at Jckes's house. As A
result of these meetings Arnold obtained permission fram En,zm?d.:m
and weak Atwymey General Francis Biddie to hold a meetmg with
Farish in the SEHMH of the synthetic mbher wstrictions that %..Eo_dm
Germany still and drastically incanvenicnced American motorists and
the Arny. Navy. ard Alr Foree, )

On mmwwémﬂuuﬂ 1942, Amold, with documents stuffed ::pmq.r_m
amms. followed by his loyal team of secretaries and aides, strode 10O
the lion's den smtmﬁmn&ww_ at 30 Rockefeller Plaza. Just _uww:...n him
were Secretary of the Navy Franklin Knox and Secntary of the mem
Henry L. Stmsoen. Willium §. Farish was there o greet them. In lac
boardroom Amold shasply laid down his charges while the others
lonked hard at him. He spelled it ot that he had the soods an Stan-
dard; tat by continuing to favor Hitler in rubber deuls and patent
amangements, the Rockefeters, Teagle, and Farish rm_ﬂ_ &mﬁn againsl
the interests of the American sovernment. Chewing his cigar @ pulp
as he turmed over the documents, Amold coolly suggested a fine of
%1.5 milkion and a consent decree whereby mﬂmumua-ﬁuc_m turn over
for the duration ull the patents Frank Howard had picked op in Hat-
land. .

Farish rejected the propasal an the spot. He pointed out that Stan-
dard, which was fucling a high percentage of the Amiy., ZEQ;_ and
Air Farce, was making it possible Tor Americy 1o win the war. Whene
would Ametica be withow it? This was bleckmail, and Armold was
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forced into a defensive pasition. He conferred hastily with Stimson
and Knox. The result was that he asked Fadsh ta what Standacd would
arree. After &1, ther= had to be at least a woken punishment. Farish
safd with icy contempt that he would pay $50.000, to be divided
equally among so long a list of execulives and cormarations that each
would wind up paying no mon: han $600. Arnold, Stimson. and
Knox soon realized they had no power {o compare wilk (hat of Stan-
dard. They did manage o reduce the nurmber of defendants to ten,
Farish paid 51,000, or a quarer of one week's salary, for having
hetrayed America.

Standard underwent a process of law in the criminal couris of
Newark, New Jersey. This was a echnicality in order to satisfy pub-
lic opimion. The charges of criminal conspiracy with the enemy were
dropped in retyn for Standard releasing its patents and paying the
modest fine. Ickes wrote in his diary on April 5 diat when the Tight
was thrown on a situation like this, it made it essicr to understand
why some of the great and powerlul in the country were Nazi-minded
and were confident of their ability o get along with Hider, After all,
he added, they had becn doing business with Hitier right along. They
understood each other's language and their aims were common. A
complete exposure, he added, would have a very good effect on the
United States.

Amold agreed. Although he had crumbled at the meeting at Rock-
efelier Plaza. he had another recourse by which he could drag 5tan-
dard through the mud. He and Tckes had a sturdy ally in Harry 8
Truman. ap enemy of Jesse Jones. The Senator from Missoori was in
charge of the Truman defense comminee, dedicated to EXPOsing trea-
sonigble arangemenis. With great enthusiasm Give ‘e Hell Harry
embarked on a sedes of hearings in March 1942, ie order to disclose
the tiuth zbout Standard.

On March 26, Amoid appeared before Truman in an exceptionaliy
buoyant meod in arder 1o lay in [tont of the commitee his specific
charges against the oil compeny. He had dug up a great deal of dir.
He produced documents showing that Standard and Farhen in Ger-
many bad iiterally carved upr the world madkets, with 0§l and ¢ hemi-
cal monopolies established afl over the map. He fourished Papers
showing that Farish had refused to send vital paent infammation to
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Canada because Germany and Canads were at war, He showed how
Farsh had Aagranidy disregarded Lend-Lease apd good neighbor pol-
icies m his connivance with Hitler. He zeroed in on the suhject of
synthetic rubber. pointing out that it had been denied to (he U.S.
Navy, and that Furish and Howard had delibertely sidetracked a Navy
representative from seeing the processes. He charged that cables
showed Standard's armangements with Japan thal wer w0 coolinue
throughout any conflict or break in trade. Leaving the Senaie cham-
ber on March 28, surronnded by lots of reporters and photwsmphers.
Trerman was asked, “'Is this treason?’” He replied in the affimmative.

Farish compietely [ost his head. instead of dding out the storm
with cool indifference and waiting for his appearance before the com-
mittee, he held press conferences, fired off telegrums from Rockefel-
ler Plaza to the President. issued lengthy and complicaed statements
on the radio, and Wld The New York Tines in a statement prepared
by Teagle. who sat up all night to write it, that Amold’s charzes had
“rol a shadow of foundation.™ Appearing before the committes on
March 31. he shouted a1 Truman and Amold that he repudiated
everything szid about Standard *‘with indignation and resentment™
and asserted that he had not o any way been disloyal to the United
States. He claimed that the deal with [.G. Farben helped the United
States since a number of palenls were now in America’s possession.
He neglected 1o add that the only wason they were in Amerca's
possession was that a eriminal court judge bad ordered them o be.

©n April 2 2 flushed and imitable Thummar Ameld came 0 lekes's
oftice from a further hearing in which Farish hiad repeated his denials,
and fold him. *'The Standard Ofl guys have committed pegury. [
know it. I have xeperted it. Will they be indicted? ™ He almady knew
the answer: Thew would not be indicted. Amold weni on to derovnee
Secretary Jesse H. Jones to Ickes for complicity with Standard in the
whole matter,

Roosevelt was very unhappy with the hearings. Publicly expasing
Teagle and Farish was not helping him use them for America’s pur-
poses. He had had enough of Amold as the hearings concluded. He
kicked hirn upstairs ta the U.S. Court of Appeals. Ickes wrote in his
diary on April 5 that Arnold had beer more or less papged. The
War and Navy depaniments insured that Roasevelt suspended znw fur-
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ther andirust setions against the corporasions for the duraton. They
couldn™ {as the Rockeleller Plaza meeting had made clear} run an
Army and Navy withaout Standard,

Teagle was so aggravated and diswessed by the auacks of the Tru-
man Commitiee and Amaild that e senl Roosevel a lener ayving o
explzin his position @nd enderng his resignation as chuiel of the Na-
tionzl War Labor Baad. Qo April 2. 1942, Roosevelt wrowe to him,
"My Dear Mr. Teagle: | have vour Tever of March 23rd about re-
staning from the National War Labor Board. 1 hape vou will not da
50 as your wark on the Board has been, und | know wiil prove (o be.
of great service ta the country. Your connection with the suit against
the Standard Ol Company does not in my opinion 1and I have dis-
cussed this with the Aromey Generai} affod 2 reason for vour with-
drawing from the Board.” But in September, Teagle, shattered by
the {uriher disclosures of the subsequent Bone Commitiee, sgain of-
tered his resignation and Roosevelt this time accepted it with the
cavefully put together statement, 1 do want you 1w know how much
1 appreciate the long moenths of hand work which you have put in

. and the sincere and very valuable contibution you have made
1 the war elfot. ™

Farish remained on the War Peiroleurn Board. On Aprl 3. 1942,
Ickes called Rooseveit in the Oval Office. He protested against Far-
ish’s being in that position, but Rooscvelr instructed him net to ask
Farish 1o resign. That same day Tekes cafled John D. Rockefefler T
at home in Tarmytown. Despite Roosevelt’s statement Jekes decided
0 Ask his job and ask Rockeleller wo dismiss Farish from the past on
the theory tha! Rocketeller would want w clean his own nest and
escape the drastically unfavorable publicity caused by the hearings.
He began by telling Rockefeller that he knew of the relationship be-
ween Standard znd 1.G. Farben, Rockefeller was silent. Jokes went
on. saying that public opimon wauld (orce him to take action: that he
was 1ol recommending that Rackefeller ged rid of Farish bui teiling
him in advance that an embarrassing situsuion might develop with
further hearings that would force Farish to go.

Rocketeller s2id thaw he had the umost confidence in Farish and
Teaigie; that he Delieved in their honesty, their sincerity, and their
patsiotism. Rockefeller wlleged that be iook no aciive pan in the at-
tairs of S1andard and knew nothing of what was going on. despite
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the ¢xisience of Schrider, Rockefeller, Inc. He added hat he was
z0mg ta stand by these (wa men unless further facs convinced him
they were in the wrong. But he did not expect to discover that they
had been in the wrong. The Rockefellers, he said, always stood hy
their friends; perhaps that was the reason why the Rockefellers had
s many friends.

dckes said he didn’t wane w make siap judgments, but in 2 sita-
tion ke this, where the sdministmiion was concerned, one had to
pay some zttention to public opinion. He added hat he had de peo-
ple w consider, that the peaple be persveaded that the government was
rOL COVEring up or pratecting any individeal to the detriment of the
war effort. Unfortunately, as Iekes very well knew. that was exactly
what the government was doing.

The failowing day Truman came 10 luach with Ickes. Trerman said
ihat lekes ought to fize Farish innmediately from the War Petroleum
Board. Ickes didn™t have the nerve o tell Truman that the President
had protected Tarish. Instead he blamed the newspapers for putting
an effective iid on the stinking pot with the vimost celerity and dex-
terity. He told Truman that he had never seen a better job of under
playing the news, except for e fitst stories that came off the presses.
He added that within his experence there had never been 2 more
complete jusufication of the chagre that big busimess and advertisers
had tremendows influence with the press. He added, in his diary for
Apnt 11, that there was no use in buuing his head against a stone
wall,

Truman told the Secretary of the Interior he was drastically against
the monopolies. He condemned the doilar-a-year men who were
featherbedding their own industries ar the govermument’s expense. He
promised to do what he could with further inguiries.

lekes was pot content. He prodded Senator Homer 1. Bone inio
the Patents Commitice, which began hearngs in the Senae op May
. Bane shared the feistiness of Ickes, Amold. and Truman when it
came o the question of Standard. On May 2, Amold s keenesi {Hend
tn the Anticeust. voung Jeving Lipkowitz, shoveled up still more dirc
He could prove 1hat Standard hiad delibertely retarded producrion of
the vital war matedal zeetic acid in faver of the Nazis, He chared
Stndard with being *'I.G. Farben's Chardie McCarthy in the chemi-
cals field. ”” Lipkowiz was followed by Semator Robert M. La Fol-

it
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lewte. Ir.. who denounced Teagle and Farish for issuing *'as despicable
2 piece of public relations work by a giant corporation as I have ever
seen.” He wenl on. “"The Standard officials not only did not have
guts enough 0 come before this Cammitice wday where they could
be swarn and cross-examined. but they lefi the officials wha made
their dinials anunymous. ™" He said that Standard and Farfsh ~adopted
that age-oid 1ule of debate, *when you ate weak on facts, give »m
hett.” ™ :

On May 6, John R. Jacobs, Ir., of the Anormey General's depact-
ment, testified that Standard had interfered with the American explo-
sives industey by blocking the use of a metod of producing swnihetic
ammoniz. As g resuli of its deals with Farben, the Unfted States had
been unable to gel the use of this vital process even after Pear]
Harbar. Also, the United States had been vestricted in techniques of
producing hydrogen from namal gas and from obtaining paraflow, a
product used for airplane lubrication at high alimdes. Jacobs pra-
duced a document showing that on Septemnber 1, 1939, the day Ger-
many invaded Poland. Stapdard cabled Farben offering $20,000 for
tts 20 percent interest in a Standard subsidiary handling the patents
they shared between Liem. Jacobs showed a Siandard memo that read,
“Of course what we have in mind is protecting this minorty intensst
of LG, in the event of war benveen ounelves and Germany as it
would certainly be very undesirable to hawve this 20 percent Standard-
[.(i. pass to an alien property custodizn of the U.S. who mighe sell
it 1o an unitiendly interest,””

Jacobs revealed thal it hud been arranged that Farben in Germany
should file applications in France and England for various oil devel-
opments in Standard’s name during the war. Senawr Bone was sa
shocked by this disclosure that he calied {1 “aslounding™ and said,
"I the war does nothing clse, it ought to clesn up a systern like
this.”” On May 7, Farish hailed the committee with a futous tele-
gram. He denied that he had avoided appearing and said that he had
sought to appear to clear the record but had been refused _ﬁﬁimmiu.
The telegram was several hundred words long and was so compli-
cited a5 10 be wirtvally unreadable. As usual, Farish was simply trying
10 confuse and bamboozle the commitiee, which was in fact perfectly
prepared to have him appear. {t was quite obvious that he preferred
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w sheiter behind fntrcate und cxpensive telegrams rather than face
the comniittee in persorn.

The hearings resumned on August 7. Texas qjl operator C. R. Starnes
appeared to testify that Standard had blacked hiw at Every tum in his
efforis to produce synthetic mbber afier Pearl Harhar. Farish fired off
another telegram 1o Bone, saying he was at a loss o understand wihy
Bone permittied his commitiee 10 be used us a sounding board for
“reckless, unsupported accusations. ' He charged Starnes with vtler-
ing “‘glaving falsehoods and misrepresentations, ** and he Hally denied
that he had restricted Stames in any way. Flying in the face of
Starnes’s evidence. he said that *‘like al] Americans, who want to get
or with this war, we have hesilated 1o contdbute g any way to pro-
longed public conurmversy and hame-calling. But the abuses of demo-
cratic procedures which oceurred ar vesterday s hearing must be
promptly and opeoly bracded for what they are, or we shail be in
danger of losing the very things this nation is fighting for.” He went
on:

The mast slandermus statements of Mr. Stames were ot from the press
release, and ihese murilated copics were 2ctuatly distobuted o the press
in your commines room by your own committee counsel. Your counsel
can hardly plead that he wos unawars of the wild and senmilous natere
of the statements the witness was going wo make. The circumstances of
the withess's appearance ape peculiar. Even though vou persanal]y stated
that he had appearsd on his own initiatve, it is a singular coineidence
that the wstimony of this man was presented on the identical mimeo-
graph set-up as had been the iestimony of previgus witesses presented
tnder the commitize s sponsorship.

These fulminations sat ill with Bone and wid Roosevelt's speeial
ruither committee headed by the famous Bemand Baruch, which was
holding meetings an park benches ip Lafayette Square tecding pi-
geons while it discussed (he rubber crisis. Hatless and in shirtslegves
in the heat, the Baruch comminee wrangled desperuely in an effort
1o overcome the rubber shonage.

On August 12, Richard ). Dearborn of the Rubber Resernve Co., a
federal agency. angrily denied Stames's charges. However, since he
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was affilizied with Standard and with the Texas Company. his denials
conrld scareely be said 10 be objective. John R, Jacobs mappeared in
an Army private’s umiform the had been inducied the Jday before) tw
bring up vet another disagrecable maten: Standard bad also in leazoe
with Farben respicted production of methanal. 2 wood zicohol that
was somedmes used as waotor Tuel.

Firally. cn August 20, the varous complications were ironed out
and Fansh and Howard tumed up before the commitee. Howarnd ar-
gued that Stendard was aiding the war effort with ails, synthetics,
and ovker products now nsed in fighting planes. \anks, cannon, and
ships. He added that so far as Standard had lesmed tirough exami-
nations of ails, fuels, and rubber wken from Nazi planes that had
been shot dewn, Genmary had “'not made excensive use™” of the ex-
chenge infermation. He did nat explain how he had had access to
planes that had beco shot down or haw he had been able to make
such determinations from mangled or exploded {uselages,

Creekmore Fath, commitiee counsel. prodded Farish fiewcely about
supplving aviation gasoline to the Nazi airlines in Brazil. He snaded,
“Wiihy the Lend-Lease program in action, were you following the
United States or the Almighty doliar in supplying gasoline 10 the Lad
Line?™*

"l was following the Almigfuy State Depaniment,” Farish re-
teried. Do you guestion the motives of the State Department?”

Clashes berween Fath, Farish, and Howard were frequent. Farish
wis supected w0 a grueling cross-exarnination in which Fath fre-
quently accused him of lying. Bone snapped at Farish. ‘“Are vou
familiar with court procedure in which the plaintff is heard fist?”

Farish snapped back, “Do you mean © compare this inguiry to a
<O proceeding?

Bone added. ““Standard O} mav be a large outfit bui it is no1 going
to misinform the Awerican people while [ remain alive. I'm fed up
with oulits [fke vours intimating that Congress js 1rving o ride them.
Gaod knows were not. No one is bie enough 1o ride yoor outfit:
voure the higgest corporation in the world. ™

The effect of the inquiries on the Tezgle and Farish families was
witimately shattering. Farish's twa sons were in the Amny Air Force

ami must have been told often that Stendad was fueling the planes
that they were combating. Mrs. Teagle and Mrs, Farish had to cope
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with the women's clubs. As for stockholders’ meetings, chey were
uncomiorable 0 say the least. Sales dropped and coslomiers were
angered. In desperation Farish’s Big Board hired a top-tlight public
relations conseltant, Earl Newsom, to improve the company s dam.
aged image. John D. Rockefeiler questioned Teagle and Farish on
the maters. obviously rying o avoid direct entanglement by seeming
not to know the details of the German transactjons. Press conferences
were held in which Farish made glowing anpouncements of the help
that was being given the war effon. All of this failed o heal the
trauma caused by the severe ordeal in Washingion. Farish lierally
died in ali ¢xcept the physical sense during the Bone Commitee hear-
ings. Almost equally shattered, Teagie seldom atended a board meet-
ing ugain. He was so deeply wounded that he would sleep for long
hours and even showed a diminished imlerest fn hunting. The com-
dors of Rocketeller Plaza seldom heard his heavy trend. Whatever he
might pretend, Truman and Booe and Thurman Arnold had jointly
destroved him.

On November 29, Farish, after spending Thanksgiving with his
family in New York. drove up to his hunting lodge, Diewich Faons,
near Millbrook, New York. He spent rhe day walking through the
golden woods surrounding the {arm. Those who saw him noticed that
his brows were knilied ie worry and that be looked pale. Shorily after
two a’clock that night, he felt very ill and a4 doctor camne to the house.
At two thity the Tollowing morning he called oul 10 his wife in an
adioining room that he had 2 severe pain in his arm. A few minutes
Jater he was dead ol a beart allack. The funeral rook place at St
James Episcopal Chursch in New York on Monday_ Another service
was held in Houston, where he was baried,

Amang the pallbearers were Teagle and the new chairman, Ralph
W. Gaillagher. Others accornpanying the cofiin were Generad Motors®
Affred P. Sloan and e National City Bank's president, William G.
Erady, Jr. Frank Howard was alse in sttendance. Harold Jekes, whase
diaries duily excorated the Standard-Nuzi conneetion, felt compelled
o deliver o hypocritical tribute for the occasion. Inspired rnore by
propiiety than honesty, the Old Curmudgeon ted:

Pieel 3 vory feal seose of [oss in the deab of Mr, Pansh, He was a
memmhet. from the begioning. of our perralewm indosity commitees and
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of the petroieurn industey War Counwil. As such he gave the fulles
measere of sincers, able and paigotic service o the manifold program
which has been necessary (0 mobilize o), fiest for nationat defense amd
tben (or war. He did so even when the taking of these steps called for
a disregard of normal competitive considertion. His place jn the poero-
leem war pregmum will not be easily filied,

Meanwhile. on August 8. 1992, Standard was still bosy, The com-
pany s West India Oil Company had shipped to the Nagzi-sssociated
Cia Argentiniza Comercial de Pesqueria in Buepos Atres on Treasury
licenses. The 1.5, Embassy in Argentina and the Swe Deparonent
suthorized the gansaction, along with members of the Petwleum Board
in Washington who were also receiving a salary {mm Stendand.

On August 24, Iohn 1. Muccio, First Secretary of the U5, Embassy
tn Panama, wrotz a letter to Cordell Hull headed ““Suspicious corre-
spondence—possible Axis control of fuel patent. ™ The district postal
censor had Intercepted a letter from Miguel Brawn, 2 Cosw Rican
inventor, m Frank Howard and H. M. McLarin of Siandard, offering
for sale 2 newly invented fuel known as Braunite ihat Braun had
develaped. Bravn was seoretary and treasurer of Chemnyvea, LG,
Farben’s blacklisted New York subsidiary. The responding letter from
Howard expressed intercst in pumchasing (he patent and soon after
procecded to tegotiate for it

Qo August 28, a commerciol atachg staff member in Arzentina
petmitted a Standard subsidiary 1o seil 0 another Farben subsidiary
of Buenos Alires despite the fact tiat the Argentine subsidiary was
blacklisted,

In the {zlf of 1942 it became clear that Gemmany was already in
desperate heed of oil. Because of severne weather, shipment of barges
eod ank cais was drasiically restticted, in Africs, General Bernard
Montgomery had smashed the Germans and Traliaps at T Alamein.
The Russians had succecded v their offensive against the Nazi ar-
mies,

Switzerland proved more and mere valuable as & meutril countey.
On the surface leaning in the direction of the Allics, that country was
in fact in 3 poomanest stale of equivoeation. exchanging rew ma-
rais in Germany for precisian insouwments and ools. Gemany used
Switzerland as 2 condud for oil into France, which by mid-November
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wis compleely ih German hands. It behaoved all loyal American
companies o do everything in their power o stop the flow of petro-
leum from Rumania and Hungary through Swierland for che trucks
and armored cars and tanks. Bul e crumbling regime of William
Farish had no such consideranon for patriotism, any maore (han Edse)
Fard had when he approved the supply of oucks for that same an-
eIy,

[n Switzerland the headquarters staff of Standard (il was in con-
stant touch with Rockefeller Plaza. It was not charered to separafe
itgelf independently since It was in ncutral rermitory. At the baginning
of Wovember 1942, Hensd Henggler and David Duvoisin, ihe Sean-
dard bosses in Beme, paid an urgent visit o Leland Hamison and
Daniel Reagan, respectively minister and comimercial attaché of the
United Statcs, They asked permission fo coptinue shipping Nazj ol
from Rumtania, from the il fields that S1andaed had sold (or eased)
to the MNazis. The ofl was 10 be carried by tank car through Swilrer-
land for use by, among others, the Gennan and Hungarnan embassies,

Hamisou and Rezzan had been given a clear mandate by the Stxie
Department on July 10, allowing them to license transactions be-
tween Amerfoan concems 2nd enemy gationals based on the original
Executive Order 8389 pevmiting such (ransactions. The procedure
wis that local members of the diplomatic coms hud to apply to hoth
[Jean Acheson and Morgenthon for the dssuing of such licenses. The
meeting berween Henggier and Duvoisin of Swiss Standard and Har
rta0n and Reagan was exirermely cordial, While Hatrison and Reagsn
promised to fake the mater up in Washington, they suggested tha
Henggler and Duvoisin should deap jn und see the Swiss politcal
depanment o sec what the focal goverment s atdtude might be. Tl
iwo Standard men went over W iz government offtces, where they
received a chamcieristically Swiss roply. The officials eminded their
visttors thal ~“We shall of vourse. gendemen, have to take inta con-
sigeraiion our locsl laws, Article 273 ot our Penal Code provides that
snvane who sells w2 alien with wwhom e 35 a1 war can be seaenced
in this country to auprsonment.” The officials wid Henggler and
Dwvaizin that they would proceed as follows. The Swndard men must
ggree oot o reveal the mames of the enemy companics o which 1hey
wauld be supplying prodocis, Thos, Switzerland would be nealdy et
T the hook.
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Danjel Reagan wrote 10 Acheson on November 4. urging him to
aoree to fhe arragement Tor the oil shipment. He said that sice the
mﬂf.mmm would oot authorize the arrangements that instructions for the
shipments should come direetly from New York, Reagan wrote:

Srandard wants permissen to fome and 1mnspont in Swizedand gaso-
line and fizel vils imported for the vse of the Nazi and Hongarizn Le-
pations. Standard il unboad o the Swiss rallway staton (om milosds
contmlled by the Axis. American and British il companies an: depen-
dent opan the eremy tor pewrolenm stppiies impored by the Swiss
syndiczie, Perrola, To irritate the coemy by andering Standard 1o dis-
camtinue the service performed for enemy legalions might give ihe en-
ey o prerakl foir reflising fo persir off of enemy origin do be disoibured
I American companies. ® The 115, Legation ts heated by conl of en-
emy ofigin and ihe legaton s aulomobiles aw propelled by ebemy pas-
aline. If Standard discontinues storing and mansponing aii and gasoline
fot enetty legations. the latter can undoubtedly have this service per-
formed by a pon-Anencan company. To compel the Ainescan ooncem
o cease these tronsactions with enemy legations . . . might resulr in
reprisals aeaingl Standard and other Amercan and Brtsh il compa-
wies, The lepation accordingly recommends that Suandad be licensed
i continue this operafion.

Reagan also asked for Swandard to be given permission to pay a
Naz] emplovee of Scandard 3 monthly payment through a German-
Swiss cleaning account. Reagan went on (¢ discuss Standard’s owner-
ship of the Rhiine barge Fyro 4, which was presentty commandeerad
by Genmany. DAPG, the German Standard subsidiary, had contin-
ued after Pearl Harbor to pay rental to 11.S, Standard for the barge.
Alse, the Danube barges Fico § and Pico [ were supplying 1.G.
Farben. Krupp. and other Nazi industrial powers, and DAPG was
siphonting payments through to New York. Reagan asked if the pay-
ments could continue.

The mater of Jeen Inglessi came uwp, He was an official of the
Standard Oil office In Pans under the Nazi occupation. He was alse
on Swiss Standard’s board in Lawsanne. Peagan urzed that Inglessi
e kept on.

4 Athar s itulics.
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Furthermore, Reagan urged Stade to approve the matter of Standard
railway tank cars carmying oii theough Occupied France to Switzer-
land. Several of these had heen commandeered by the German army,
The cars were covered hy Swiss war sk insurance. Seandard wanted
permission w0 assist the Swiss authorides to obtain reimbursement
from the Niazis becguse the tank cars had been bombed by the British.
Op December 11, Minister Leland Harmison advised Cordell Huli and
the others that the British Legation in Swierland concurred with the
recommended armangements.

On December 26, 1941, John G, Winent, U.5. Ambassador to
Britair, discussed the matier with the Chancellor of e Exchequer,
Sir Kingsiey Wood. Inst2ad of swopping these transactions at onee,
Winant and Wood dectded that it would evepmaily he *‘preferable™
i a Swiss company transporied oii for the enemy legations het that
there was no objection 10 the procedure continuing and that *'lt is
best mt o incur amy risk of |offending the enemy] by raising this
issuc.”” The note comtinued, “‘Embassy concurs with Britzsh view
that an balapce there s oo reason for taking acdon which would at
mast e only mingr iritant w0 Germans and which might complicawe
an already difficult siteation or lead to unfortunate consequences as
regards to {uiure operations of American and British oil companics. ™

The embassy and rhe British agreed that the Nazi emplovee could
ibe paid each momh, that payment tor the barges should be licensed,
and that Jean Inglessi showtd be aflowed to continue in office pro-
vided he did not live in Occupied France. Alsa, the license should be
given to penmt Standard oy communicate with France, via the Chase
Bank in Pariz, to recover the tank cars or obtain war risk indemmity
trom the Germans, again through the Chase.

On December 29, Winant's office—he was ¢n route 1o Washina-
ton—advised that all licenses should be granied & requested .

The matter was handed over to Morgenthau, who under severe
pressure from State was compelied w authorize almost atl of the ar-
rangenients bt deferved decision on the business of supplving the
enenty consulates with oil and allowing Siandad ta ship tiac oil.
However, he permitted the shipments to continee antl the Swiss
company could efficiently take over.

On Junoary 28. [943. Hamison protested the decision on shipment
by repeating that *'to provoke enemy unnecessaniy [was] bighly un-
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desimble. ™ Bul he did promise effarts would be made to have the
Swiss company transfer the services. Inglessi mast surely be mﬂoﬁ.mm
to stay in office even though, Hamrison revealed, he was workimng for
Standard in Occupied France. .

The result of all this was that Standard continued to fuel __..n.nn-
emy, and ihe enemy fueled die U.S. Legauon and its automabiles,
until at Teast tnid-1943. .

Other transactions continued, On March 5, 1943, a Heense ,,,.,ﬁm
granted permitting Standard in Brazil to pay an enemy corporztion
for special apparatus. On Masch 22 an enemy agent on En. Eﬁnw_._ﬂ
was leensed o Teceive $3,668 by Sanderd for Jegal services in Rio.
The licensing went on and on. On Aprt 21, 1943, Duvoisin .nmznm
Zunch confirming the shipment of 16.7 tons of fuel to the Axis. The
message was intercepted by censorship and sent smost urgenily 10 all
branches of intelligence but nothing was dane about it, )

On Tuse 1, 1943, 1. F. Stone of The Nation {who knew aothing of
the aforementioned secrel correspondences which were classified up
(a 1981) anended the Standard stockholders’ lunicheon st the Fﬁamm
of Hushandry Hall in Fleminglon, New lermey. He reported that in
an early American setting. Ralph W Gatlagher. successor 1w Walter
Teaghe as chairman, sought 10 reply to the angry stockholders ﬁ_H.E
questioned the [.G. Farhen association. Craltagher pulled rwo rabbits
out of 2 hat: (wo meek young men wha had survived torpedoad Stan-
dard Ol tankers that had becn sunk (by same miscalculation}. One
$1zndard supparter asked the crowd how amyone could question ihe
patriotism of a company that had given the lives of ,,.__Rm. r:m..&.o.m of
‘i< men jn the war against the submatine. At this point,” Stone
wrate, ‘“vour correspondent was tuken il

Fames W. Gerard. former ambassador te Germiany, spake in sup-
port of the company. saying (hat he had no knowledge of anw such
A mencan-CGemman reigtions. Only a handful of those present knew
thar he had left Germany and his post there a decade before 1.G.
Farben was [ormed.

As 2 orand finale 0 & meeting notable for its black humor. Ralph
W . Gullagher said unblushingly, We never had any wm_ﬁ arrange-
ment with 1.G. Faben. ™ Al that moment The Nadon s reliable cor-
fespondunt again telt unwell. .

Only eight days later, in 2 seeret document dated June 9, 1943,

P——— ]
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C. I-. Savourin of Standard Qi) in Venezuela was aumtharized 1o con-
tinue ading in oil with Gustavy Zingg's* company and three other
Praclaimed List corpomations to the mnc of a totad of 13,000 kilos a
month.

On June 15, Joseph Flack, American chargé d'afTaires in Caracas,
sent to Hull an astonishimg list of ““sales made to Proclaimed List
nationals™™! Such month)y lists were sent to Washington throughout
the entire war.

Suate Depuriment memoranda in August 1943 show trading was
permitied between a Standard subsidiary and iive Proclaimed List na-
tionals in Caracas, Veneruela, that were shipping oil w Aruba for
use Iin Spain.

None of these transactions was cver made public, The dewils of
themn remained buried in classified files for over forty years. How-
ever, it proved impossible Tor Raiph Gallagher and Walter Teagle,
who remained active hehind the scenes, to conceal the fact that ship-
ments of oil continued to fascist Spain throughout Wardd War {1. paid
for by Franco tonds that had been unblocked by the Federil Reserve
Bank while Loyalist funds were sent to Nazi Gemmany from the vaults
of the Bank of England, the Bank of France, and the Bank for Inter-
nationzat Senlements.

The shipments 10 Spain indirectly assisied the Axis through Span-
ish transferences to Hamburg. Al the same iime, there were desperate
shortages in the United States, long lines ai the gas stations, and even
petolenm retioning. While Amenican civilians and the armed ser-
vices suffered alike from restrictions, moere gasaline went o Spain
than it did to domesiic Qusiomers.

The whistle was blown by U.5. Ambassador Carleon J. H. Hayes
in Madrd on February 26. 1943, who made a statement that “oil
products available in (his counuy of Spain are considerablv higher
ihan the present per capita distribution o the people of the Adantic
Seabioard of the United Stumes.”” Asked by The New Fork Tines how
this could be explained, a spokesmen for Cordell Hull declared blandly
that the ail came from the Carbbean and not from the Uniiled Staies
apd was hauled by Spanish tankers, The evasiveness of the response
wits typical. The spokesman alse neglected to mention {hat shipments

*Melran Bockefeliars lessoe in Carees,
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were going to Wichy and o French West Indian postessions under
collaborative influence.

Hayes tevealed dhat the casoline and petrolesm products equaled
the full capacity of the Spanish tanker fieet. He neglected 1o add that
much of that fleel procceded regularly to Cermany and helped ro fuel
Nagzis, including their embassies and consulates and military insial-
_m:o:_w. (anks and armored cars s well ax Spantsll {roOp Lransports
on ﬁ_ﬁ._wﬁmam front, fighting against the Soviet Union, which was
America’s ally.

In addition to oil. 25,000 ions of sulphate of ammoma were shipped
w0 Spain in 1943 aleng with 10,000 tons of cotton, despite American
shortages in hoth commodities.

The economist Heary Waldman wrote 1o The New York Times on
February 26, stating 1t 2ccurately a8 it was: “"Here we ane, a nation
actuaily assisting an enemy in time of war, and not only that, but
ME__HM.H_.__E:W: our Ambassador. that we stand ready to continue and
n.ﬁ:w:m such help . . . Spein is (an cnemy | and vet we aid her.”

Needled by this and ollier criticisos, Sumner Welles announced oo
March I1 thal “adequate guarantees have been furnished to satisfy
the British and United States govermments that none ol these guan-
vities of oil will reach Germany or German territory.” He ev idently
chase not to reveal that such poarantees from the mouth of General
Franco were useless.

The fiow of ¢i] contipned. On Janwary 22, 1944, Dean Acheson
said that ©'Oil is aliowed to go to Spain as pari of the bargaining
done with neutral countries to keep them {rom supplyimg the enemy
with what he wants (rom them.”" This statement was made on an

~RC broadeast entitled “The State Depardment Speaks.” He was
telling only half the story.

The {act thal this was so was revealed within less than a week.
Despite oppasiiion by Acheson. Havold Ickes overnuled everybody
and wenl to see Roogevelt. The result was that the Unied Sutes
suspended oil shipmenis to Spain. Ickes had accumulated a dossier
fvom his special staff of jovestigators. The dossier showed that in fact
oif was going to Germany, thai German agents were operating {reely
on Spanish Lerritory, 2nd that Franco had jost released 400 million
pesstas af ¢redit to Genmany. This would insure the Gennans a flow
of all the oil it needed, ptus unlimited supplies of wolfram, the ore
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from which tungsten, a hard substance capable of penetmiing steel,
was made.

Of course. ali of thiz was known o the United Stawes Stare De-
janment long before Ickes took drastic acilon. Nevertheless, nothing
whatsoever was done about it For a bref period the wruth emerged
aboul Spamn. Spanish ships were searched at sed, showing i oil,
platinuon, induserial dismonds. and fiver extract, from whick the Ger-
rmans niade a vanic for fliers, submacne cews. and even shock iroops,
were coming from Argendna and the Caribbean on Spanish vessels,
admitad through the British blockade by American licenses.

On Tuneary 28, 1944, the British zovemment cut off odl. gasoline.
and other petroleam products te Spain. Franco protested violently.
Dean Acheson pemained sensibly silent.

It was a brief period of sanity. On May 2, 1944, after ondy three
and a half months of suspension, the ail lobby won a fight to resiore
shipments and 1o allow limited waolfram exports 1 Geanany as well
In order 1w secere this imporant move, Cordell Hull amanged for
General Frameo to expel Mazi agenis from Spain. Tangier, and the
Spanish Zone of Nonh Afnica. Althoogh Franco more or less (ol-
Towed these polite reguests, he continued Lo hagbor larme numbers of
Mazis sheliering under diplomatic immunity. Them was never any
guestion of breaking off diplematic relations with Germany: 48.000
tons a month of American ail and 1,00 tons of wollmm began o
fiow back to the Nazis.

A certain grim amusement could be extracied {rom an intcrview
with R. T. Haslam,. vice-president of Standacd. on Septemiber 19,
1944, tn The New York Timeys. Haslam said that —"Germany has suc-
ceeded in producing & fine gasoline, the equivalent of our own, but in
timited quantities.” The remark passed almost unnoticed.

On July 13 1944, Relph W. Galiagher of Jersey Standard sued the
.5, povernrment for having seized the synthetic rubber patents kanded
over to Frank Howard at The Hague. 1.G. Farben lawyer Auguasl von
Knietiem flew in from Germany w lestify againgt Standard. Gallagh-
cr’s face was 1 piciure when he saw Kpictnem aer the counroom.
He knew Kniedem would reveal much of the muth of Standard s
dealings with the Mazis.

On November 7, 1945, Judge Charles E. Wyzanski gave his ver-
dict. He decided that the governmient had been entitled to seize the
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patents. Gallagher appealed. On September 22, [947, Judge ﬂ..mzm.m
Clark delivered the fimal word on the subject. He said, **Standard Oil
can he considered an enemy national in view of its relationships wilh
1.G. Farben.after the United States and Germany had become aclive
enctnies.  The appeal was demed.

The Mexican Connection

Even the supposed enemies of The Fratemnity wem ¢onnected to it by
alinost invisible threads. One of Jersey Standard’s miost powerlul ri-
vals in the field of petroleem supplies to Germany, Williarn Rhodes
Davis’s Davis Oil Company. was connected 10 Goring and Himmler.
Davis was linked ro Hermann Schmitz and [.G. Farben through the
Americans Wemer and Kad von Clemm, New York diamond mer-
chants (who wer tirst cousins 10 Nazi Foreign Minister Joachim von
Ribbeotrop by marmiage), and through the National City Bank.

The von Clemms were fanatical devotees of Germany, even though
both had become Amencan residents in 1932, They used a device
typical in Wazi circles: & device eopied, ironically, from the Roths-
childs. Qne brother stayed in Berdin, the other rematned in New Yok,
They were connected 10 the Schrider banks dirough interlocking di-
rectorships, and on the board of a company that helped finance Gen-
eral Motors in Germany along with 1.G. Farber.

In 3931 they linanced the Gestapo with funds suppiementing those
supplied by Schrider’s Stein Bank. Yet anodher Fratemity link was
their imvolvement wiath the First Nalional Bzank of Boston, an as-
suciate of the Bank for [nternational Setlements. They conceived the
idea of unblocking First National's blocked German marks o uild
a vast ol refinery for Gdring’s afr Toree and tor Farben and Eurotank
near Hamburg, with Karl von Clemn in charge. This oil miinery
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would byvpass the terms of the Versailes Convention and  supply
Giiong s so-called Glack Luitwalfe, which was secretly being pre-
pared for warld conguest.

In arder ta secure e oil for the refinery. the von Clemm brmhers
had 1w fing an Amercan wha would aid und abet them. The choice
was euey. From 1926 to 19320 Wemer von Clewim had (inancially
sustained a laren]y unsveeessful oil prospector and confidence track-
ster named William Rhodes Davis.

Davis was on the Taoe of it unprepossessing. He was shaet, not
muck aver five feel, with & selid-gold left from1 molar and a hadly
bowed left 1eg that contained a silver plate put there after e was
injured in a rain wreek in 1918, His head was too large for his bady,
and his Face sported a broken nose. Yeu despiie W s lack of good laoks
he had the une indispensable quality needed for suceess, He bad the
gift of mub, He was capable of talking anvone infto the ground. He
spoke in supcriatives. He never (wok no for an answer. and he would
shafi anyone when the chips were down.

Davis was barn in Montgomery . Alabama, in 1889, Poorly edu-
cated, he left school at sisteen and jumped a fieight car. A kindly
porter gave him a job as candy buwcher. selling chocolate and ice
cresm from a wrav, Railroed crazy, he gradeated o brakeman, fire-
mian, #nd engineer in the Southwestem states until the collision put
him oul of commission. Emerging [ram the hospital with a gimpy
ieg. he wsed his plight w0 his own advantage by working as 4 come-
dian on the Keith vaudeville circwit, making avdiences laugh as he
wigeled his distoted member in a dance. When his popularity ran
out. he shipped off on tramyp steamers as stoker. fieman. and engi-
neer.

Back in the United Saes . he dabbled in the oil business hut con-
sistemt)y went broke. He was under frequent investigation for & van-
ety ol swindles. People worne fascinated. even hypmotized. by him:
bt dizillusiniment would abvavs set in, {ollowed by the imaviiabbe
lawsuit. He sold dry wells, manipulated stocks. and set up and ¢ol-
lupsed small companies, cartying the sharcholders with kit

In 1926 he was pensiless. The von Clemm twings swepped into the
picture in 1933, Their support ef him saved fivm {mm tin and im-
|risoncaent. Ax oz mesult of this he became desply conunitted w Na-
#ism, He was fuscinated by the apulence of a Germiany haavily financed
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by Amcrican bank loans. the handsomie. healthy mien in black uni-
formis, the prety blond women. it all seemed @ {ar cry {rom the
breadlines and pinched faces of America n the Depression.

After the dea] with the German govemment over Enrotank, Davis
saw The way 1 make his foriune at [ast. He owned a few wells through
the von Clenuns® good graces. With Germisn money he could cer-
tainly s14n pumping.

He troveled o Berlin in 1933, He had w have ile personal ap-
proval of Hitler befare he could go ahead. He arrived at the Adion
Hatel, where Karl von Clemm arranged a reception for him o meet
Hermann Schmite of Farben, Kurt von Schrdder, and other Genman
members of The Fraeemity. He was welcome at once when he gave
the group the Nazi salute as he entered the room.

Nexi moming, two Gestapa officers delegawed by Himmnler amived
at the door of his seie. They carried with them a letier fvom the
Fiihrer. The former brakeman and candy butcher was overwhelmed.
He could not believe e liad recenved so signal an honoe. The letaer
asked him 1o meet with Finance Minister Hjalmar Schache at the
Reichsbank, When ke armved, Schacht seemed cold and uninterested
and breshed 1he whole matter aside. Schacht already had deals going
with Walter Teagle and Sir Henrt Detending of Shell. What did he
wani with this small fry?

Furious. Davis returned 10 the Adlon copty-handed. He wrole to
Hitler. insisting upon betier ueatment. Hider rephed rmmediarely in
person, asking him o return to the Reichsbank the following moming
for another meeling.

Mavis arrived in the boardegam at 1F ant. As FBI records show,
Schache smiled {aintly in 2 comer, abviously in no moed to talk. But
a doar flew open and thiny direcoars of the bank appeared, to greet
Diavis with warm bandshakes. Hitler strode in. Everveons jumped tw
anention and gave the Nazi sshute, Hitler said. “'Genilernen. | have
reviewed Mr. Davis’s proposition and it sounds feasible. | want the
hank o finance it. " Then be walked out. .

I was ciear to Davis that the directors of .G, Farben. slong with
Kot von Schrdder, had exemised influence over the Fihrer.

Davis wraveled o Enrtfand. wher he mesumed an eadier business
relationship with Lord toverdorih’s il company. He obtained miajor
concesgions in freland and Mexico. He traded Mexican oil for Ger-
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man machinery when it proved impossible o expart marks. Eurgtank
was built, By mmmu. Davis was shipping thousands of barrels of qil a
week from his wells in Texas and easwern Mexico.

Davis knew Senator Joseph F. Guifey of Pennsylvania, whose
fifend Pitishurgh oilman Wealler A, Jones had major .noﬂmﬂm in
Washineton. Through Guffey and Jomes, Davis met with John L.
Lewis. the labor leader of (he CIO. Davis worked hard on Lewis,
B..EE.HEM him that natonal socialism was preferable 0 democracy
and that the German worker far exceeded in health, good humar and
muscular prowess the American equivalenc. In 1936, Davis Emm_ 1o
infizence Roosevelt by pouring mongy into the election campaigh.
From then on he was always able w0 telephone the Oval Office.

In 1937 he saw a major opportunity in Mexico. He was convinced
President Jizaro Cardenas would nationakize the oil fields. He fore-
saw a way to corner all the oil in Mexico. In February 1938 he started
bribing w.mm:.E:Esm officials in the Mexican govemment. He made
a2 close {Hend of Nazi Vice-Consul Gerard Meier in Coernavaca. who
was allepedly encouraging Cdrdenas to invade and repossess Califor-
nia, Texas, Arizona, and New Mexico.

Davis obtained the Mexican govemment's cooperation. He was
promised all the oil in Mexico when Cardenas expropriated it on
March 18, 1938. Cardenas kept his promise. On Aprdl 18, John L.
Lewis telephoned Cérdenas's right-hapd man mr_n._u:_a.a Carrillo.
[ewis told Carrilio that Davis would be making a deal with Germany
and laly immediately and that these 1wo COUILHEs Were the anly two
with which it wouid be safe for Mexico to deal.

Why did America’s most famous Jabor leader support the E.EEm
of the Nazi war machine? Because Lewis had major leriitorial ambi-
fions himself. He dreamed of a Pan-American federation of labor of
which he would be the unchailenged leader. Throuwgh Davis, and
through Cdrdemas, he would be able to consclidate the unions north
and south of the border. In this he had the total collusion of Vincente
[ ombarda Toledane. head of the Mexican labor force.

By Tune 1938, Davis’s first tanker was steaming to Germany with
thousands of wons of Mexican oil. But by 1939 he was already run-
nming into trouble. On May 31 his cliiel geologist, Nazi Otwr Probst,
was Found murdered in his hotel room in Mexico City. Probst had
been strangled by a clothesling that was tied (o the heiad of his bed.
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The German Embassy intervened and prevented an autopsy, FBI in-
vestigarors determined Probst had been poisoned. It mmed out he had
bribed government officials and stimolated action againgl commu-
nists. 14 was almost certainly a communist Killing.

Communisi cells infilirated Trawvis’s growing ail empin:. He used
strikehreakers (0 vanguish the opposition and shipped millions of bar-
rels of ofl untit afier World War [1 broke oul in Burope.

Meanwhile, the von Clemm brothers profited enormously {from his
success. Gornz save them the German {ranchise in hops, puling
therni in virival conwol of the beer business.

Along with Davig, they became multimilionaires. In one of his
frequent visits Lo Genmany. Davis became close © a bespeclacled,
helbous-foreheaded vouth named Dr. Joachim G. A. Hertslet. Hers-
let worked with Helmuth Wohithat on Garing's economic staff and
he also worked on Emil Pohl's staff with Hans-Joachim Caesar, 1o a
series of wrgent meetings with Giring, Admiral Erich Raeder, and
vanious army chicls, these young economists arranged for Davis 1o
fuel the German navy. while Standard Off fueled the air force, Davis
and Ioachim Henslet amanged a German credit of 350 million
Cardenas to be used for the reconstrucdon of tie broken-down ma-
tonal railroad system. the building of irrigation and Tydroclecisic
power projects, and the setting up of new oii-field eguipment and
construction. Hersiet opened the German Import-Export Corporation
in Mexico City, which was to ald Bexica in stabilizing its currency.
It was Giring's plan to render Mexico 2 debtor repubbe that could
be relied upon to be an ally in time of war.

In meetings in Mexico City at the end of Angust 1939, Davis told
Herslet of his concern about what might happen to his oil shipments
il Germany was involved in war. The papers were full of forebod-
imgs. Davis saw his newfound empire crumbling. Whatever hap-
pened, he had to secure permanemt peace. He cabled Berlin on
September 1. 1939, asking Goring il he could see Ronsevelt to stave
off the conflice. Needless o say. inng’s reply was enthusiastic.
That same day he bad sent Efectroluy ‘s Axel Wenner«ren on a sim-
ilar mission (o Boosevell,

Hitler's attack on Meland and Brizin's subsequent declamtion of
war lhrew Davis into pasic. He had his colleague, the beautiful sec-
eiary BErma Wehrle, help him preparne a seoret ende. @ be approved
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by Himmier, which would allow him to kesp in touch with Hitfer and
evade British censorship in Bermuoda. The code designated Ema as
Chrysanthemum. Hitler as Heron, and surposingly. John L. Lewis as
Dune, Roosevelt, Garing. and aH ether figures had their code names.

Mexi, Davis rushed Hemslet to Berdin o insume Goring’s complete
support in the future. On September 3 he hiad an urgent conference
with Lowis. who called Roosevelt and insisted the President see he
anxious oilman.

Roasevell dared not offend Lewis because of Lewis's power over
the work force on the brink of de 194 ctection. However, he waus
afraid of what he called “‘emuy or ploi™™ J. Edgar Hoover and the
State Deparment’s Adolf A. Berie had handed lim ma sgive dossiers
showing Davis’s Nazi connections.

Like Ickes and Morgenthau, Berle was a fierce opponent of Nazi
Germany. Morgenthau and Ickes were very happy to have hizn deat
directly with the Davis matier. Busy fighting Standard Gil, they needed
his assistance badly. Berle worked against Dean Acheson, whom he
disliked imensely: the feeling was nmwak. Berle was a maverick in
the State Departmest. a thin. fierce, driven man who completely
lacked the smooth gift of compromise nomally required in Depart-
ment deslings. Roosevelt wusted bim completely. Indeed, he placed
Berle over Hoover, preferting to have all of Hoover's reports si-
phoned through Berle and analvzed by him before they reached the
desk of Major General Edwin M. ¢“"Pa™") Watson. the presidential
SCCITATY.

On Septembier 13, Davis called Roosevelt for an appojnnnent. The
moment he was off the phone, Roosevelt summoned Berde o the
Ozl Office. He asked Beele o sit in on the meeting with Davis
scheduled Tor the following afternoon: he was to take minutes and o
give him his personal comnents a5 sOon 4s Dawvis left.

At two o'clock the foilowing day Davis limped inte the office with
Al of his hentam eock s ouirageons smegance. He paced about the
roont, spouting his linc of peace with Mider and suggesting he should
go to we¢ Girng 10 convey Roosevell's prace message. He was LiTl-
reted by Berle's presence in the room. He asked Roosevell twice if
Betle conld [=ave. Ronsevel refused to aceede to his requesi. Bavis
shrugged ond sat down.

While Rogsevelt listenced dirourh a cloud of cigaretic smoke Davis

|
|
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gnraveled a great deal of specious nonsense. Knowing Roosevelt had
no time for Hitder, ke tried to sell him Géring, promising that Goring
would scon take aver the Genman gpovernment and sayving that Hiter
had been “toved away from the msin Council. ™" He asked the Pres-
ident’s authority to enter into peace talks with Gdaring on the Presi-
dent’s burhalf.

Roosevelt replied that he had ofien been approached wo intervens
in the Evropean conflict bui be could only do so through official
channels. e pointed out that he had sent a message just before the
war suggesting peace talks but had not received an answer until the
war had begun. “‘which, of ¢ourse. 20t no one anywhere. ™

Roogevell did not zuthorize Davis 1o act on the Amencan govern-
mentl s behalf, Indeed, as soon as Davis left, he ordered Berle b
contact J. Edgar Hoover and instnect the FBY chief to repont direcdy
ta Berle on Davis's movemsnts and contacts. On no account was
Hoover to report to the Attarney General Robert H. Jackson or 10
Cordell Hull.

Davis lefi the meeting with Roosevelt in a siawe of drastic unease.
Herslet cabled him on Géning's instruction that he and Lewis must
influsnce Roosevell o suppress any revision of the Newrality Act. In
his cable of Septernber 18 he reminded Davis, who scarcely needed
reminding, *“selling to belligeremt nations means destroying cargo
boats. ™

Diavis, afraid of {alling oui of favor with Gorng, cabled Berdin the
next day thal the Presdent wanted him o negotiae the peace. He
pretended that Roosevelt had agreed Germany should keep Danzig,
the Polish Corridor, Czechoslovakia, all former provinees ccded (o
Poland by the Versailles Treaty, and all African and other celonies
that Germany had had before 1915, He asserted that Roosevelt had
appointed him ambassador without partfolio. He lett for Lisbon and
Rome on September 20. His plane was forced down by stoms in
Bermuda. British [ntelligence men came to the airport and questioned
him closely. He refused to answer them and proceeded to Lisbon,

In Rame, Hinunler send severz] Gestapo men to meet Davis's plane.
The cilman had a quick meeting with Mussclini, who proved wel-
coming. Accompanied by the S8 men, he was given a special aerial
tour of the German and Palish fronts.

Garing received him at the Air Minisuy in Berdin on Qcwober 1,

Cn T T [
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1939, Among those presenl were Hertslet msm.ﬁ_.sEEE. __m_.u_inm
opencd the conference by expressing his admimtion far Davis™s mmu
forts in peoviding petroieum to Gennany .Eq m:_s.uﬂ 5E VET m,nm.ﬂr,.
tirough Ewrotank. He asked Tor Roosevelt’™s sentimens and Iavis
insisted that Roosevelt was pro-German. Goring was understandably
surptised. He said that be expected Davis (o help sccure ﬂa.ﬂ.ﬁnma
peace 4l the canference table, with Hider and mbumn_qm: presiding.

1. Edgar Hoover and military intelligence determnined that Iwnmm_
would be retumning with Davis to the United States. When Davis and
Hertslel armved in Lishon oo their way home. the local nmij Ie-
fused Hextslet a visa. Davis made a tremendoas fuss, citing his
“fiendship " with Roosevelt and shouting that Herslet was a a,.ﬁn-
1or of his European company. " The consul cabled Berie in Washmg-
wn, asking kim whether he should shut his eves w0 the fact that
Hertslat was 2 high-ranking figure in the Nazi mc..”.m_.naadr

In Washingion, Berie had an urgenl meeting wilh Assistant Secre-
v of State George S. Messersmith. They agreed Hertslet wis dan-
mnmazm. They cabled the consul in Lisbon to refuse Hettslet the visa.
Hearslet retumed (o Betlin to obain a diplomatic pasipott. ,

Back in Washingron, Davis checked into the Mayflower Hotel. FBI
men had difficulty in bugging his conversations and movements, A
post office convention filled the hotel and the G-men wewre unabie 10
find a <ingle room from which to operate. They had to use COILETS,
clasets, fire escapes, and even tie raof as bases of their aperatians. It
was uply by engaging waiters and maids {0 belp them EE.:HM dig-
cavered the import of meetings hetween Dhavig and his relable st
retary. These indicated commitment 10 the Nazis whether Amernica
cumme imto the war or not—at least vn Davis’s side.

Dlavis tried 1o errange another meeting with Roosevalt. While he
waited far o decision, he changed his tankers to Panemanian registry
i slip them through the British blockade w Lisbon, Hamburg, and
uther ports of Europe. He kept up a cansiant fiow E.q pewaleum and
vital materials Lo Japan. again using Panarnanian megismy rather than
Japenese tankers beeause Hritish intelligence was :E.ﬁ.:m .Fﬁmmnmm
ships at a4 and arresling ticir German crews. Davis enteted into
collabarution with a former U-boat caplais who was ane of the harbor
statf of Brownsvitie, Texas. and could aid hirt in his Blockade run-
ming.
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Measnwhile, the von Clemim brothers were running ino trouble.
Morgenthau’s Treasory agents were in Bedin, dodging the Gestapo
to investigate the Davis—von Clemm deafs throuzh the Hardy Bank.
Karl von Clemm cabled Davis frantically on October 11, 1940, that
he saw ““execution’’ coming, and he reminded Davis of his six and
a half years of protection of the oilman. What could Davis do? Davis
arranged with Géring for von Clemni to be transfered 1o Rome. Von
Clemm and his brother diversified their company into diamond smug-
gling.

Following the occupation of Belgium and the Nethedands, the banks
rushed their large holdings of diamonds into special vaults. But they
were compelied 1o reveal the vaols ™ whersabouis. The ven Clemzs
tnade a deal with the German govermment to obtain & comer in dia-
monds, mmpordng them lo Nooh America o sell for desperately
needed dollars with which 1o finance espionage rings and abtain jn-
dustrial diamonds. Since the war was going on. these shipments wene
in direct contraveniion of the existing laws, 50 the von Clemms set
ep a compliczwd routing for their transactions.

The diamonds were shipped from Brssels and Amsterdam o
Rome. They were put aboard the Nazi-coatrolled L.A T 1. airdine and
flown via Lishon and Dakar to Matal in Brzil and thence to Rio,
They came by diplomatic pouch from the Gemman Embassy to the
German consulate i New York.

in 1940, with no satisfaction from Roosevelt, Davis mrned via-
lently against die President and joined with the Narzis in a desire to
destrov him in the elections. John L. Lewis agreed with Davis that
Roosevel must g or the entire ¢1) deal with Hitier might be stopped.

Davis talked with Gérng and the result was that Goring actually
supplied #8 million (@ engineer the President's downfall. The Frater-
nity members decided to finance Berton K. Wheeler for accession to
the White House. The perfect chaioe of a INazi Faction, Wheeler was
ceaseless in his support of Hitler. He used his senatorial (ranking
prvileges to distribute Nazi prepeganda through the maid. He op-
posed Lend-lease, conserniption, and aid 1w Brotzin in the fonn of
warshins and mounitions.

The 58 million arrived in Washingron via LA T anrlines and
Pun American Alrways. Davis spread the money throogh accounts in
six different banks. His first investmient was 5160,000 to buoy forty
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Pennsylvania delegaes at the Chicazo Democratic party convention
(0 insure the defeat of his old {riend Scnator Guffey , who was threat-
enine to expose The Fratermity. The fory Pennsylvanmia delegates
would also vote against Reosevelt. The deal did not wotk. Guffey
won the nomination and so did Roosevelt. Wheeler lacked the com-
mon touch and had na chance against the President.

John L. Lewis did his hest. He guaranteed ten million votes {ily
Rogsevelt = Republican oppane!t, Wendell Willkie. He gave a radio
speech on October 25, denouncing Roosevell s a warmonger and
threatening to retire from the ClO it the President was reelected. But
Roosevelt remained in power. While Jeaving the public in no doubt
of his atittude 10 Hider, he promised the electlorate that no American
hoy would die on foreign soil. He thus united the isclationist factors
and assured himself the election,

Diavis overcarne e setback by expanding his operation. He set up
U-haat refucling bases through the Caribbean and South American
enasilines. He split off Eurotank inte an independent body under Gdr-
ing and Karl von Clemm. hes protits indirectly siphoned w0 him
through ihe Bank for Imernational Setternents via Lisbon and Buenas
Aires. Bor as America drew closer to war, the von Clemm brathers
erew more and more warmied about iheir American operation. They
had to be prepared for the flow of diamonds and oil to be stpped.

In May 1941, Kad von Clemm wamed Werner in a cable encaded
AUNT KATE DYING FasT that Hitler was about {o declare war on the
Sowviet Union. When Hitler invaded Russia, Davis’s shipmenis of oil
via Vladivostok and the Trans-Siberian Railroad to Berlin abrupily
stopped. Hastily, he increased his Coinpania Veracruzana deals with
Tapan. and arranged for $3 miflion i ven o be transfered to him
via the White Russian millionaire Serge Rubinstein to buy foreign
exchange and finance oil wells. He also became involved in business
denls with Brazil and Argentine.

Davis gave financial support to the No Foreten Wars Committee.
This was financed also direcdy {rom Berdin. Meanwhile, the von
Clerum brothers financed the pro-Nazi America Finst movement. Whth
Vemne Marshall, isolationist editor and supporter of Hider. Davis and
Werner ven Cletun became invalved with Chirles Lindbergh and his
“pacifist’” campaigns against Roasevelt. On January 2, 1941, Sena-
tor Josh Lee, g Democrst from Oklahoma, charged that the formiaton

—
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of the No Foreign Wars Commitee with Davis’s backiig amounted
to “‘the diabolicaily cunning betrayal of the American people.”” He
adided:

The record of this man Davis shows copclusively the great financial
stake he fias in a compiete Nazi victory in the Eurmopean war. Much of
the gasaline sending showers of fiery death into the defenseless hean
of London was sold 1o the German governmient by this man Davis.

. . He is stll trving io promoie a phony peacc through the White
House to pufl Nazi Germany's chestnuts out of the fire. . . . The MNa
Foreigh Wars Comimitice is a timely object lesson in the technique of
Mazi infillmation.

The wuth of Lee's words could be seen in the fact that the coni-
mittee included Senator Rush 3. Holt of Virginia. who was alleged
{0 be in the direct pay of the Nazi governmenl.

On Janary S, at a press conference in his offices on the fifty-
fourth floor of the RCA Building in Rockefeller Plaza, Davis denied
ke was financing the committee. He said he would like to appear
before the Scnate committee thet had been formed to investigate his
activities., The investigative commitiee was headed by Senator Burton
K. Wheeler!

In an altempi to bolster his case, Davis said he had not shipped oil
(o Germany after war broke oul, knew nothing about what was hap-
pening at Eurotank (despite the fact that he had received a letter from
Kad von Clemm the day before), and stated he was a direct descen-
dant of the South African empire builder Cecil Rhodes and of Jefler-
son Davis. The problem was that Cecil Rhodes had had no children
and that Jefferson Davis's descendants bad been disowning the oil-
man {or the past {wenty vears.

By May. Senator Wheeler had “cleared”™ Davis of all connections
with the Nazi governmeni. But this help from a fellow Fraternity
figure did not ease Davis's increasing sense of fear that Roosevelt
wonld bring Aserica into the war. On July 26 he appeared briefly on
radio to support Wheeler's all-oul attack on Lend-Lease. On August
| he was in Houston when he was stricken with a [atal heart attack
in hiz hotel toom.

In his authorized biography. A Man Called fnrrepid, Sir William
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Stephenson claims tha Davis did nat dic from natwral causes but was
murdered by representatives of British Intelligence. According fo the
FBI fites his demise was simply brought on by the temible soain of
the preceding months as his ¢mpire Tell 2psri and his Nazi connec-
tions began 1o cause some of his sharghalders to run for the Bills.

Aficr his death hix secretary, the elamorous Ema Wehrle, became
chairman of the giant corporation. Wemer von Clemm became vice-
president. The board was made up of Fraemity aide U.S. Secretary
of Conunerce Jesse H. Jones. Harrv D, Collier of California Stan-
dard, and Hamilton Pell, panner of Leo T. Crowiey in Standard Gas
and Electric. The Fraternity had come fuil circle ance more.

Throughoui the early months of 1942, Morzenthau's team built o
demning case against the von Clemm brothers. Meanwhile, diey hast-
1ly sold the Davis Qi Company t0 Frmemity brothers Serge Rubin-
stein and Axel Wenner-Gren to insure its continued ox istence .

Wermer von Clemim went on living a life of luxury o his il-gotten
gdins. He becamie 2 pillar of society in the heart of the fox-hunling
country: a1 Syosset, Long [sland. No one who enjoyed his company
suspected that this handsome member of the local social set was on
the brink of being arreswd.

On September 26. 1942, a police car comtaining Treasury agents
raffed wp at the door of the von Clemm house. The visitors rang the
doorbell. A maid came ta the door. The elegant von Clemm was
wailing in ihe living rmom 1o receive the vistors. The agents apolo-
gized for the inconvenience and politely placed handewfls on Wer-
ner's delicale wrists.

The trial caused a great stic in Svosset. Wermner lied and lied trying
1wy hide the detajls of the conspiracy. Bui it was useless. He was
sentenced ¢ five yeams in prison—ihe only memiber of The Fraternity
to suffer such a sentence. There is a curious tootnole ta the stary,
On Octaber 15, 1942, the Genman government sent an official mes-
sage through the Swiss authorities 1o American minister Leland Har-
risan i Beme. They asked for a full transcript of von Clemm’s igal
to be sent from Washington 10 Berin. It was, of course, supplied.

At war's end, O. Fohn Rogge, Spectal Assistant to the Attamey
Generai, collected a mass of evidence in Germany to show the Davis-
Lewis culnection. At a speech at Swarthmore Coliege on October
26, 1946, he told the story of the association. He also showed other
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guestionable connections, including the activities of Burion K. Wheeler
on behalf of the Nezi government. The resuit was thal Atwomey Gen-
eral Tom Clark fired Rogge. When the author of this book asked him
in 1981 why he had been dismissed, e dying Rogge repled suc-
ciactly. :ﬁ_.l_..nn_nﬁ: he sard, “was closer 1w President Truman (than
[ was.™
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.H.inwﬁw. in Texas

A partner of the Rockefelier associate, Standard Oil of California,
the wll. (air-haired, and dynamic Torkild **Cap™* Ricker of the Texas
Company was an important link in The Fraternity. Bom in Voss,
Norway, in 1882, this strapping voung Viking became an American
citizen at the age of twenty-two. Within weeks, he was master of an
oil lanker loading up from Spindietop. Texas. He Joined the Texas
Company a1 twenty-three; within twenty years he was chainman; he
created a tanker fieef that gave his company enomous inemational
power by 1933. He buiit the Barco pipeline in Colombia, fiving sus-
pension bridges in sections from Texas to the Andes, 5Hmm=m..9n3
aeross 3.000-fool passes. He linked up with Standard O3l of Caiifor-
ni# in Saudi Arbia and in Babrein in the Persian Gulf, otlaining a
menopoly throngh under-the-table deals with the local rulets and the
Japanese and Gertnan interests in those ansas.

“Cap’” Rieber suppiied Franco in the Spanish Civil War, shipping
oil from Galveston to Bordeaux im Franee and thence to Cojunna,
....,EH arders not w stop tor inspection by any man-of-war, ine) uding
United States gunships. He supplied polymerization techriques to
I.G. Farben in the Rubr and to 1.G.-Farben—connected companies in
Iran, Saadi Arabia, Egvpt, and Syra with the approval af the Siate
Departmene.

In December 1939 he flew with Géring in a plane piloted by Pan
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American Airways pilot Pete Clausen on a personally conducted tour
of the main centers of industrial Germeny. He sailed his vessels
through the British blockade 1o fuel the U-boats atfter 1939, and si-
multanecusly sent more (0 aid Nazi corporations in Sough Amenca.
He wld Life magazine in 1940, I the Germans ever cach [any of
my ships] careying oil ta the Allies they will huave my hearty permis-
sion to fire 4 torpedo into her. ™

Ricber was among thase, like Dravis, who had high hopes for Juan
Almazdn’s bid for the Mexican presidency 10 succeed in favor of ihe
Axis. On Febrmary 12, 1940, the Amencan Emnbassy in Mexico City
reported that Texas Oil of Arizona was working in ¢lose collusion
with affiliated o1l groups irclwding the Davis 371 Company in direct-
ing the clandesting entry of arms oo Mexico. The anns were w
support 2 possible military coup by Almazin in the event of his de-
feat at the palls. The mport said, "Pacific Fruit Express refrigeratar
cars are each loaded with arms in special wooden boxes so shaped as
10 fiL very cotlveniently along the sides of the wooden srrips or sloted
fiooring that permits the drainage of the ice water o the drain pipes
under the Aoor of these cars.”” The repor added, Q] company se-
cret seTvice operatives are mdiculing the Mexican Govemment for the
slagg-eyed vigilance on the border, as they eall} i, dhat enables them
to execute adroit introduction of arms without deteciion.”” The repori
said, ©°T find that large sums of oil money are being paid out oo the
border for protection and [ also have ascertained that Custun House
officials on tiie American side of the line at Eagle Pass, Texas, have
accepted money to fucilitate the deparmare of amms trom the U5 A,
through this Americuan port of entry.”™

In 1940, Rieber worled in close coilaboration with the Texas
Compsmy ‘s German representative Nikolaus Bensmann. who was a
paid spy of Hermann Schmitz's nephew Max Igner in Bremen.
Bensmann comesponded with Richer and Rieber’s vice-president,
R. I. Dearborn. in a complicated cipher that was successfuliy designed
o evade the British censorship office in Bermuda. The cipher was so
effective that, 2s Bensmann woote 0 the Abswehr in Hamburg on
January 29. 1940, *'Even ienglhy espionage reponts can be bansmii-
ted without running the risk of discovery.” By the code, Rieber was
able 1o send information W Bensmann about gaseline =hipments 1o
the Canary Islands and secret patents being shipped clandestinely 1o
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Berlin. These separts made their way o LG, Farben's NW 7, Imel-
tigence Group. where they were exarmed by Ilgner. Beber vigined
Roosevelt to discuss the President's arritude toward Gaermamy: intel -
ligence on the meenings was trunsterred by Bensmann s code to Ber-
lin. Rieber's reposts an every aspeet of the petroleum industry in the
United States rivated those sopplied by General Anifine and Film.
Even restricted aircraft-producton details were siven. inos fifiv—ight-
page ceport b should never have left Amenca. prepared wih the
caaperation of spics in the offices of Secretary of the Inwrior Harold
L. Ickes and Secretary of the Nawvy James V. Forrestal. The cipher
wias never broken. Bul kere is a problern. Why were these ciphers
ullowed 10 flow through Bermuda? Why were they not siopped? There
is oo evidence they were farwarded w Londan for exmmination.

Rieber obtained British Mavicerts or cenificares of tuthorization to
send his supplies 10 Gennany through the British biockade afrer Brit-
ain and Germany were at war, He bartered the shipments for ning
tankers huilt for him in Nagi vards and delivered to him omder the
Norwegisn Hag with Brivsh conseni afier September 3. 1939, [n 1940
Reeher sold all German intesests in Texas Company s German patents
far £5 million. He amanged conracts with 1.G. Furben in which he
supplied plans of all the motors and imsallations of American Mavy
vards and Army forts hat he provided with gasoline and oil,

Some of Rieber’s emplovees were loval Americans, They wrote (o
the State Tepurtment and ¢ven the President demanding thut Rieber
be exposed. They alleged that he hired Gestapo agents as lubrication
engineers and that ensissuries of the German miliary suwthority in
Norway were siuying with Rieber in New York. On Avgust 2, 19443,
an cmplavee ol Rieber’s Beacon Research Lahoratory wente the State
Depariazent thar Rieber was “a represenrative of Hider in this coun-
¥ The emploves added that “the entire execunive statt of the Texas
Co.is pro-Nazi and apendy boasts of it as well as being willing o do
all within ks power to injwre the English and help the Germans. '
The letter wer on-

Two men faun Seonany are now =1 e laboratony, neither one being
A otechmicul man. zod oy onesdy s owe can deteomioe. they ape here
sabedy forabe pumose of leaming af ey can ahow this CUUNATY < rhal
i an invasian is made. rhey will have bad a chance o send 1o the
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cocmy 311l the essential inlvmmation shaul adustial plans and areas.
Thew .._d...m.un “apgmamists o Ceermmanky and wers assipned 10 1he wark in
n:ﬁ.mnnﬂ.:w it aur lnhoramy—anotk they ane not equipped to da. One
Ef.rz._nmn men s un outripht propagandisi for Hitler, Coatacting all :ﬂ.m
people of dermia exiraction in Amerve and heldieg mectings at _:.,r..
home, prepasng the way for the proposed German invasion of his
countre. He has raken piclures of the entire area. compleely mapped
1he distiut by plsotograshy and s constanely wandering over the distrc
dng pretures Qb sTre gic ancas,

The visit 1o New York that vear of Nazi Fratermity associate Ger-
hardt Westrick (see Chapter 6) exposed Rieher to such unwanted pub-
licity that several shareholbders in the Texas Company dentanded that
there he a housecleaning and that Richer must redre for the compa-
ny s awn goad.

xcﬁ Angust 20 fifteen directors of the corporation walked grimly
inla the Texus Co mpaiy bosrdeoom oo the twenty -ifth ficer of the
Chrysler Buildine. Thev had 1o reach a decision on the future, They
mqm_.uﬁn for seven hours, frying o hind some way to clean wp 1he
hoard s image after the unwelcome atention Texas Co. had been gel-
ting. Thev knew that the press coverage of the Rieber-Westrick as-
sociation could case a catastrophe in business. Walter G. Dunaington,
the prominent Mankatzn altorpey whe represented the estate E.. rail-
road pioneer James ], Bill. the Texas Company™s biggest ,mnmﬁ
stockhnlder insisted that Richer most go, Prominent banker William
Swele Gray, Jr., and stockbroker Henry Upham Harris agreed. Texas
oilman Tohn H. j.apham and Chicagd banker Walter J. Cummings
winted to have Rieber take a sacatiom uabl the bad publicity blew
owver, But Rieber's second-in-command. the smuooth. soft-vaiced Wil-
liam Staring Sullivant Rodgers. was eager to take Rieber's place and
mazde no bones about seeking Richer’s dismissal.

Richer was asked to present his own point of view, which largely
consisted of boomingly delivered sweel nothings. The resull was that
the Tward asked for his resirnanon. However, he continued 10 ¢aer-
cise infiuence hehind the scenes. The adroit W.S.5. Rodgers took
over from Richer. He finked up with the Rovkefeller empire by going
into purlpership with Harey DL Coliier, cheerful chaiman of Stun-
dard (3l of Californiz. and the former lersey Standard employee
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Tiamy Moffett, Rodgers (ormed Caltex, which joindy bought up mil-
lons of dollars™ worth of 0il from the Arabran Sea. The banker was
James ¥. Forestal, of the board of the Mazi General Aniline and
Fiirn, who was ahout 10 becomie Under Secretary of the Navy.

Saudi Armbia had intricate econommic and political links with Hitler,
On June %, 1939, Khalid Al-Hud Al-Qamani, roval counselor of Tbn
Saud, wag received by Ribbenioop in Bedir., Ribbentrop expounded
to Khalid his gencral sympatlly toward the Arab wordd and pomted
out that Germany and the Arabs were linked by a common foe in the
shape of the Jews. Khalid answered that Ibn Savd attached the great-
est imporlance to entering into relations with Germany. Ribbentrop
was concemed that Tbn Szud might have a special relationship with
the King of England. This had been played up il the press. Khalid
sel Ribbenop's mind at case. He stressed that the king hated the
British, who hemmmed him in. By conmst. Khalid stated, Ihn Sawd
was sympathetic toward Mussolini. The conversation ended with sa-
laams and Heil Hiders.

At 315 poM. an June 17, 1939, Hitler reccived Khalid Af-Hud ac
the Berzhof. The reception was given worldwide atention. IL was
azread throughout Europe that the meeting wwas a blow 10 Brtain. As
g result of it Emil Publ and Walther Fonk’s Reichsbank gave Ibn
Sand a credit of one and 2 hall million Reichsmarks from Hiter's
personal (ezasury for the purchasze of 8,000 rifles, 3 million rounds of
ammumition, light anti-aircraft guas, armored cars, 4 special Meredes
for the king, and the building for a munitions factory. Soon afier-
ward, Emil Puhl armanged & funbker loan of § million marks that was
paid in instalimenis for the rest of the war.

These arrangements wer: in effect on November 25, 1941, when
the Grand Mutti of Jeuselem. the leading legalist of the Amb king-
doms and amony the bitterest enemies of the Jews, met with the
Fiilirer in Berlin: The Grand Muiti, with the authorization of the Amb
word, expressed his admiradon of Hider and nwned the same ene-
mies: the English. the Jews, and the commumists. He promised to
cuammies assistamce jn war by acts of sabotage and revolution. He
offered o raise the Arab Legion from all avzilable Moslem men of
military age. He indicated support for Vichy France. Hitler replied
that Germany was [ocked in 2 death smuggle with (wo citadels of
Jewish power: Great Britain and Soviet Russia. It went without say-
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ing that all practical aid wouid be given 1o the Amb countries in
return far Arab support. The Bihrer said, enioining the Mufti to “Lock
it in the uttermost depths of vour heart,”” that the Fithrer would camry
on the battle for the tatal destruction of the Judea-Commmunist empine
in Europe. that the German amnies would soon reach the southern
exit of Caucasia, and that as soon as this bappened, the Fihrer wounld
give the Arab world the assurance that its honr of lLberation had ar-
rived. He would force apen the road to Iran and Iraq and destroy the
British world empire.

This crucial meeting taok place five monihs afeer an arrangement
had been entered inn by Caltex ip collusion with Rogsevelt. In June
1941, jolly James Bloffert of Caliex went w0 the President with a
proposal. Moffeu stated that in order to insure that Ibn Saud re-
mained loyal to American imerests (in evher words, did ool hand
Caltex over to Gemmany ar sepply General Erwin Ronmmel with ail}
the Treasury must advance 56 million & vear w0 Ibn Saud. Moffen
said this with the knowledze that (he $O million per annum would
ol in any way affect Thn Sand’s opgoing reladonship with Hitler.
Indeed, at the same time Emil Puhl was paying Ibn Saud maore than
one million marks 4 year.

Roosevell agmeed ro dus deal with a Mazi collaborator. He was
enzatly influenced by Jesse H. Jones, Secretary of Comunerce, who
by now was pant owner of the Davis Ol Company. On Joly 18,
{941, following a mecting with Moffett, Roosevelt wrote to Jones:
*‘Dear Jesse. Will you tell the Brotish I hope they can take came of
ihe King of Arabiz—1this is & [iile far afield for us.™

Roosevelt bypassed Congress and entered into an armangement that
was entirely against the rule book. Saudl Arabia was emphatically
ol a Jend-lease couniry. It It were known that Ibr Saud as Hitler's
clase ally in Nazi pay was being bribed by the President to protect
am oil company, there woitld have been 1 major public outery. Roo-
sevelt ordered Harmy L. Hophing, who was in charge of Lend-Lease,
to aimange with Britain for the money to be paid io the king under
the table. Lend-Lease to Engiland was to be surreptitioes!y increased.

The amangement continued for two years. Not only did money
flow to Arab countries but a vast range of pmducts, miany of which
were in short supply in the United Stakes., and all of these were send
0 organizations or individual merchants who were known to have
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supported pro-Axks and subversive movements [tom the Fate 19305
umil then, Mo screening of any kind was doae by the United States”
Middle East Supply Cenmer on the reshipment 1o the Axis of petro-
fevm. mineral il fuel products. rubber, and aviomaohil es,

When Bemnard Berzer. of the Board of Economic Warfare handling
the Middle East. brought up complaints on shipmeats by Callex’s
sobsidiay Arance™® o the cpemy. the Suate Deparment and jts local
consulates put every kind of obstacie in his way. At first their cxcuse
was that the Middle East was British-sponzored temritory and that it
was up to the Briush 1o chieck the layihy of eremy cansignees . Afier
excruciatingly slow deajmgs. the Xate Depanment agreed that U5,
diplomatic migsions it Teheran, Baghdad, Jerusalem, Caira. and Jidda
should agree to the screening. bue momhs alter the agreement was
made, Berger was complaining (on December 22, 1942} in 3 memo-
randum {0 his supedor, H. A, Wilkinson, that *"No ane has [ifted 2
finger in implernenting the propossls.”” He coatinued to point aut that
the failure of the Stare Depanment znd British Intsiligence was re-
spansible for the dangerois Fifih Column run by the Nagzis in the
Middle East. He urged the appaimtment of o imde intefligence officer
in the headquarters of e American Cornmission in Cairo. Nathing
wis done aboudt this. }

Berrer specifically mentioned tie powerful Middle Eastern com-
panmies aperaiing in Saudi Arabia. Syria, Irag, and iran: the Grand
Muiti of Jerusalem: and Hitler. He also named a smwggling ring
which. he discoversd. was paying for imposts through graft used in
obtaining export licenses. Berger was onaly just able 1w avert an ar-
rangetment whemeby ap wnaamed .5, senator was abowt 10 pay a
bribe to Henry Wallace 0 gruml commission for licensing. Yet an-
other company . with offices in [snanbul and New York. was also known
@ be trading wirth the enemy wirh State and British cooperation.

In 1943, Forrestal appoineed Willtarn Bullitt as his special Assis-
tanr Secretary. They wene joined by dassachusetts Senator David 1.
Walsh. chaiman of the Senate Naval Affairs Committee, an equally
extreme isolationist America Fimster snd supporer of [rish national-
ism. These MMachiavedlis brought pressure 1w bear in Washington to
change the existing armmngemeants. They eold Raosevelt that British
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influence was hecoming excessive’ in Saudi Arabia and that the
present deal should be stepped. Instead, the Americun goveniment
should invest directly In Arameco. Apan from T-orestal’s fAnancial
involvement. his and Bullit's motives were clear, Despite the fact
that Ibn Saud was =till closely interlocked o Hitder, they wanied the
Amerean governmen o aid him against Britsh influence.

The conspiraors were afraid that Hardd Tekes, who was il fight-
ing protection for the corporations, would obyect w0 these armange-
ments. On February 27, 1943, Bufliv dropped in to see the embatbed
Secretary of the Interior and tried to sheke his maorale by =aying that
State Deparirnent ciitics had “wold me the bovs took prtly shup
exception to (he fact you ure showing interest in oif cutside of the
United States. This is the exclusive function of the Department of
Seake "

Forrestal and Bullitt were constantly in Jckes's office to enlist him
in the cawse. Unfortunatedy. he succumbed o their blandishmenns.
The two swaved Ickes into believing that there was a Brirish threat
to Amercan intetests in Saudi Ambia. They even succeeded in hav-
ing him 1alk to the President about the matter. Ickes listemed when
Bullitt said a1 a meeting on May 29. 1943, ~"The British are slready
laying plans 1o establish a branch bank in Arabia. | wouldn’ put it
past the British to have King lbn Saud assassinated, il necessary, and
set up a puppet who will see the oil situation through their eyes.”
Bullicc went on. ““There is a secret agreement between Churchill 2nd
the President.’” {If such an amungement indeed were envisaged, then
it was because ITbn Saud was in league with the Nazis.) The result
was (hat [ckes helpad o press through the arrangement {or investment
in Aramen.

Meanwhile, Reoosevelt, without telling Ickes. 1ssued a document
authorizing ‘2 nanster of Saudi Arshiz to the siatws of a lend-lease
country, stagng, 1 herefy find that the defense of Saedi Arabia iy
vifal 1o the defense of the United States.”” But the deal for direct
governmeni investment in Arameo fell through.

Instead of giving the United States a mich supply of 0il after the
deal was mzde, W.S.5. Rodgers and Harrv Collier held America o
ransom. Meanwhile, the Nazi involvement in 5audi Arabia became
more and more exteme. The Stae Department and Department of
the Interior did not have to rely on Army Intelligence reporls [rom
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Britain and their own G-2 agents to discover the extent of that in.
velvement. Derails of i leaked ing such libersl publications as Asig
aird the Americas and Grear Britain and ohe World. From these
sources. from German Foreign Oftfice documem 7131181 ¢July 22,
19423 and {Tom recently declassified secret reports prepared by Brit-
ish Igtelligence on Walter Schellenberg of the Gestapo. it is possible
o deferming the oxtent of MNazi nfluence on Ien Ssud in the middle
of the war. The Grand Mol of Jeraszlem was, unidl the tme of
Lialy s collapse as an Axis panner, living in Rome, working with the
agenrs of Kut von Schrdder’s friend and associate Ambassador Franz
von Papen in Aukarz, Turkey. t@ send out agents through the Arab
states. In Sauvdi Arabia fanatical Arabs were trained as Nazis at Ger-
man universities and schouls. From a headguarters in a carpet shop
in Baghdad, Dr. Fritz Grobba. German minister to Jrag, ran espio-
mage rings. subsidized Arabic newspapers and clubs Tn the Savdi Ara-
bian capital of Jidda. The German TransOcean News A gency fuactioned
a5 an espionage and propaganda agency m Hdda. The Nazi spy Wal-
demar Baron von Oppenheim, until recently in the United Stares and
Syria, was headquartered in Saudi Arabla. Many Nazis flocked in
disguised as tourists or technicians. They constructed roads and buill
facronies, They formed German-Amb societies and leamned Arab lan-
guage =0 a= to address crowds and whip them up nto a fanadcal
support of Hiter. lbn Sawd. as always. piayed both ends against the
middie, protesiing admiration tor Roosevelt and Cliurchill while au-
thorizing his persomal tepresentative Rashid ATl El-Kilani to continue
to represent him in Bedin and addeess the Moslem society there.
Wilhelin Beppler, founder of the Circie of [Friends. {riend of 1ITT s
Sosthenes Behn. and under secretary of the Germian Foreign Office with
substantial shaveholdings in 1.G. Farben, made Saudi Awmbia his spe-
wial provenance. He laced the country with cconomic agents who
spread out as far as Tran and Trag. By 1944 the United States was
serjously short of ail. It cost Arameo en cents a barrel w0 bring up
nil in Bahrein and twenty cents in Arabia, plos 2 povally of fifieen
cents to the Sheikh of Bahrein and twenty-one cents io Thn Saud in
additfon to the existng bribe. Suddenly, W.5.5. Rodgers of Texas
Company and Harry Collter of Califoinia Standard informed Tckes
that the price to Amerca would be 51.05 a barel. take it or leave 1.
With his back against the wall. Ickes had 1o aceept. Worse, Rodgers
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and Collier paid no income ax on the sale because they wers regis-
tered in the Bahamas. They made 5120 millien at the expense of the
U S. govemmenl—on an investment of ne more than 31 million.

lekes tried to buy the oil companies” stock in the interesis of na-
riona! defense and the ecopamic needs of the nation, Bui he encoun-
tered constant resistance {rom Collier and Radgers. Firs Cotlier would
agree, then Rodgers would hold aut: then they reversed their posi-
tiemg. They also said that they had doubled Aramea’s vovalty pay-
ments to Ibn Sand. Ickes checked with the Arabian Embassy and
found that the statement was a Fe: he blamed Forrestal for not having
the sales figures checked.

How was this possible? Because Caltex and Ammico stilt had plants
in ihe State Department.

What grievous situation existed in the State Department that al-
lowed such infiltmton? The clements of anti-Semitson and secret
sympathy for the Nazis® fomm of govemment had heen there sitwce the
early 1930s. In the Deparment’s uncamforiable, crowded, and anti-
quated building, there were daily collisions between the cmbattled
liberal faction and the right-wing extwemists. Behind the scenes as
ambassador-at-large. William Bullit was the prime schemer w1 assur-
ing that the extreme right wing in the Departroent retained & sophis-
ticated neutralism in Ume of war, He set out @ remove the single
most powerful force against world {ascism: Sumner Welles, .

Welles wus a strong opponent of The Fratemnity's deals with Saudi
Arabia and Sowth America. Intelligence reports ld him how deeply
Hitler had penetrated Saudi Arabia, that lbn Saud was ane with Hit-
ler despite Saudi Arabia’s phony breaking off of &_“__ouﬂn.m relations
with the Axis—a sop 1o the public—and that much of the investment
of the American covernment in pipelines on behalf of Caltex/Aramco
would go straight inte enemy hands. He was opposed to the arrange-
ment with Vichy because he believed that in propping vp Marshal
Hepri Petain's regime the United States was allowing ils gates to be
jefi wide open w Hitler's commiercial, political, and espionagze agents.

Welles's personalily was cold. awthoritative, and detached. Tall.
clegant, and flawlessly tailored, be came from the top ot the East
Coast Esmablishment. Wealthy in his own wight, a career diplomat
from the first, he had been at school with Roosevelt at Groton and
frequently entertained Franklin and Eleanor in his exquisite heuse at
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Oxon Hill, His wife was socially prosminent, aad he had a growing
family, Despite his strongly liberal stance he was acceptable to the
Esrablishment because he seemed (0 represent the finest virtues of the
ruling class.

Yet he had & weakness. He was & bisexual. At night this pillar of
the Washington commnunity would disappeuar from his house on the
excuse of working late al the office and, in disguise, make his way
itto parks. toilets. and places of assignatian and perlomm imercourse
with blacks. He presumably paid for sex because he was afraid that
4 genuine uffair would expose him.

Willizm Bulliti had long heard rumors about Welles, When Welles
was ambassador o Cuba, there had been talk of relationships with
voung Cuban boys. some of them underage. Welles had lefl the
Caribbean under a heavy cloud. Roosevelt had chosen 0 ignore the
scaries,

Bullit had gone to see J. Bdgar Hoover in 1940 after his return
from Pargis and asked him w investigate Welles, Hoower, who was
nimeelf alieged 10 be homosexual, knew all af the secret places where
the homeasexual community mel. He decided 10 acl a1 once.

O1 September 16, 1940, & solemn funeral was held in the cliamber
of the House {or the beloved speaker William Bankhead. Twe special
trains left Washington for Jasper, Alabama, for the baral. On the
hamebaund train were Roosevelt and virtwally his entite Cabinet, in-
cluding Welles.

As the train chngged imo the night, twa Pullman poriers Hoover
had hired went into Welles's bedroom. They fisst Rined with him and
then blatamtly offered themselves for & price of $100. Weiles, who
was drunk, seemed to ignore the fact that the President, Allormey
General Robert Jackson. Harold Lekes, and practically everybody in
the govemment was in Uie same car.

Hoover had his men stationed in the adjoining bedraon . Welles's
drunken conversation, and the sexual acis that followed it, were noted
down.

When the irain remumed, Hoover's men presenied the evidence o
him. Bullit had » meetng with Hoover and went over the report. e
took il to Roosevek in the Oval Office. The President refused to read
it but mstmweied Hoover the next day to obtain more evidence,. He

—_— - —
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wis evidently plaving for time, worried about a confroniagon with
Welles.

Bullitt and Hoover spent the next three years amassing 4 thick
dossaer on Weiles, "Pa’” Watson, secrtury 10 the President. was in
charge of the investigation. Bullia absurdly charged that Welles's wife
was having an sffair with 2 Russian spy and that Welles was being
Wackmailed by communists to leak State secrets to Ruossia,

On Octaber 24, 1942, Hoover called at the Wardman FPark Huotel
apartment of Cordeil Hull, Huil had asked ro see him, saying that he
was rravely concerned by staries aboul the improper actions of Welles.
He told him that he knew Hoover had made an investigation and
asked whether Hoover would give him the repoit so that he could
evaluate the evidence. Hoover confirmed that he had made the reponi
on behaif of Boosevelt. He suggested that Hull eontagl apother of
Roosevelt s secmlaries, Marmvin Mcelntyre, to obtin the report. Hull
said he would deal with 1t

Huil and Hoowver kept pressing Roosevelt 1o look at the file. On
Apal 27, 1943, Senator Owen Brewster of Maine called 10 see Hoo-
ver. He had discovered that Hoover had made the investigation and
knew whom the FBI had questioned. Hoover (old him thar indesd an
investigation had been made but that *‘no conclusions have been
reached.”” Brewster went w sce Hull and Biddie and decided to take
the matier up with the Truman defense commitee o investigate the
whole affair. Biddle, evidently alarmed by the potenual of such a
public inquiry, decided to #o (o the President.

Faced with the fact that his long cover-up for Welles might be
revedled, Roosevelt was forced o bow to pressure from Biddle and
his supporters and ask {or Welles's resignation. A delighted Bullitt
suggested coolly w0 Rooscvele ghat perhaps Welles should he sent 1o
Russia as a diplomatic represertative. Roosevelt was not impressed.
Mot only did he disconmect all comtact with Welles, he verbally
thrashed Bulbitt and never spoke to him again. It was the ruinaton
of Welles s carecr, hut Bullitt never recovered fram the resulis of his
eipose,

The catasirophe wrecked the State Depaniment overnight. Welles's
carelully buili-up policy of opposing appeascament in time of war was
shattered at a blow. The Department fell apart.

Ty
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The exposure of Weiles distracted attention from the (act that Ar-
amco supporter David 1. Walsh of Massachusetts was exposed in a
similar scandal.

The scandal broke when Naval Intelligence officers and city detec-
tives raided s homosexual brothel in Brookiyn and arresied the pro-
prictor, Gustave Beekman. Dismict Atomey Willilam O Dwyer and
Naval Intelligence officers discovered that the brothel was a nest of
Nagi agents. One of those whe mingled with 1hose agents was Sepa-
tor Walsh, In an affidavit made in Raymond Street jail following his
arrest, Beckman gave deziled testimony about Walsh. He said that
VWalsh used to come to his bordello on Sunday afternoons—at least
ten times between July 1941 and March 1942, Beekman reported that
he saw the senator in close conversation with anoher customer, de-
scribed ondy as *“Mister E, "7 who was known a3 *"the Nazi's ace spy
in the U.5."" Mister E would amive with sailors and would question
them on their ships, their comings and guings and destinations. Mis-
ter E was accompanicd by a number of Germans who were also act-
ing as espionage agents. The spies specialized in Turing soldiers and
sailors and determining information from them.

According w Beekman's attorney . Harvey Stelzin, who is still in
practice in New York, Roosevel decided to use the episode. Since
Walsh was restricting supplies of ball bearings, oil, and other stra-
tegic products ta the Navy in the interests of isolationism. Roosevelt
decided 1o make 2 deal with Walsh. If ke let Walsh off the hook,
Walsh must aid the war effort. Walsh agreed instandy. Stelzin says
Roosevelt asked Hoover w0 have Beelman reverse his (estimlony.
Hoover grilled Beekman cruelly and impersonally with seveml of hig
toughest men for severl howrs around the clack until Beekman
cracked and changed his story. Later he tried to change it back on
the offer of a substantial check from the New Yeork Fosr, but it was
too late. At Beekman's (rial under the famous Jndge Samuel Leibo-
witz, Beekman told the quth.

The isclationisl ¢lique protested the accusations and demanded dhat
fhere be z full public exoneration ter Walsh. At a stormy meeting of
the Senate. Budon K. Wheeler and two other isolationists, Geald P.
Nwe and Bemmett C. Clark. jumped to their feet and called in concert
for a sweeplng investigation with a view to punishment of all persons
who had conspired to smear Walsh.
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Wheeler shouted, * “This is a diabolical auempt on the part of cer-
tain individuals . . . o smear every memnber of the Senate who has
disagreed with them on matters of foreign palicy.™ Senaer Clark
urged that Mrs. Dorothy S. Backer, “'the old hussy whao runs the
Mew York Post,'" should be “‘brought before the bar of the Senae. ™

Wheeler attacked JTudge Leibowitz: *'[f | were a Federal judge. I
would have him impeached, " and, ironically in the context, he called
for a cancellation of the financing of the Posr by the Federal Reserve
Bank. Senator Nye arged, *‘Let this matter nol be dropped here. An
investization will reveal a secret society which for two yeans have
[sic] heen engaged in gathering such information ag would permit the
smearing of individual members of the Senate. ™

The Maiion investigated the mauer and found that indeed Walsh
had been seen in conversalion with suspected Nazi spies who lured
soldiers and sailors o the “‘house of degradation™ for the purpose of
obtaining military secrets. The magazine discovered that the FBI had
made Beekman recant his original statement after hours of high-pres-
sured guestioning. The Nation wrote, “*50 summary an alrapt 1o
bury an unpleasant affair may invalve the sidetmcking of a full and
apen investigation of the house in Pacific Sweet.”” The editorial added,
“We cun'l alford to encourmge [Nazi Fifth Columnists] by covering
up the case . . . The Nariorr stongly supports the Post’s demiand for
a full and public inquiry.™

It goes without saying that the “'full and public faquiry™ never
took place and that Walsh mmained chairman of the Naval Affairs
Committee. The following year he was in part responsible for the
Arameo swindle.

On Qciober 5, 1942, Iudge Samuel Leibowilz sentenced Beslnan
W five to rwenty vears in Sing Sing. in March 1947, James Motfett
of Caltex. gravely il and in agony in his hospital bed foliowing a
major operation, decided that with death facing him, he should on-
burden himseff of the details of the Aramce affair. Me had another
motive that was slighily less altroistic: Caliex owed him 56 miflion
{or liz rake-off on the deal.

He went to Welles’s nemesis, Senater Owen Brewster, and asked
for a full-scale ingoiry im0 Aramco. He made such a stink in the
press that Brewster had o go ahead. Inevitably. since Walsh had
been deactivated, Brewster appointed Burion K. Wheeler m investigate
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Motfert's charges. Bavely asdible, Moffett gave a halting sddress on
May 5 in which he ouwtlined the plan. The committes called tor Roog-
sevell’s files in the matter. President Truman declined to parmit a
search of the [ate President s papers at Hyde Park. On May 7. 1947,
the cxeculors of Roosevelt™s estate explicifly denied ﬁnﬂ._mmmmcj for a
search. ciling a July 16 1943, directive by the President that all his
leiters of 2 sensitive character should be locked up (or berween ten
and fifty vears.

On May 25 because of overwhelming public pressuge, part of the
file showing Moffett s original correspondence with the White Hause
way reveiled. Bur ke executors of the Roosevelt estate blocked the
bulk of the appropriae documents.

The anly ray of light for Moffett in this harrowing ordeal was that
Truman was forced by public pressure 10 remove Wheeler from the
spectal investigalive council on June 4,

Eo_.:.mﬁ was unable 1o push Aramco to produce the text of the oil
concession agreement with Ibn Szud. Tie council ruled that the re-
quest for the decument should be quashed “to protect the defendan
the government of Saudi Arabia and ihe government of the :E:ﬁ_
States from annovance and embarrgssment,

As the facts gradually came 1o 1ight despite every effort to SUppress
them. Congress was rent apart by viclent debates,

On Apnl 25, 1943, Senator Brewster delivered a broadside to an
almaost emply and notably indifferent Senate. He described the Ag-
Ameo action as an amazing picrure of corporale greed when our
COLIUTY Was in itz most hitter need. ' Senazor William Laneer of Nomh
Dakota said, ~"The men who have put over this oil deal :a:m.: io be
in the penitemizry. These men, who have called upcn Americsn boys
to 2o into foreign lands to protect dieir oil Interests. am trajtors to
Americd. They ought (o surrender their citizenship or have it taken
away from hem .’ Brewster and Langer charped that thee former
Mavy Department aides in the Justice Department were at that mo-
mient blocking a new investigation into the scandals. The Invesliva-
tgn was indeed blocked.

On February 1, 1949, Moifed brought suit in federal court in New
York for 36 million in damages against Caliex s Arames on the stound
that he hiad made (he original arrangements between Raoseveit and

Trickery in Texas )

Secretary of Commeree Tesse Jones and that be had not been given
his promised rake-oll.

Jones tried (o avoid appearing at the hearing. The matier was so
embarrassing to him that he {eigned ilness. But Moffett had connec-
tions. He aranged for 2 friend of his in the FBI 1w {ollow Jones to
the Tweny-Nine Club on East Sixiv-first Street on the night that Jones
wag supposed to be having a heart atiack. The FBL meport read: *'The
witness Jones pluyed poker on the night of November 16, 194%, uniil
2 a.M. and in the course of the evening the stakes ranged as high as
$4,000 a hand and on one occasion the sald Jones backed o saighn
in a pot involving approximately 54,000 against four 4.7 The re-
port continued, *No doubt backing a sumight against four 4's with
54,000 in the pot has been the cause of many a heartache, but to my
knowledge it never has been recommended as & cun: for heart trau-
ble.™

Mext day, Federal Judge Samuel H. Kavimias said that Mr. Jones
must be compelled to appear and that if Mr. Jones indicated signs
of fatigue as a rosult of his poker game™ he could redre from the
proceedings for a {ew moments during the course of the day.

Tones appeared on Novewmber 26, Asked for records of the trans-
actions tor Ammeo. he said jovially, —L don't keep a diary because 1
don’t plan te write & book Tike Mr. Maorgenthau and some others and
1 kept no Dictaphone in my desk—I'd 1ike 1o put that ink the record,
tool™ Moffer’s attomey, William Power Maloney, who had been the
seourose of Nazi agents until Senator Wheeler had him dislod ged from
the Nazi Sedition Trials of the 1940s, pressed Jones for more details,
Tones answered that his memory was “vague of the entire mutter™
and that he had “‘even forgotien the name of his secmetary ™™ whom

Maloney was trying to find 25 2 material wimess, Asked about Roa-
sevell s note suggesting 10 him that the British should **take care of
the King of Armbia,” Jones gave a calculated reply. He said, “1
scribbled the mote during a Cabinet meeting, handed it 1o the Fresi-
dent and asked hin 0 write jt down in his own handwriting. so I
could Iet them know il was his decision as well as mine.™

Tomes claimed he had no legab authority to grant the Joan and had
had no intentian of doing so, but that e wanted to let “'a Mr. Moffeul
and a Mr. Rodgers " who had discussed the foan with him know tha
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m__%w. “eould not get sy help from the Unjred States Government. ™
o 5 CUTTQUS exgm E,n ,.“:q mm_nucﬂ Wis presumably intended to absolve
) s%ﬂ E.,. any cemplicity in the illicit measure. The implication was

m_ Ma%#wﬁ w:m Rodgers = had gone ahead on their own.

Uddenly. Jones added. “*Judoe Kaufman, {d Jike t
eny . .. o ask -

2 question off the record. ™ B ok the benh

The judye told him 1o B0 right ahead.
. lones mm__P “I"ve been given $]95 by Mr. Maloney and $225 by
F_MQM.EQH m_am W0 come here o January to testify. [ want to know
hether [ hagv : : i
s e o retern the money because 1 think | cught 1 keep

fudge Kaufman tolg Jones, *Y. i

s, ot wikl have 1o retom (B o

the subpoenz js dismissed. ™ srmoner

"0k, don’t do thar, Judee. don" :

. . . e, don't do th i

lnugttey fn ro at, " Jones replind, 1o loud
_:nm”,m”w...”,__w in this spirl of leviry that the entire case was cq nducted.
oy 4Ably. Ammco came out the winner., Motiel was awarded one
. :_unu one hundred dollars by the jury in setlement of his claims.
Ut the judgment was set zgide by the trial judge.

"W.B.S Rodpers of he Tenas Compuny.

The Telephone Plot

During the eary days of 1242, Karl Lindemann, the Rockefeiler—
standard Qil representative in Berin. held a sedes of urgenr meetings
with two directors of the American Inlematicnal Telephonre and Tel-
egraph Corporation: Walter Schellenberz, head of the Gestapo's
courtteninee] ligence service {80, and Baron Kurl von Schriider of the
BIS and the Stein Bank. The result of these mestings was that Ger-
hardt Westrick, the crippled boss of ITT in Nazi Germany, gol aboard
an ITT Focke-Wulf bomber and flew 1o Madrid for a meeting in
March with Sosthenes Behn, American ITT chief.

In the sumptuous Royal Suite of Madiid's Ritz Hotel, the tall,
sharp-faced Beln and the heavily Bmping Westrick sat down for lunch
10 discuss how best they could improve TTT's links with the Gestapo,
and ils improvement of ihe whole Nazi sysiem of telephones, telz-
printers, aircraft intercoms, subitarine and ship phones, eleettic buoys,
alarmn systemns, radio and radar paits, and {uses for ardllery shelis, as
wel as the Focke-Wulf bomibers that were taking thousands of Armer-
ican fives,

Sosthenes Behn, whose first name was Greek for “life soength.’
was barn in §t. Thomas, the Virgin Islands, on January 30, 1882.
His father was Danish and his mother French-ltalian, He and his
brother Hemand, later his partner, wene schooled in Corsica and Parjs.

In 1906, Behn and his brother wok over a sugar business in Puerio
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. Rico E.E spapped up z smal} and primitive [ocal lelephone company
by closing i on g noitgage. Realizing the potentia) of ihe newian-
gled telephone, Behn bezan o by up more COmpattes 10 the Carb-
hean, _..Hn became a4 US. ecitizen in 1913, Ty Word War 1. Behn
served in ihe Sigpal Carps as chief of staff for CGenieral mmoqa..a Rus-
sell, iﬁ learned a great desl abour milltaTy communications _,w,”.ﬁmﬂm
.EE :_m.mmﬂ..monm to France eamed him the Lépion n.Ionnncm mmn_.m
n .En United States, Behin became dssociawed with AT&ET cm.ﬁ&mﬂ
Winthrop Aldrich was lawr a director. in 1920 Behn's ,,.wu_._» in EM
mw.ﬁ of cables enzbied him 10 st up the ITT E..E 36 million paid in
Mr%mw“u _HMEME:F he wﬁ_:n Oul 4 web of communicztions that ran
Srortdwide. le H,w_uwn became the wlephane king of the warld, making
] ,mu ,..,_.z_u ATET and J, _... Morgan that nesulted in his running the
HME_W qm_nvw@pm Sysiem of m_“_m__.u 2y 1923, His Spanish chaimmag Was
Mo W m,_m__ MQWMJP.“H_EQ a ajor supponer of Franca and Hider. n
er gy & Mm EW Rumanian relephone industry, 10 which he
gy e ﬂEmmnm:.. .mmanm.E. and Swedish comporations. By
:“ﬁ__ . EEE was worth over $64 milljon despile the Wall Street
sh. He becarne a director of—inevitably—the National Ciev Bank
» hich financed him along with the Morosns. 1 4
. H_-m..w_”“”i#ﬂp.m m._..wma by fascist governments. into which he rapidly in-
. s sy m.ﬂ_: E assuring polideiansg promnismy places on his
0 M mmm _G.M,n ram Ev&mﬂ pire from 67 Broad Sireet, New York,
IeE was decorated with Louis XTIV ang ues. rich carpe
.M H___,n__“_Mn:wNﬂ_m m% Fope Pius XT and varous heuds c.w fascist EEMM_.# _Mmm
o ..Mﬂm_._wﬁ_w 1 Germran ¥ 10 confer with his Nazi directors, Kure
:._u_.imz“..an,”w nmnm Gerharde Westrick. On August 4, 1935, he and his
Ny m. o nM"h M Hﬂ... anﬁm:wq Henry Munn of the Natdonal City Bank,
- ._. :wn w :..:. Hitfer E.& estabdished a political relationship with
,Hz.mﬂ that continwed untjj the end of World War 1. The Fii
Premised aid and protection atways, , -
E%:M....MM_M ?EHE.. mn_ﬁ was closely connected with Wilhelm Kep-
E._;..S mn:oﬁﬂ.& the nﬁ:.&m. af Friends of the Giestapo and intmduced
S ,.M.m. er and ﬁ.ﬁﬂ:mw- Not aniy did Keppler, Schrdder, and
—— :w ”“c”%%_” :_E. _ﬂn:: s German funds and industries WETe 1n-
Hw m.nﬂ_.n__v.&mnr o _M_..M,,"_M_ mm_“wpﬂw,wzamuuwannﬂ Frineed for Emil Pui a
fehn became ag fmporiant zid to his friend Hermann Géring. In
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1938 he and Schrdder obiained 28 percent of the Focke-Wulf cam-
pany: they grealy improved the deadly bomber squadrons that later
sitacked London and American ships snd tronps. When Aasiia fell
in 1938, Behn organized his Austrian company under ihe manage-
ment of Schrdder and Westrick and aided in the expulsion of Jews,
Some Nuazis tried to take over the Austhan offices, but Behn azain
visited Hider at Berchiesgaden and made sure that ITT would he
allowed to continue in business,

In Madrid during the Spanish Civil War, Belin supphicd telephones
1o both sides, gradually shifting over bis commitments to Franco when
it was ohvious that Franco was winning. He spent months in the
shelt-shattered Madrid headquarters known as the Telefénica, plaving
both ends against {he middle and driving. with immuaity given by
both sides, to and from the Ritz. He gave lavish panies for both the
British and Amevican press, while negotiating through the Bank for
International Setdlemerus so that Franca could buy up ITT's Loyalist
installations,

When Hiler invaded Poland, Behn and Schrdder confermed with the
Gennan alien property custodian, H-J Caesar. The resclt was that
(ke ITT Polish companies wer: protected from scizure for the dura-
tian.

Another protector of Behn's in Germuany was ITT s colorful cor-
poration chairman, Gerhasdt Westrick. Westrick was a skilled com-
pany lawver. the Gemman counlerpart and associawe of John Fosier
Dulles. Westrick's parner until 1938, the equally brilliant Dr. Hein-
rich Adbert, was head of Ford in Germany eotl P45, Both were
crucially important %0 The Fralemity.

At the heginming of 1940, Belin decided to have Westrick go to
uie Uniled States to link up the comporste strands that would remain
secute throughout World War 1l German Foreign Minister von Rif-
bentrop was equally concermed that Westrick undertake the mission.
Wesirick represented in Germany not only Ford but Geneml Mators,
Standard Gil. die Texas Company. Sterling Products, snd the Davis
4] Company .

Since Behin had to be engaged in business in Lishon, he arrauged
that Westrck would be hasted by Yorkild Richer in the United Staies.
Behn also called up the Plaza Howel in New York where he hept a
permanent suite. and he had it placed at Westrick's disposal.
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Westrick tmveled via San Francisce in Mareh 19400, where he
handed 55 million of Farben-1TT money on Behn s and Ribbertrop’s
Joint authorization to Nazi Consul General Friz Wiedemann. The
MORCY was 0 insure the cooperation of small American businessmen
with the Third Reich. .

Rieber met Westrick at the Flaza on April 10, 1940, and arrapged
a press conference for him. The reporiers wers delighted with the
German. Burly and bullnecked, with 3 smong, sutwnal vaice, he had
lost his fight leg to Britdsh shells in World War 1. He had an alumi-
num leg ausched to his body by complicated webbing and a silver
rod. And he had with hit a mysterious and glamorous secretary, the
Baroness Ingrid von Wallenheim. .

Atter a series of meetings with the Frawmily ieaders, Westrick
gave an interview to The New York Times on April 12. He cchoed
precisely the views of Emil Pehl and Dr. Walther Funk. He satd that
America must refease Hs vast hoidings in gald, amounting 1o $7,500
mithon i notes and $18 billion in coinage, to the Nazj SOvErIMen
and ils conquered territories. Westrick insisted that the loan should
be made uat a mere one and a hal{ percent interest. He urged that the
money be shipped to the Bank for International Settlements for trans-
fer to the Rejchsbank. He wanted an end to the economic friction that
nE,Hmna wars and he sought peace forever—presided over by the
Toumvirate of Wall Sueet. the Rejohsbank. and the Bank of lapan,
mcmnmiam on a over of gold. Indeed, as the Times caorrespondant

pomted out rather sharply, Westrck’s views of {ree trading instead
of barter were remarkably similar to those of Secretary of State Cor-
dell Buil.

There was, of coure. no mention of such inconvenient subjects as
Austria, Crechoslovakia, and Poland in Wesibek s visionary pro-
nouncément.

A letter uppeared in the Times on April 15, written by Karel Ho-
_m_m_hq M.pnn.um consul general representing the Crechosiovakian republic
in exile, saving, inter alia, 1 think that all downtrodden nations—
Austria. Crechoslovakia, ['oland, Denmark, Norway and some oth-
ers, whe may oin us in & short (ime, will thank Dr. Westrick for his
kind endeavors. . . . Dr. Wesrrick is nght when he savs that wars
come [rom ceonomic causes. T can speak hiere for my LEEJ,” they
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invaded us and promptly took over ail industry—yes. that is eco-
OTHC cause.

Cn June 26, 1940, his Fratemnity associates gave a party for Wes-
trick at the Waldor{-Astoria Hotel 1o celebrate dhe Nazi victory in
France. This was, of course, only appropriate. Fratermity guests at
this scorpions” feast mmcluded Dietrich, broiher of Hermann Schmitz
of General Ariline and Film: Tames D. Mooney of General Motors;
Edzel Ford of the Ford Mator Company, William Weiss of Sterling
Products: and Torkild Rieber of the Texas Company. These teaders
of The Fratermity agreed to help in the free-rade agreements (hat
would follow a negotiated peace with Germany.

Westrick leased a large house in Scarsdale, New York, from one
of Rieber's Texas Company lawyers. He was seen entering and {eav-
ing the house in the company of prominent fizures of the Nazi gov-
eramment and American industry, The New York Daily News sent
reparter George Dickson 1o investigate the meaning of a big white
placard with a large G on it in a window of a fronl secord-floor
bedroom. The press generlly was suggesting this formed some kind
of code for use by Nazi agents. Dickson wrote in his columm:
**Phantomi-iike men in whitz have been responding by day and night
to mysterious signalling from a sechided Westchester mansion—now
disclosed as the secret quarters of Dy, Gerhardt A, Westrick—invar-
iably they carry caretully wrapped packages . . . they salute with all
the precision of Storm Troopers, deliver the packages, salute again—
and silently depart . . . super-slewthing finally solved the myslery
just before last midnight. * Then Dicksan delivered his death blow 1o
the story: The G sign was an invitation to the Good Humer man to
deliver his famous e cream on a stick!

1. Edgar Hoover of the FBI determined that Westrick had illegally
obtained his drivetr’s lcense by ivimg that he had no infirmiues. The
purpase was achieved: Walter Winchell, Drew Peatson, and other
patriotic colomupists blew up Westrick™s WNazi connections ouf of all
proportion, and Westrick was asked by German Chargé d Affaires
Hans Thonisen to retum 0 Germany al orce.

But before hie was ordered home, Westrick had been extremely
busy. He had eone to see Edsel and Henry Ford at Dearbormn on July
11 at the Fords® urgent invitation, conferring with the Grand Odd Man

et Do L
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end his son on the mater of yestricting shipment of important Rolls-
Rovee maters 10 a beleaguercd Britain shar urzenily aeeded rhem. He
also visited with Will Clayton, Jesse Jones's associate in the Diepart-
ment of Commerce. wie went with Westrick to see Cordell Huall to
plead far the proection of German-American Imde” agrecments op
behall of his {riends in the Fexas eottan mdost ry.

Clayton was the chaimman of the U.S, Commercial Company. und
he helped protect Fraternity interests during World War 11, Orhers of
Westrick s circle included. interestingdy enough. William Donovan,
who became head of the 0SS (precursor of the CLA) en i3 formation
m 1942, Westrick also made significant contacts with good and tue
friends ar Easiman Kodak and Underwood before returnine hame via
Japas snd Russia, )

Atter Pear] Harbor, at meetngs with Kurt von Schrisder and Behn
in Switzerdand. Westrick nervousiv admittied he had run inw o prob-
bem. Wilhelm Ohnesorge. the elderly minister in charge of post of-
frees, whe was one of the first iifty Nozi party members. was strongiy
n_mﬁ_umwa o ITT's German companies continuing 10 function under
New York management in time of war, Behn ro)d Westrick [0 use
Sehrdder and the protection of the Gestapo agajnst Ghnesoree. In
retum, Behn guamnteed that ITT would substantial Iy increase {1s pay-
mients 0 the Gestapo through the Cirele of Friends. ]

A special board of trustees wus set up by the German ZOVEITUMENL
td conperate with Behe and his rhiny thousand staff in Cecupicd Eo-
rope. Ohpesorge savagely fought these armingements and tned w ob-
tin the support of Himmler. However. Schroder had Himm]er's ear,
and s, 0f course, did his close friend and associate Walter Schellen-
berg. Ohneserge sppealed directly o Hitler and condemned Westrick
as an American svmpathizer. However, Hitler Tealized the impor-
tance of LT o the German econony and proved supportive of Behn.

The finyl armngemceat was 1hat the Nagzi gavemment would not
m.EE_m the shares of 17T but would confine itself ta the admimistra-
Uan of the shares. Westrick would be chaimman of the managing Jdi-
reCtors.

.,:Eu. an American corporation literallv entered into parnership
with the Nazi government in time of war.

Westrick snd Behn appointed Woalter Schellenbery as z director
with a nonunal salary in return for hjs pro‘eciion and for his assist-
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ANCE M inswring the company’s cantinuing existence, General Fritz
Thicks, sceond-incommand of the signal corps, was added w the
directorial board becanse army stack orders were cructul in keeping
the company afloat. Hitler was gravely suspicious of Thiele tor draw-
ing money fTonm an Amencan corporalion in time of war and souglt
o dislodge hirn, b Hinmler stepped in as 2 protector,

Ohnesorge did ool give up. In 1942 he again oied to induce Himm-
ler to sign a warmant of amesl spainst Westrick for high treason.
His idea was 0 keep Westrck in a conceniration camp while he
disposed of the shares of ITT. Once again, Schrdder swepped in wd
there was na rurther Irauhle,

Not only did Behn own all of (e German companies of (TT out-
right though the war but e also ran ITT factories in the neutral
countries of Spain, Portugal. Switzedund, and Sweden. which cen-
tinned o buy, sell, and manufzctace for the Axis. Behn and his di-
yectors made repeated and persistent ¢fforts to obtain licenszes for
dealings with the enemy. When Morgenthau refused (he licenses, they
procesdad anyway. They also expored materials to thewr subsidiaries
in newtral nations prodocing for (b coemy.

After Pearl Harbot the German aomy, navy, and air force con-
tracted with [TT for the mamufacture of switchboards, telephones,
alarm zongs, buoys. air taid warning devices, tudar equipment, and
thirty thousand fuses per moath for anillery shells used to kil British
and American troops. This was (o incmrease w fifty thousand per month
by 1944, In addition . [TT supplied ingredients for the rocket bombs
that fell on London, selenium cells for dry rectifiers. high-Trequency
mdio equipment, and fortification znd fieid communication s¢is.

Withow this supply of crucial materals i would have been impas-
sible for the German air force to kil American and British troaps,
for the German armiy to fight the "Allies in Alvca, Traly, Trance, and
Germany . {or England to have been bombed, or for Allied ships o
have been attacked al sca. Nor would it have been possible without
ITT and its afiiliates for the enemy 10 have kept contact with Lalin
Amencan countries at a time when Adminal Raeder of the German
Navy conemplated an onsluugtl on countries south off Panama. It is
thus somewhar unsettling to note the {ollowing memorandum sent by
the State Deparment lawyer R. T. Yingling to Assistant Secretary of
Swate Preclanridge Long on February 26, 1942 It read in part
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I seemts that the loternedional Tefephone and Telegrmph Corparstion
i_wn: has been handling traffic berween Latin Auncrican countries and
Axis-controiled poimes wirk the cheoutagement Or corcnrrence of the
bﬁ..u&.q:m_ﬁ aof Stave * desites some assurznce thea it will nat he ﬁ_ER-
cuted for such activities. It has beep suggested that the mader be dis-
cussed min.nﬂ.u:w with the Ademey General and if he dgrevs 1he
ﬁaﬁnﬂ:o:. can be advised that no prosecution is contemplated . . . if
E.m Imernational Telephone and Telegraph Corporation feels that activ-
ites of m_.ﬁ nanie indicited above which it may be carcving on at the
presedl ome in Lavn America are withio ihe m_._:.mmﬁ of the Trading
withh the Enemy Act it should apply 1o 1he Treasury Deparmeri ?.M
licenise to engage in such activites,

,._._..:EEE ar not the license was jssued, the rading was continued
wilh tie assurance that peither the Sgage Deparonent nor the Depart-
meat of Justice would imtervene. Armed wiih Ihis convenient en-
naﬂnnﬁ:r Sosthenes Behn wag constanily fiying in and out of Spain
during the war for transactions with the ndmud_..r He owned aot only
m,_ telephone operating company in Spain, but a major Em:E.mnEH.EW
vampany as weil Standard Electrica. In the middle of 1942, afier a
VIS 10 Madrid, Behn had the audacity to go to the Stae qumﬂﬂnﬂ
MMM“MF to Dean Acheson’s siaff to obtain permission for his Spanish
subsidiary 10 w1ﬁ:mmm materials in Gemmany for use in Spain. When
this was questioned, Behn said that there wis a liketthood of the
_uamznn___ govemment’s taking over the Spanish properties unless they
nczﬂrmu.. It was a familiar atgumernt, but Beha, who had teed to m&._
the Spanish company to thal samie government & vear earlier, knew

w_wu,mnnu., well that Franco had so intention of running the Qw_:Enu
corporation. With a enique gift of understatement. U.S, Ambassador
la Mﬂ.mm: _ﬂmna_,r 1. H. Hayes wrote to the State Dnvméﬂna on Au-
WHHMP _EMW ‘The Embassy . . |, feeis that the {TT may not have
e Pplac ..qu. war efforts above ity awn intermsts.** The ieter

S Wnuen at 4 time when FTT wag manufacturing military equip-
et tor the German army in Spain.

On Seprember 28, 1942, Ambassador John G. Winant in Loadon
ﬁHnmEﬂww& Washinglan urgenity recommending that the ITT Swiss
and Spanish subsidiary, Telephone and Radio, ‘*be issued Jicenses 1o

* AudhorTs fralics,
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trade with Nazi Germiny. "™ State Department officials had 4 meeting
with Morgenihau and Harry Dexter White saying that it was essential
ITT be allowed to trade with enemy territory. Morgenthau and White
flatly refused 1o countenance any such trading.

In January, Febrpary, and March 1943, Belvn was back in Barce-
Iona and Madrid for conferences with Colonel Wilhelm Grube of the
German army signal corps on the question of forming the German
Standard, or Buropean Swandard (as it was later known), Corporation
amalgamating all ITT companies throughout the whole of Western
Europe . Grube camied out Behn's instructions to the letter.

Shordy after Pearl Harbor, Roosevelt had asked Nelson Rockefel-
Ter to prepare a study of the communications systems of South Amer-
ica. On May 4. 1942, the President had sent @ memorandum to Henry
Wallace in his role as chaiman of the Board of Economic Warfare,
ordering him to fnsure disconnection of all enemy navonals tn the
radio, telephonic, and telegraph fields. He had urged Wallace o elim-
inate all Axis control and influence in telecommunications in Latin
America, acquire hemisphere interests of all Axis companies, insure
loyalty in emplovees, and dismupt direct lines o the enemy. He had
asked for a corparation to be set up to handle the financial aspects of
the program with the assistance and advice of an advisory commitiee.

Wallace approached Secretary of Commerce Jesse H. Tones to makoe
the necessary arrangements. Jones set up the U3, Commercjal Coni-
pany 10 take charge of the mater. It was a charactenstic choice.
The company’s second-in-command was none other than Robert A.
Gantt, vice-president of ITT wself. Gantt continued to receive salaty
fram I'TT while holding his positton with the U.S_ Commercial Com-
pany. The test of the board was largely composed of directors of ITT
or RCA {also a wartime parmer in Nazi-American communicalions
companies),

The Hemisphere Communications Commiltee sat with a mixed
Treasury, State, Anny, Navy, and U.S. Commercial Company board
throughout World War II, doing little more than discussing possible
actions against Axis-connected companies.

A pressing issue {rom Pead Harbor on was the matter of ITT amal-
gamating the ielephore companies of Mexico, One of these, Mexican
Telephone and Telegraph, was owned by Behn outright. The other
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was owned by the Fricsson Company, of which Behg had a 35 per-

cenl share in Sweden. The Ericsson Company was pardy owned by

Nazi collaborator A el Wenner-Gren and by Jacob Wallenberg,

Swedish miltonaire fezd of the ball bearings firm, which iHayed bath

sides of the war, Behn was in and gut of Evrope in the earty 10405

discussing a metger ol the lwo Mexican companies under his guid-

anee,

He made the reason for the take-over the need 1o TELOve A XS
mfuence in Enﬁ.ﬁT:S:m: he failed 1o explain how 11T could in
a0y way reduce such influence indeed, it would aimost Certiinly
have enhanced it ¢ ). Durr, acting chairmman of the Federal Com-
Munications Commission, was drastically opposed 1o any such 1ake-
ov¥er. Durr wus cormecdy worried thar some S35 million of money
that wonld be advanced to Behn by the Experi-Import Bank wouid
make its waw direcily inty Germyan hands.

Durr was also concemned over the fact that ITT retained # CONIract
with the Nippon Electpe Company in Japan that rrovided 1hat Behn
wauld place Tapanese empioyees in Mexico in time of Wr.

On Qwaber 29, 1942, ke Export-Impon Bank agreed to pay $36
rattlion for the merger. When Dumr asked point-blank why rhis was
the case, Hugh Knowlron said. “The ITT will supply a Bstening
mast.”" Durr replied. ~lsn | that a two-way affair? Commander Wii-
binbucher of the 1.5, Navy said. “*The question of which side gors
WR0st value from the Jistenin £ post depends on the relative shrewdness
of the particuiar people in the Company. " ““Who gets the informa-

or?* Laurence Stk of the Deparmment of Justice asked. “‘The
CMIpAnY. " Francis DeWois of the Stane Department said. "*The Gore
CURERr pets wigr the COMRPITY Wants it ro, ¥ The tompany has w he
cazeful lest competisjve infermation gets infg the hands of the Gov-
<Fitieni and then reaches jis competitors,
Statements of this kind infiriated Durr. He was ageravated also by

e fact whar al) (he clrenits o the Axjs emained opan thiroughout the
wir. The real truth of the ler emierged at 4 meeting on Tanuary a,
*H3. There was ap argement between Durr and Hugh Knowlton of
- board. Kunowltog said that *“The army has investizated ITT thor

wiphly and | ITT s presenily engaged in confidential manufac-
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P rehr, ™" Phurm s
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" by could be watehes, b rachr e opeatons o et up
i ! H ) . R o
..,o:_._._:._.ﬂ,u:u pariicuiarly their Axis nm_:no.ﬂ,”_:cs - .._:”rﬂm._,ﬁ._m: © pur &
his defense. So did DeWalf, who said, .n_H Hﬂjﬂ, o actorics in
finger on just what the Commitiee is nm_ﬂE. . N .Bﬂmﬁnmaaznm with
Gm.ﬂsm_ﬂ.._r it has 4 company in Spain. it is wzﬁ_ e e Wit this
mm_m:E‘”.. tn fact, 1 is o no_._dm_u.u_ﬂﬂ._nn w “ﬁn_ a_m.nm..ﬁa_.nia:
Comnitiee is afivaid of iy pubfic opirion. . - .
might woi play our gume.'” % -« arme doubt 45 10
m_.,ﬁ:a#.:M: said he had never heard anvone ﬁxmm”m”wu ””wh_m his way
Coionel Behn's patriotism. (Col. m_ﬁr:, .nmm. E.nﬂnm Smith (of Jus-
argund but he is a loyal American citizen. ) m mercial Company
tie) said he had not vet had _?E: the E-m.. Iﬁoﬂmﬁﬂﬂzma Westrick
“*an adequate appraisal of possible am:%nam DoWalf answered. ~TTT
and Mzzi cooperation in Sowh }Hdm:n.m anc el Lo ence Knapp
iIs 4 loyal American corportion. m._”:.:: &.v.my 4 .Ez:m. Knowlian
f Tustice asked if the Tokyao circuit was stll ope e DeWolf
Mm.ﬁ “Nat if the U.5. Govermment umwnm :ﬁ.ﬂ _ﬂw Foose of the
mm.:ﬁ commectiy. I they are dolng G, 1L Wl
Department! ™ _ s Argentine
subrsidiary, handled a nsmm.m_._ﬂ ﬂcﬁhﬁ_wwww%ﬁ subsidiary, the Unijted
any, Hungary. and BEomania, a chone calls be-
qu“ L,mﬁ Telephone Company. handled mmmﬁwﬂﬁﬂa_; of 1942
tween the Argentine and Berlin in the Arst ¢
T i 3
m_n.”_.__u_mmﬁ was constant dealing with Proclaimed P_._m. :H“mm_“ﬂﬂmmw.“ﬂ-
were issued by authorization of the local Nﬂ_uumwﬂwmmh.m:m cince Ar-
strlcijons Brazil and Pen were maﬂm?;.m.wm ™ =
genting had not declared war on :xrm Axis, . the embassy to by
- I Brazil (he [TT obtined a license __iuu._, simed List electrical
ipment from a leading German-owned Proclaimed L o and
EEﬁ:..ME EHMcmEm mHnnﬁwm-.}nﬁ Plangt, which m.HEu._ﬁn Euﬂ nmes.
nomdﬂwh_w 434, The mailing lists of ITT were filled Enw._ mqﬁh._mv.u_.. i
”..H._u .__.,m_,m:mmﬂnmm in June 1942, ITT bought many caonsigRme
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tubres from the firm Armanda Capriles and Co. . which was contribui-
ing heavily (o the Nazi Winter Help Fund, designed to pay for Ger-
many's iroops in Russia and Poland. In Urugeay, Bebhn's manager
was himself on the Prociaimed List.

By the seeond hall of 1942, ITT sent welephone apparatis to Jts
offices in Souwth Amenca withow heenses, Discounts wene permatied
and the Expen-lmport Bank loan continued. In July 1942 the ITT
All-America Cables Office in Buenos Aires obtained secret informa-
tion on mngsten are throwgh handling cables and passed this on w
the enemy -canirolled Havero Trading Company of Boenos Aires.

On December 4, [943, P. E. Erckson of the [TT subsidiary in
Sweden wrote to H. M. Pease of the head office in New York con-
sulting with him on a 400 million kroner plan to automatize the tele-
phone system in Nazi-occupied Denmark. The Danish ITT subsidiary
employed oo hundred people in its Copenhagen factory. It was of
vital importance to the Gennans ic its North European network of
COMIMUNICAtions .

Isi South America, Sosthenss Behn was in parthieshio (as well as
avalry) with an even mare powerful organism: the giant Radia Cor-
porstion of America, which owned the NBC mdio metwark. RCA
Was in parmership before and afier Peard Harbor with British Cable
and Wireless: with Telefunken, the Nazi company; with Italcable.
wholly cwned by the Mussolini zovemment; and with ¥ichy s Com-
pagnie Geéngrale, in an organization known as the Transmdio Consor-
tum. wilth General Robert C. Davis, head of the New York Chapter
of the Amercan Red Cross, as its chaimman. In torm, RCA, Briiish
Cable and Wireiess, and the German and [talian companies had a
share with 1TT jn TTP (Telegrifica y Telefdnica del Plata), an
Axis-controlled company providimg telegruph and telephone service
Between Buenos Aircs and Montevideo. Nazis in Montevideo could
telephone Buenos Aires through TTP without coming under the con-
trol of either the state-owned system in Ureguay or the ITT system
in Argentina.

Messages, often dangerous to Amercan securily , were lansmitled
directly to Berlin and Rome by Transradio. Another shareholder was
ITT's German “rival,”” Siemens, which linked cables ard networks
with Behn souih of Panama.
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The head of RCA during World War 1[I was Colonel David Sar-
notf. a stocky, square-set, determined man with a slow, subdued
voice. who came from Russia as an immigrant at the twm of the
century and began a5 a newspaper seller, messenger boy. and Mar-
coni Wireless operator. He became world fumous in 1912, at the age
of 1wenty-one, as the young telegrph opermtor who first picked up
woerd of the sinking of the Tiranic: for seventy-two hourd he con-
ducted ships to the stricken vessel. He rose rapidly in the Marconl
cotpany, from inspector to commercial manager in E,_q__. He be-
came general manager of RCA in 1922 at the age of thirty-one ”Em
piesident just before he was 40. Under his inspived organization NBC
inaugurared network broadeasting and RCA and NBC became ane &q
the most colossal of the American multinational COPOTALGRS. PL-
oneers in television and telecanmmimications.

After Pearl Harbor, Samoff cabled Roosevell, *“All of our Eummmmm
and personnel are ready and at your instant service. We awail your
command. " Samoff played 2 crucial mle, as crucial as Behn's, m
the U.S. war cffort, and, like Behn, he was given & naE:m_n”w m
the U.S. Signal Corps. He salved complex probiems. diealt with a
muze of difficult requirements by the twelve million sembers of the
U.S. armed forces, and coordinated details related to the Normandy
landings. He prepared the whole printed and electronic ﬁﬁmm..mc..ﬁm..
age of V-J day: in London in 1944, with headguariers at Clanidge’s
Hatel, he was Eisenhowet’s inspired consultant and eamed the Medal
of Merit for his help in the occupation of Europe.

Opening in 1943 with a chorus of praise from varicus mannﬂ_m. the
aew RCA laboratories had proved to be indispensable m tme of
wdl.

But the public, which thought of Samoff as a pillar of patriotism,
would have been astonished to learn of his parmewship with the en-
emy through Transradio and TTP. The British public, wm_ﬂmﬁ.ﬂa
and bombed, would have been equally shocked to leamn that British
Cable and Witcless., 10 percent owned by the British government.
and under virtwal government control in wartime, was in fact also m
partnership witll (he Germans and ltalians (brough the same comtpa-
nies and proxies. : .

Immediately after Pear] Harbor, Hans Blume, manager of Trans-
radio in Chile, set up an arrangement in connection with his related
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n_mq._anm:.mm station, PYL, g transmil Nazi propapanda. coondinase
SSPHINAge routes, give ship armivals and departures, supply informa-
tinp an 1J.5. metiary gid, (1.5, expaorts. the Latn American defense

Mleasures, and set wp co ith Genman embassies

MInunications w
throughout South America. Transradio was equ ally acaive in Rio and

Buenos Ajreg.

In Brazil, Transradig wias know
Can. British, Nazi, ang lalian shares permane iy deposited in—of
rOurse —dhe Natjona City Bank of New York in Rio. lts dircelors
Were American, Ialian, German. and French. Tranmsradio’s Landon
__..E_w transterred a5 much as 5 quarter of a tmiilion shares of Transra-
:o_ MM“.MW irem Nazi-controlled hanks g0 the National City Bank branciy
iz .

_.z ATgenting the board w 2ain & mixtore of Nazi, [talian., and
Allied members | bers of the Bank for Inlemational Set-
Vements. thongh with even less cxcuse. the dinsctors sat spound a
table discussing the Fupyre af Fascist alliances. So extreme was the
.___ uation that many messages coyld not bhe sent o Aliied capitals by
1'\5. embassies or consulates withayt guing through Axis hands first.

O Mareh 15, 1942 Transradioig London instructed its Buenos Ajres

My open a Ea_?ﬁzcamﬂmnm circuit w0 Tokyo. Since British
Pust office authoriges were iq

) . charge of British Cable and Wireless's
Wirlime operstions, the Britigh goVeIrnment vwias presenied to have au-
thorized this act. Qo March 1

6 the U5, Embassy in Buenos Aires
F@u_.ﬁm“ o the State Depariment in Washington that die opening of
the Enaﬁ_aﬂam_%m CIfCUIt * *wou)

: : d appear w ofier the Japanese op-
POlURity of Hansmitiing new- photos mnfavamable to the united na-
Hons ta Buenos Aires for distribution her and in other couniries. ™"

ﬁ__a March 16, Thomas Burke of the Staee Deparmient sent a note

I+ Srates Breckinridge Long saying, over three manths after Peard

Hitor, “Now that we we o war #nd parties 10 Resolution XL of

___:_ iio Conference, jt SFEMS proper 0 reguire aunr com panigs 10 de-
MSUIMGM carmying any Axis tralfic in the other American
I» 'O enderstanding in thig cofnection that the Treasuny:
i the fure wilj Tequire licenses of Amercan comMmunic

fumies desiring o Cany vaffic of this nare,

I Mcemed, i g believed that we cag give o

0 as Radiobras, its mizxed Amern-

a5 4
ike the mem

republics. It
Depatment
aUORS COTm-

. As far as the past
ral assurances 1o the

o
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ey et o
be prosecoted apainst.”” It 15 Of 1ntere
m =

_ at i d

companies that they will ot e D o the future o bt indee
i & AssuUTanced

10 note thal those ass

I v ATine.
. 3 against at an . s-
. e ot -.Omrh.._ﬁ__w& - sradio o ta
the nnaﬂmwﬂw Mﬂm Ponﬂa: mﬁamm&ﬂmcﬂczmnm. .ﬂn”ﬂﬁ Rome. The
..”_..H:...,.”memmm _.EE. South Americin m,mv.uﬁl_u .“_,m“_..ﬁ.w_m_..n al Gibrallar in
Mwﬂwmr wE_rEn:.um had cut off lialcable Mﬁwﬁwmﬁwpnzmm.m {rans/Lissions
. Wtk OVET I
1939, but Transradio no
discount. X ing to Stawe Depart-
e WM_MM_“.“E the Transradio stations. mnanEMwwmea kept up 2
.m « o orts with the full knowledge of Davi - passed aslong the
i Jm_ﬁ o Bedin. The amount of EEE%EW ’ a6 in consland
i e T - CS Wi
w_ﬁﬂnmﬁ scarcely be calculated. The London - ﬂwﬁsmw repots from
:._nm_ with New Yerk throughout the war. z_nnhﬂz{ reparts 1o the lal-
A entina. Brazil. and Chile and sending company
Arpenting. -
ian and German imerests. alling the keule black, Nando
In a remarkable exampie of the pat ¢ _uﬂmn_ his unche from Buenos
- Behn, cable ' 1 i
hew of Sosthenes SR ime something
H..__EE.. Eﬂmﬂﬂdoﬁw an June 29, 1942; it is HEEFH,MM conter o the
Ay Mu n here o cut oul the sole no_sazn_wmo_ nave @ direct ra-
: dow . : .
_Wo:“_._num with Berlin. Our compenters, ,_..Euwp.wcﬁ (hat every sailing
_u._: sirewit with Berlin and you can be ﬂ_mﬂh is out of sight.”
io e Buenas Aires is in Bedin before the ship is ¢ n (he Tact that his
o E..ﬂ_ Robert C. Davis pever seemed to ﬁamﬂa enemy 2OVEr-
- e n
miﬁwmm.uw_“m_qn:uﬁ board members weie ﬁ._..uu._nmﬂ% Mnm_._m were being
, ent. Nor that secret docaments, charls, m, EWP the authorization
= Serred with speed. accuracy, and s eeteey- South America di-
ﬁwu wr_ anese Minister of Communications, 10
ol the lap : B
. in Conference at
Hnm., July 10, 1942, adhering 1o temms of the M@wmmﬁmzm For dis-
i _“u Sumner Welles had succeeded in abtaining an_.wﬁ Minister of
w E”“_:._Enm communications with the Axis, pwm. }qu General of Posts
n,ﬁ....w::n:sﬂ addressed an official Tetier to the U#EMQEE for the dura-
ﬂrn. Telegraphs, seeking to suspend such nonﬂ,_ﬁ thejr counierparts
M“E Despite that {act, Transradio mﬂ% ﬂﬂ?w.m not discontinue the
) 3 _&. _._um..n 1 H .m._u_. i - .._.. ._.._.
_ retended they feare iata by nationalizing
_nz,_..]__.“_,; __u___n Argentine government would retaliate by
eircuits,
them.
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